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LETTER
To

Shareholders
ANOTHER REMARKABLE YEAR

nnovation continues to be

the key driver in our

success formula

Its almost impossible to fully

characterize such vibrant year

for FMC in this short letter or even

within the pages of this Annual

Report From my perspective

the remarkable accomplishments

of 2011 were made possible by

highly talented team of more

than 5000 FMC people around

the globe whose dedication and

innovative spirit continually

inspire me

We achieved record financial

performance in 2011 and executed

on strategic plan that delivered

impressive results

Sales increased percent

excluding the prior-year

impact of exited businesses

earnings before interest

and taxes increased 13 percent

Adjusted earnings per diluted

share grew by 21 percent

Free cash flow reached

$180 million

Return on invested capital

increased to 23.9 percent

In 2010 we charted an aggressive

roadmap for our future Vision

2015 to drive expanded

opportunities for our customers

shareholders and employees

Vision 2015 leverages our core

strengths to become more

significant global force in the

marketplace am pleased to

report that in 2011 we took great

strides toward realizing that vision

Here are just few highlights

from 2011

Agricultural Products delivered

its eighth consecutive year of

record earnings

Specialty Chemicals achieved

its sixth consecutive year of

record earnings led by the

seventh consecutive record year

of earnings in our BioPolymer

business

Industrial Chemicals realized

robust earnings growth the

highest profit growth among

our segments reflecting the

strength of our soda ash

business and our continued shift

toward specialty peroxygens

Across all businesses we

completed four company or

product line acquisitions

formed two joint ventures

and established two product

development and distribution

agreements all designed to

strategically broaden our capacity

to serve customers and capitalize

on organic market growth

opportunities

In terms of cash to shareholders

we returned $206 million in

the form of dividends and stock

repurchases

We achieved these milestones

while adhering to our core

values We also implemented

sustainability initiative designed to

ensure long-term value creation

and respect for our planets people

and resources

Safety Our Work is Not Done

While we are proud of our

accomplishments this year we

were disappointed with flattish

results in our safety performance

compared to 2010 No single issue

receives more attention in FMC

than the safety of our people We

constantly strive to achieve an

injury-free workplace and we are

redoubling our efforts to instill our

Always Safe culture at every level

of the organization

Inn ovation Customer Intimacy

As you read the following pages

hope the story of FMCs success

resonates The passion and

commitment of our people drive

our performance They are the

face of FMC innovation They work

shoulder-to-shoulder with our

customers to solve problems and

create new opportunities They

provide unique technical expertise

to discover novel products and

applications They achieve peak

levels of operational excellence by
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in our plants ar facilities And

they dc with agWt and the

freedom to bring tot ward esh
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We are proud to have some of the

ii st ventoe people at FMC As

we roy and expand our company
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UPDATE
CN

are ceary on pace

after the first fufl year of

impernenting new dynamic

strategic pan

Ir 2010 FMC anna inced an

aggremive par to dnve exoarded

pOrlurritie5 br ocr customers
sh reholde and irployeas and
beconre grsater force in the

globa marketplace Our vision

to 20 15 is MC with $5 billion

in sales and EDIT arnings
before intereV and taxes in

$1 ion range with greater

earnings stebility With our rich

organ growth opportunities

rocust exterr growth pip dine and

uisciplir ed cash de loymenr we
are co ide that we will air fain

or Return on Invested Capita well

at ave our mid cens target The

overnc ing oblect ye at our plan is

to maintain top quai tile shareholder

re urn

Alter our first full year of

implen entin this rategic plan
MC is an tr ck to acheve or

axcem ab3cr tives cr cad of i4s

Vs on 2015 peralives

Across all be 4nesses in 2511
FMC again demonOrated

naustry leadership Agr cul ural

Products aria Seem dty Chemicals
leliver record ear nings while

Industi ai emicair also achieved

mpress ye irrrings performance

These resu ts were iriven by

strategic organic grnwth market

orused pre duct development

nsig it ul bus ness and pro Juct

ne acquisitions innovat ye

faint ventures improved market

access through new st ibution

agreements and in the case at

Industrial Chemicals withdrawing

am two under performing

businesses

Streamlin irg our partfal arid

invest ng in more profitable assets

proving to be winning formu

We continue to explore ferther

investments in our bus ucsses
that offer the greatest potertial for

even stronger near aria long term

organic growth

In light of our expectations

for rising demand we are

evaluating several patental

capital expans ons ncluding

ncreascd production capacity

for microcrysta line cellu ose and
lithium in our Specialty Cheriicals

business broadenrig our virtual

manufacturing base in Agricultural

Products to maintain glot al

competitiveness and in Industrial

Chemicals suhstanth increasing

capacity at our soda ash olant in

Granger Wyoming

Attractive opportunities in

rapidly dove aping econoirnies

ODEs are poised to absrrb

gniticant portion of this increased

production exparrde

capacity will enable defend

its global market leading positions

We erna confident that Ies

from RDE continue oow
signif cantly tie propart in at

sales info ODE during 20 ro
to 46 pa cent compared tr

percent ir 2010 well an track to

reach our 201 gr otb per err

Our RDL strategy is clear

are going where the growth

these economies grow de mand

ses far our unique cheniistr

ri key agrir ul ural car sumer
ridust ia categories As re sIt

Agrculturnrl Products answer rig

the need for great prone Vivify

critical RDE demand areas of fooa

teed fibe an lue product en
Specidty hernicals RDE

growth in dudes lead ingi dierits

pharmaceuticals nergy storage

and batteries foi electric ye hr lea

Likewise IndustriC Chemi

is exam nng appartunrit as

expand applic rtions bar soda as

such as its glass nvirannient

emediatia arid food safe

capabilities Our prtic pat or ir

these rig economies is likely

uncover even more appo tu icr

than we or inaIIy pr ejecte

MC
VSON

THE RiGHT CHEMS1RY
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THE
FACE OF

eope are centra to

everything we do As we
continue to evolve and grow as

One FMC we are mindful that

our success rests in the hands

of more than 5000 dedicated

men and women many whose

names appear on the cover and

pages of this report

working relationship with

customers is very real and human
Thi

pr blem we solve directly

br cli yes profound and lasting

ways id the daily collaborations

of our obal workforce are

meanir yful uid have enduring

irnoact

So when we think of innovation it

isnt ofty or abstract concept to

us Its personal arid tangible Its

driven by the unique personalities

arid diverse perspectives of

our teammates worldwide who
continually work to make our

company grout

As you read the summaries of our

business results on the Ilowing

pages you will meet some of the

people who exemplify the collective

face of innovation here at

We salute their passion creativity

and persistence and by Extension

all of their colleagues wha invest

their daily lives on behalf FMC

In addition to spotlighting individuals

here we have created special

website faceofinnovationjom

It featurcs sh rt video prof los

of FMC op wI havc he lied

foster new ideas irr customer

ntimacy research produnt

development arid operational

excel lo rice

ogether we face the tutune wi

confidencc irid ide

Visit faceofinnovation ii

us
rig

our OR and

oob enoblo Trartph
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Over the last decade we have
transformed our production

operations to virtual

manufacturing model Today we
own very few of the assets that

produce our active ingredients

or key intermediates More than

100 employees support our

virtual manufacturing model and
secure strong relationships with

key manufacturing partners while

ensuring that FMC products are

produced safely arid sustainably

We are able to produce globally

cosCcompetitive products
at our partners operating

sites in China India Mexico
and Vietnam and our global

procurement organization

ensures that we competitively

source raw materials As

result our manufacturing
cost structure is more than

90 percent variable

Farooq Shahid

ConOv ivril.aqrr

We form lasting relationships
with customers through deep
understanding of their business

technologies and profitability

drivers This gives us the ability

to develop solutions that capture

significant percentage of their

crop protection expenditures

Sugar cane and cotton markets
in Brazil are excellent examples
of customer intimacy that

stren.gthens our leading market

positions In fact our highest

sales growth during the past

year was in Latin America vvhere

customer intimacy is way of life

for our local team

Our focus on open innovation

cosCcompetitiveness customer

intimacy and our extraordinary

people are critical to consisten fly

delivering topline growth and

premium margins year after

year On the foundation of

this longOerm differentiator

strategy we are confident that

FMC Agricultural Products will

continue to exceed customer

expectations consistently grow
sales and niaintairm margins that

are among the highest in the

industry

As an example we recently re
engineered an existing herbicide

that was highly effective but not

competitive Our sourcing model

reduced manufacturing costs by

nearly 80 percent allowing us

to successfully compete in new
markets But regardless of where
we produce our products we do
so with relentless commitment
to sustainahility arid safety
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Or MC Vision 2015 goaB
is expand our product and
te Onology platfor by mouing
ui ad ace it market spaces One
example rr rece it acquisit on

of Sor th Pole Biogroup

Cf lea sed natural colors and

Specialty nut it ingredier ts

minula Curer South Pole

group is inno cation leader

in the iatural colors and health

npredents irdustry working

dir th its cue omers
to find the pr feet color as

cell as he right stability

solubi ty and related

harar teristic

he netural colors

Tarke is expected to

each Cition or niore

2015 as consumer

preference tor natural

colors and ingredier ts

and overall heath aid
nutrition continues to

increar in rerature end

errrerging markets South
Pole ogroup and its

franch so bus nesse
BioCol ar BioNutritior

upvn rr airy mw mar ket
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Lithium revives recharges
reinvents and restores batteries

of all kinds The plethora of

battery-driven devices available

globally foretells an exciting future

for lithium

But the big story in lithium is that it

increasingly provides the elemental

source of power for hybrids plug-

ins and elecfric vehicles EVs
FMC currently supplies lithium for

batteries used in the Nissan Leaf
and Chevy VoW The auto industry

projects demand for million EVs
in the United States by 2015

At the same time another trend

is rising faster than we had

anticipated lithium batteries used
in two-wheeled vehicles such as

motorcycles and scooters as

well as for city bus fleets and

airport vehicles

We are already exploring avenues
for further lithium capactty

increases while paving the vvay

for broader distribution and

acceptance of hybrids plug-ins

and EVs At the forefront of this

effort is our exclusive Lectro
Max Powder 100 stabilized

lithium metal powder SLMP
which represents significant

advancement for wider lithium

ap p1 cation

Innovation is the driving force as

we continue to lead in this dynamic
and rapidly expanding mmrrket

FMC Lithium serves diverse

group of end-markets

including rechargeable and

disposable batteries polymers
pharmaceuticals glass ceramics

aluminum grease and lubricants

FMC is one of only three global

suppliers of lithium

achieve twice the throughput And
twice the concentration means
we are processing half as much
water saving energy and natural

resources

Brian Fitch

About two-thirds of the worlds
currenl lithium supply is found in

saiars large dry lake beds that

contain mineral brines in Argentina

and Chile in the Andes Mountains
FMCs two facilities are in

Argentna where we extract and

process lithium chloride and
lithium carbonate

Increased global demand for

lithium drove the expansion of

FMCs Argentina capacity but

rather than build new facilities

FMC took more innovative

sustainable approach After

spending time in solar evaporatiorr

ponds the brine is processed
in the plant at twice the Iorrner

concentration Using the same
plant and the same equipment
with minimal rnoditications we now
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Hsadquartersd in Princeton

ersey Natron wHI produce
so ar distribute eorhentc to

users of Dry Sc rbeiit Inleci on

PSI technology The US
Environment Protection Ager1c
eutirnr that DSI technology

lik ly be employed by neai

20 pe cent of US coal fired

ctri genn ration capac ty to

help comply wi new air pollution

regulat ons DCI en bles utilit es

to educe sipnif car capital

invest nents equ red by the new

regu ati cns by us rig this sods

ised media in the removal

oces Natron is constrr ctirrg

450000 year facil ty at oui

Green Pvc Wyoming siP to

educe trona sorberrts by thc

Ioartn quarter or 2012 his jo nt

vs tur represents significant

investment id opportunity our

growirç en onmenta rerrediatio

flfornr

Comb ned the Natron joint

venturs and OL Granger plant

expansion wi help us moe our

on 201T growt objectives

MC Peroxygens is worldwide

supplier of hydrogen peroxide

persulfates and perace is acid

with production facil ties in the

United States Canada Spain

Germany the Netherlarrds and

Thailand These plant locations

along with our stateof the art

process technology are the key to

our low cost supply network and

leading North American market

POS lions Our global

peroxygens team

cent nues to deliver

strong results

while meeting

its longer term

objective of

shifting our

portfolio

toward more
lucrative

specialty

products
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remec ation technclogies used

in so and oundwater Meeting

current arid uture egulations

fo clean wa or air and soil

demand naval echriologies and

sustai able solutions so th

acqis hon fosters our agility in

this market ce

MOn Spec ru ri eracetie ama
iict riake poultry processi ig

more 3ar itai had big year

Speed um is safe easy to use

igle com onent peioxygen
based rnicrobia co trol tec hnology

that recu res no on site chemical

neration Do iltry processing

p1 rnts using Spectrum have

consistently achieved USDA tier

performancr for sa monella

centrol wOe mpru ng cccssrg
ticiency

Chin onc of the many niarket

served by idustr ial Chernicc Is

ldigher per ullate des in tic oi

and ga0 industry wore anoth

driver 01 our O1 uec is

We con nue to expk ow
con pound ft at ill make

hydranl trod ir in more
environri entally fri md pi uce
Hydrauli fracturing remc yes oi

and nile gas lodged Jeep
ur dmgro nd arid our per sulfate

olutiori plays kr role ir

the proces

Iwo year ago wc inc rqud ci

uropear and Nortf Arnc car

peroxyger cisinesses io

cent alize arrd stren thor

this global buinecs We so

announed our exit from the Os
percarbonate be inc es operat

Spain tic remain bu inec en

were reorgari sed as MO Ulic ate

with icading tions ic ito

and ceo ito roductr Wc opc ate

two marc lecturing far litio in

Spain and continuc to exp orc

appiications ror esc pr cucrs

beyond the core ipt 1k ation

We will oritinue to shape rOe ii

Cherx im Is po tfol of high

perforrni ig husinu sos tc liver

greater top and ttom inc

growth wI higher mar gins arid

lower volatility we anticipate

sgnficart organm cwtl vc th

next five years we will leve rae

opp rtunities to expand or

environmontal ehnolc gy platfo 01

through target tuicit ens it

cornplernc ntcu tec rol qies

Fr recorD years the use of rse ptic

rckagrrg or food products Las

gown conOderably One of the

ra un reoso is is the effectiseness

steril zatio which is linked

to the advent more effic nt
mic ii iery We have developed

orni of hyr rogeri peroxide and
PSA fOr aseptic packaging that
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NON-GAAP RECONCILIATIONS

Return on invested capital ROIC adjusted earnings per share sales excluding the impact of exited businesses adjusted earnings

before interest and taxes and free cash flow are not measures of financial performance under U.S generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP and should not be considered in isolation from or as substitutes for income from continuing operations net income

or earnings per share determined in accordance with GAAP nor as substitutes for measures of profitability performance or liquidity

reported in accordance with GAAP For those not already presented in the Form 10-K the following charts reconcile Non-GAAP terms

used in this report to the closest GAAP term All tables are unaudited and presented in millions except for per share amounts

Income from continuing operations attributable to

FMC stockholders net of tax GAAP
Interest expense net net of income tax

Corporate special charges income

Tax effect of corporate special charges income

Tax adjustments
_____________________________________________________

ROIC numerator Non-GAAP

2-point average denominator

Debt

Total FMC Stockholder equity

ROIC denominator pt avg GAAP

ROIC using Non-GAAP numerator

1623.4

19.8%

1744.9 1917.8

22.3% 23.9%

Reconciliation of diluted earnings per common share attributable to FMC stockholders from continuing operations GAAP to diluted

adjusted after-tax earnings from continuing operations per share attributable to FMC stockholders Non-GAAP

Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations GAAP
Diluted restructuring and other income and charges per share

Diluted adjusted after-tax earnings from continuing operations per share

attributable to FMC stockholders Non-GAAP

2009 2010 2011

3.37 2.82 5.54

0.75 2.13 0.44

4.12 4.95 5.98

Reconciliation of revenue GAAP to revenue excluding the prior-year impact of the exited business revenues Non-GAAP

Consolidated Revenues GAAP
Less Exited Phosphate and Sulfur Derivative Business Revenue

Consolidated Revenues Non-GAAP

Exited business revenues are associated with our Huelva and Barcelona Facility shutdowns in Spain

Reconciliation of net income attributable to FMC stockholders GAAP to adjusted earnings

from continuing operations before interest and income taxes Non-GAAP

Net income loss attributable to FMC stockholders GMP
Discontinued operations net of income taxes

Corporate special charges income

Interest expense net

Provision for income taxes

Adjusted earnings from continuing operations before interest

and income taxes Non-aAAP

2010 2011

3116.3 3377.9

119.6

2996.7 3377.9

2010 2011

172.5 365.9

33.6 31.8

171.8 47.7

39.3 39.4

132.0 136.5

549.2 621.3

Free cash flow of approximately $180 million for the year ended December 31 2011 is the sum of cash provided by operating activities GAAP
excluding excess tax benefits from share based compensation GAAP and cash required by discontinued operations GAAP less cash required

by investing activities GAAP excluding acquisitions net of cash acquired GAAP as presented in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

of FMCs Form 10-K
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2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 Actual

246.7 206.1 397.7

18.7 27.9 29.0

136.9 171.8 47.7

37.7 55.2 15.6

43.7 38.7 0.9

320.9 389.3 457.9

Dec-08 Dec-09 Dec-i Dec-il

623.6 643.9 637.9 825.6

902.9 1076.4 1131.5 1240.6

1526.5 1720.3 1769.4 2066.2
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PART

FMC Corporation FMC was incorporated in 1928 under Delaware

law and has its principal executive offices at 1735 Market Street

Philadelphia Pennsylvania 19103 Throughout this Annual Report

on Form 10-K except where otherwise stated or indicated by the

context FMC We Us or Our means FMC Corporation

ITEM Business

General

and its consolidated subsidiaries and their predecessors Copies of the

annual quarterly and current reports we file with the Securities and

Exchange
Commission SEC and any amendments to those reports

are available on our website at www.FMC.com as soon as practicable

after we furnish such materials to the SEC

We are diversified chemical company serving agricultural consumer and

industrial markets globally with innovative solutions applications and

market-leading products We operate
in three distinct business segments

Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial Chemicals

Our Agricultural Products segment develops markets and sells all three

major classes of crop protection
chemicals insecticides herbicides

and fungicides with particular strength in insecticides and herbicides

These products are used in agriculture to enhance
crop yield and quality

by controlling broad spectrum of insects weeds and disease as well as

Alginates

Natural Colorants

Lithium

Industrial Chemicals Soda Ash

pest control in non-agricultural markets Specialty Chemicals consists

of our BioPolymer and lithium businesses This
segment

focuses on

food ingredients that are used to enhance texture color structure and

physical stability pharmaceutical additives for binding encapsulation

and disintegrant applications ultrapure biopolymers for medical devices

and lithium for
energy storage specialty polymers and pharmaceutical

synthesis Our Industrial Chemicals segment manufactures range
of

inorganic materials including soda ash hydrogen peroxide specialty

peroxygens
zeolites and silicates

The following table shows the principal products produced by our three business segments and their raw materials and uses

Segment Product Raw Materials Uses

Agricultural Products Insecticides Synthetic chemical intermediates Protection of crops including cotton sugarcane rice corn

soybeans cereals fruits and vegetables from insects and for non

agricultural applications including pest
control for home garden

and other specialty markers

Herbicides Synthetic chemical intermediates Protection of crops including cotton sugarcane rice corn

soybeans cereals fruits and vegetables from weed growth and for

nonagricultural applications including turf and roadsides

Fungicides Synthetic chemical intermediates Protection of crops including fruits and vegetables
from fimgal disease

Specialty Chemicals Microcrystalline Specialty pulp Drug dry tablet binder and dkintegrant food ingredient

Cellulose

Carrageenan Refined seaweed Food ingredient for thickening and stabilizing encapsulants

for pharmaceutical and nutraccurical

Refined seaweed Pood ingredient pharmactutical e\cipient healthcare and industrial

uses

Plant sources select insect species Food pharmaceutical and cosmetics

Mined lithium Batteries polymers pharmaceuticals greases
and lubricants

air
coiiditioniiig

and other industrial uses

Mined trona ore Glass chemicals detergents

Peroxygens Hydrogen caustic soda sulfuric Pulp paper chemical processing detergents antimicrobial

acid acetic acid disinfectants environmental applications electronics and polymers

Z.eolites Silicates Caustic Soda Soda Ash Detergents car tires pulp paper

Through December 31 2010 our Industrial OsemicaLi prim ipal produi ts induded phosphorous
c/emicals On this date ne exited tin pimphate business via the shutäown of our

Huelvaficility
in Spain

FMC CORPORATION Form 10-K



PART
ITEM Business

We have operations in many areas around the world With worldwide manufacturing and distribution infrastructure we are able to respond

rapidly to global customer needs offset downward economic trends in one region with positive trends in another and better match revenues

to local costs to mitigate the impact of
currency volatility The charts below detail our sales and

long-lived assets by major geographic region

94

35%

North America

Our Strategy

In 2010 we invested significant resources and managerial time in the

development of new strategic plan for the Company This
corporate

strategy
which we refer to as Vision 2015 is focused on driving sales

and
earnings growth while sustaining return on invested capital well

above our cost of capital This strategys objective is to achieve total

shareholder return in the
top quartile of broad group of industry peers

Vision 2015 has five key elements

Growing Leadershp Positions We intend to continue to build and

strengthen our market leading positions by executing plan that relies

primarily on organic growth complemented by focused external growth

strategy We benefit from business portfolio that is exposed to faster

growing end markets and geographic regions Agricultural Products

organic growth plan focuses on market and product innovations while

strengthening
market access Specialty Chemicals organic focus is

primarily on new products and new applications for existing products

Industrial Chemicals focus is on new applications for
existing chemistries

To complement these organic growth initiatives our external growth

strategy employs focused disciplined approach to company product

and technology acquisitions We believe this
strategy

reduces the risk

normally inherent in external growth Agricultural Products intends to

complement its organic growth initiatives by acquiring new products

and
technologies as well as making selective acquisitions to strengthen

market access and enter adjacent spaces
In Specialty Chemicals the

food ingredients market is our top priority for acquisitions that will

expand our product line offerings and positions in rapidly-developing

economies Industrial Chemicals will evaluate selective acquisitions

focused in specialty applications Across all businesses our strategy does

not include making large scale complex or transformational acquisitions

or adding another business platform to our portfolio through acquisition

Increasing our reach We intend to bias our growth initiatives toward

further
strengthening our positions in rapidly-developing economies

RDEs Our growth in Latin America will be
largely

driven by leveraging

Agricultural Products leadership positions In Asia our growth initiatives

will be more broad-based with targeted investments in human scientific

and technological resources across our businesses in the region In Central

and Eastern Europe Turkey and Russia we will focus on establishing

strong footholds in key countries

Capturing the Value of Common Ownership We are moving from highly

decentralized organizational model to one that has both centralized and

decentralized qualities We believe this shift will enable us to better

leverage the size and
scope

of our company to realize cost savings
and

increase efficiencies
yet maintain strong accountability in out business

units Our efforts to date have focused on such areas as procurement

strategic planning mergers and acquisitions communications global

supply chain and RDE infrastructure

Proactively Managing our Porifolio In the fourth
quarter of 2010 we

ceased
operations at our phosphates facility

in Huelva Spain due to

increasing environmental constraints and
poor

financial performance

Following this resolution all current businesses are well positioned for

sustained growth and delivering returns above cost of capital We will

continue to assess the performance of all of our business units and

will take actions as needed should units perfbrmance change Within

our businesses we continue to evaluate the performance of specific

product lines and have taken action where product line has become

non-strategic or economically unsustainable such as the exit in 2011

of the sodium percarbonate business

Disczlined Cash Deployment Under our Vision 2015 plan we expect

that we can fund our growth strategies
and return significant amount

of cash to our shareholders through share repurchases and dividends

Underlying our ambition to deliver our Vision 2015 plan is continued

commitment to enterprise sustainability including responsible stewardship

As we grow we will do so in responsible way Safety remains of utmost

importance Meeting and exceeding our customers needs will continue

to be primary focus And we will as always conduct our business in

an ethical manner In the first half of 2012 we will be publishing our

inaugural Susrainability Report This report will provide an overview

of our progress

REVENUES BY REGION -2011

REVENUE $3377.9 MILLION

29%

LONG-L WED ASSETS BY REGION 2011

LONG-L WED ASSETS $1627.2 MILLION

29%

Latin America

17%

Asia Pacific

Africa

53%

North America

FMC CORPORATION Form 10-K



Financial Information about Our Business Segments

PART
ITEM Business

See Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K Also see below for selected financial information related to

our segments

Agricultural Products

Financial Information In Millions

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
REVENUE AND OPERATING MARGIN 2007-2011

Our Agricultural Products segment which represents approximately

43 percent
of our 2011 consolidated revenues develops manufactures

and sells portfolio
of

crop protection professional pest control and

lawn and garden products Our growth efforts focus on developing

environmentally compatible solutions that can effectively increase

farmers yields provide cost-effective alternatives to older chemistries

to which insects weeds or disease may have developed resistance and

strengthen our customer relevancy in focus markets We are committed

to providing unique differentiated products to our customers by

acquiring and further developing technologies as well as by making

selective investments in innovation to extend product life cycles Our

external growth efforts include product acquisitions in-licensing of

chemistries and technologies and alliances to strengthen our market

access or complement our existing product portfolio In 2010 we

successfully acquired the proprietary herbicide fiuthiacet-methyl which

has an excellent fit in our focus market
segments

and is particularly

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND DEPRECIATION

AMORTIZATION 2007-2011

$40
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29

22 23

$20
17 17 17
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13

$10

$0

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Capital Expenditures Depreciation and Amortization

effective on many tough-to-control weeds that have developed resistance

to glyphosate In 2011 we entered into joint venture in Argentina to

accelerate growth and strengthen our market access in the second
largest

crop protection
market in Latin America Also in 2011 we acquired

Rovral iprodione and Sportak prochloraz fungicides for agricultural

use outside of Europe

We differentiate ourselves by focusing on specific crops
and markets and

by our low-cost manufacturing strategy We are continually working

to gain access to proprietary
chemistries and technologies

which are

complementary to our existing products and market focus We are

encouraged by our progress in licensing and partnering to create

proprietary products developing technically-advanced delivery systems

and commercializing unique product premixes and combinations We

are optimistic that these efforts will continue to result in sales and profit

growth over the foreseeable future

1500-

1250-

$1000

$750-

$500-

$250-

2007 2008 2009

Revenue Operating Margin

2010 2011

Overview
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Products and Markets

Agricultural Products provides wide
range

of proprietary branded

productsbased on both patented and off-patented technologies

Product branding is prevalent industry practice used to help maintain

and
grow

market share by promoting end-user recognition and product

and
supplier reputation Agricultural Products enjoys relatively strong

niche positions in
crop

and
non-crop

market
segments

in the Americas

Europe and other
parts

of the world and derived approximately 80

percent of its revenue from outside North America in 2011

Insecticides represent the
largest product line in the Agricultural Products

segment which include our pyrethroid and carbamate chemistries in

which we maintain leading market positions based on revenues Our

proprietary herbicides have grown significantly over the last several
years

We have entered into number of
agreements with third-party pesticide

producers under which we work together to develop market and/or

distribute existing and new pesticide chemistries in various markets

These
proprietary

chemistries and technologies are complementary

due to organic growth new product launches product acquisitions and

the in-licensing of new chemistries Our herbicide portfolio primarily

targets
niche uses and controls wide variety of difficult-to-control weeds

Over the last several
years we have strengthened our market position

in fungicides so that we can broaden our portfolio across the three

major pesticide categories i.e insecticides herbicides and fungicides

In 2009 we successfully acquired the
proprietary fungicide benalaxyl

which has an excellent fit in several regions and
crops

In 2011 we

acquired iprodione and prochloraz fungicides for all agricultural uses

outside of Europe These are highly effective resistance management

technologies that are used in more than 50 countries primarily in the

tree fruit and vegetable markets

to our existing products and market
strategies

The chemistries

include flonicamid unique insecticide for controlling sucking

pests cyazofamid novel fungicide for
crop

and
non-crop uses in

the Americas pyroxasulfone proprietary herbicide for
controlling

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
2011 SALESMD

9%

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
2011 REVENUE BY REGION

48%

Insecticides

20%

Herbicides

c30

The following table summarizes the principal product chemistries in Agricultural Products and the
principal uses of each chemistry

Professional

Fruits Sugar Oil Seed Pest Control

Cotton Corn Rice Cereals Vegetables Soybeans Cane Tobacco Rape Home Garden

Insecticides Pyrethroids permethrin

cypermcthrin

bifenthrin

7eta-cypernsethrin

Carbamates carbofuran

trbosulfan

Other cadusafos

Herbicides carfentrazone

ethyl

clomazone

sulfentrazone

fluthiacet-methyl

Fungicides benalaxyl

iprodione

prothloraz

FMC CORPORATION Form 10-K
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glyphosate-resisrant weeds and acetamiprid for
pest

control markets in

North America We also have numerous suppiy
and access agreements

with third-party producers for other pesticide products including the

commercialization of
proprietary premixes and combinations

We access key Western European markets through Belgian-based

pesticide distribution company Belchim Crop Protection N.y in

which we have an ownership interest We also have joint venture

arrangements
with Nufarm Limited in three countries in Eastern Europe

which allow us to capitalize on growth in this part of Europe In North

America we access the market through several major
national and

regional distributors We access key Asian markets either through
local

independent distributors or our own sales and marketing organization

In the large agricultural market of Brazil we access the market in
part

through independent
distributors and in part we sell directly to large

growers through our own skilled sales and marketing organization

Through these and other alliances along with our own targeted marketing

efforts access to novel technologies and our innovation initiatives

we expect to maintain and enhance our access in key agricultural
and

non-crop
markets and develop new products that will help us continue

to compete effectively

We maintain competitive manufacturing cost positions through our

strategy
of sourcing raw materials intermediates and finished products

from third parties in lower-cost manufacturing countries such as China

India and Mexico This strategy has resulted in significant cost savings

and lower capital spending and has reduced the fixed capital intensity

of the business

Growth

We plan to grow by obtaining new and approved uses for existing product

lines and acquiring accessing developing marketing distributing and

or selling complementary chemistries and related technologies in order

to enhance and expand our product portfolio and our capabilities to

effectively service our target
markets and customers Our growth will

depend on our ability to deliver unique innovative solutions to our

customers Over the next several
years growth is anticipated from our

proprietary insecticides herbicides and fungicides as well as recently

accessed third party chemistries and technologies For our insecticides

we will launch number of new products expand labels and introduce

unique
formulations that will deliver value-adding solutions to our

customers The continued spread of herbicide-resistant weeds and shifts

in weed populations coupled with several recently launched product

formulations expanded labels premixes
and new chemistries provide

growth opportunities for our herbicide product line The strengthening

of our fungicide portfolio will increase our relevancy in critical market

segments across the globe Finally the successful development and

commercialization of our productivity-enhancing technologies should

also contribute to growth over the next five years

Industry Overview

The three principal categories of agricultural
and

non-crop
chemicals

are herbicides representing approximately half of global industry

revenue insecticides representing approximately quarter
of global

industry revenue and fungicides representing most of the remaining

portion
of global industry revenue

Herbicides prevent or inhibit weed growth thereby reducing or

eliminating the need for manual or mechanical weeding Herbicides

can be selective controlling only specific
unwanted vegetation or non-

selective controlling all vegetation and are also segmented by their

time of application pre-planting pre-emergent
and post-emergent

Insecticides are used to control wide
range

of insects including

chewing pests such as caterpillars and sucking pests such as aphids

Insecticides are applied as sprays
dusts or granules

and are used on

wide variety
of

crops
such as fruits vegetables cotton soybean corn

and cereals There are several major classes of insecticide chemistries

including organophosphates carbamates pyrethroids and neonicotinoids

Fungicides prevent or inhibit the spread of plant disease which can

adversely impact crop yields and quality In general fungicides are either

preventative applied before disease is present or curative applied after

disease is present and are also segmented as being contact translaminar

or systemic depending on the extent to which the product is taken
up

by the crop plant Fungicides are used on wide variety of crops
such

as fruits vegetables soybean cereals and rice

The agrochemicals industry is relatively consolidated Leading crop

protection companies Syngenta AG Bayer AG Monsanto Company

BASF AG The Dow Chemical Company and du Pont de Nemours

and Company DuPont currently represent approximately 75 percent

of the industrys global sales Significant drivers for this consolidation

have been the growth and
grower acceptance

of biotechnology employed

in row crops
and the escalation of research and development and

marketing costs

The next tier of agrochemical producers including FMC Makhteshim

Agan Industries Ltd Sumitomo Chemical Company Limited Nufarm

Limited Arysta LifeScience Corporation United Phosphorous Limited

and Cheminova AS employ various differentiated strategies and

compete by unique technologies focusing on certain
crops

markets and geographies and/or competitive pricing
based on

low-cost manufacturing positions Some of these producers are generic

competitors with little or no investment in innovation There is

growing trend among these producers to partner
with one another to

gain economies of scale and competitive market access more comparable

to larger competitors Additionally number of these companies
have

grown rapidly through acquisitions
of other companies and/or product

divestitures from the leading crop protection companies

FMC CORPORATION Form 10-K
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Specialty Chemicals

Financial Information In Millions

$1000

$750

$500

$250

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
REVENUE AND OPERATING MARGIN 2007-2011

Overview

Our Specialty Chemicals
segment which represents 26 percent of our

2011 consolidated revenues is focused on high-performance food

ingredients pharmaceutical excipients biomedical technologies and

lithium products all of which enjoy solid customer bases and consistent

growing demand The significant majority of Specialty Chemicals sales

are to customers in non-cyclical end markets We believe that our

future growth in this
segment

will continue to be based on the value-

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND DEPRECIATION

AND AMORTIZATION 2007-2011

added performance capabilities of these products and our research and

development capabilities as well as on the alliances and the close working

relationships we have developed with key global customers The food

ingredients area in particular is focus for external growth and our

intent is to broaden our product line and expand our participation in

RDEs through acquisitions joint ventures and alliances

Products and Markets

Bio Polymer

BioPolymer is organized around the food and pharmaceutical markets

and is key supplier to many companies in these markets Many of

BioPolymers customers in the food and pharmaceutical markets have

come to rely on us for the
majority of their supply requirements for

our products and solutions We believe that such reliance is based on

our innovative solutions and operational quality

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Revenue -- Operating Margin

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Capital Expenditures Depreciation and Amortization

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
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BioPolymer is supplier of microcrystalline
cellulose MCC

carrageenan alginates
and natural colorantsingredients

that have high

value-added applications in the production of food pharmaceutical

and other specialty consumer and industrial products MCC processed

from specialty grades of both hardwood and softwood pulp provides

binding and disintegrant properties for dry tablets and capsules and

has unique functionality that improves the texture and stability of

many food products Carrageenan
and alginates both processed

from

seaweed are used in wide variety of food pharmaceutical
and oral

care applications In the fourth quarter
of 2011 we acquired South Pole

Biogroup Ltda Chilean-based natural color and specialty nutrition

ingredients manufacturer further expanding our portfolio of naturally

sourced specialty products used in the food beverage personal care

nutrition and pharmaceutical markets Additionally we are developing

technology platforms within biomedical markets to provide ultrapure

biopolymers and application know-how for biomedical devices

The following chart summarizes the markets for BioPolymers products
and our chemistries in each market

Microcrystalline

cellulose Carrageenan Alginates Natural Colorants Other

Food Beverage

Dairy

Convenience foods

Meat and poultry

Pet food and other

Pharmaceutical Tablet binding and coating

Anti-reflux

Liquid suspension

Oral care

Cosmetic care

Oral dose forms

Biomedical

Lithium

Lithium is vertically-integrated technology business based on both into single device Lithium is also being developed as the enabling

inorganic and organic lithium chemistries While lithium is sold into element in advanced batteries for use in hybrid electric plug-in hybrids

variety
of end-markets we have focused our efforts on energy storage

and all-electric vehicles

specialty polymers
and pharmaceuticals

Organolithium products are sold to fine chemical and pharmaceutical

The electrochemical properties of lithium make it an ideal material for customers who use lithiums unique chemical properties to synthesize

portable energy storage
in high performance applications including high value-added products Organolithiums are also highly valued

heart pacemakers cell phones camcorders personal computers
and next- in the specialty polymer markets as initiators in the production of

generation technologies that combine cellular and wireless capabilities synthetic rubbers and elastomers

The following chart summarizes the major markets for various lithium products

Lithium Metal/

Primary Specialty Ion Battery

Inorganics Inorganics Materials Organometallics Intermediates

Fine Chemicals

Pharmaceuticals agricultural products

Polymers

Elastomers synthetic rubbers industrial coatings

Energy Storage

Non-rechargeable batteries lithium ion batteries rechargeable

Other

Glass ceramics construction greases
lubricants

air treatment pool water treatment

Industry Overview

Food Ingredients

Our BioPolymer
business principally serves the texture structure and

physical stability TSPS food ingredients market TSPS ingredients

impart physical properties to thicken and stabilize foods There are

many types of TSPS ingredients and wide range
of food

groups

served including bakery meats dairy and convenience products The

industry is dispersed geographically with the majority of our sales in

Europe North America and Asia

Trends driving
market growth include increasing consumer interest

in healthier foods greater convenience and growth in per capita

consumption
of processed foods in emerging

markets The trend toward
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health and convenience drives the need for more functional ingredients

to impart desired food tastes and textures We believe
carrageenan

and

MCC which address this need are growing faster than the overall TSPS

market The global customer base for TSPS is
relatively fragmented and

includes large and small food
processors Consolidation among these

customers has been
significant trend over the

past
several

years As

result TSPS ingredient suppliers such as us have focused on establishing

alliances with market leaders with the goal of reducing costs leveraging

technology and expanding product offerings with key accounts

Within the entire food ingredients market there are relatively large

number of suppliers due principally to the broad spectrum of chemistries

employed Segment leadership global position and investment in

technology are key factors to sustaining profitability In addition

compared to our business larger suppliers may often provide broader

product line and
range of services to food companies including

functional
systems or blends The

top suppliers of TSPS ingredients

include FMC DuPont J.M Huber Corporation Kerry Group plc

and Cargill Incorporated

With the acquisition of South Pole Biogroup Ltda our BioPolymer

business now participates in the natural colorant food ingredients

market
Biogroups proprietary know-how is used to formulate unique

natural color blends used in Food and Personal Care applications

Natural colors are $700 million year market with annual growth

of approximately 20% in the last
years

driven by consumer demand

from synthetic to natural colors By 2015 the natural colors market is

expected to reach $1 billion or more as consumer preference for natural

colors and ingredients and overall health and nutrition continues to

increase in mature and emerging markets

Pharmaceutical
Ingredients

Our BioPolymer business sells formulation ingredients to the

pharmaceutical industry Our raw materials function as binders

Industrial Chemicals

disintegrants suspending agents and control release compounds in

the production of both solid and liquid pharmaceutical products

Competitors tend to be grouped by chemistry Our principal MCC
competitors include Rettenmaier Sôhne GmbH Ming Tai Chemical

Co Ltd Asahi Kasei Corporation and Blanver Farmoquimica Ltda

While pricing pressure
from low cost producers is common competitive

dynamic companies like us offset that pressure by providing the most

reliable and broadest
range of products and services Our customers are

pharmaceutical firms who depend upon
reliable therapeutic performance

of their drug products

We also supply alginates MCC and
carrageenan

into oral care cosmetics

and health care markets Highly refined extracts from selected seaweeds

provide broad
range

of alginate functionality including uses in

anti-reflux dental
impressions control release of drugs and wound

dressings Special grades of
carrageenan extracts are used in liquid cough

medicines toothpaste and variety of skin care products

Lithium

Lithium is highly versatile metal with diverse end-use markets including

both rechargeable and disposable batteries polymers pharmaceuticals

greases/lubricants glass/ceramics and aluminum production The markets

for lithium chemicals are global with
significant

demand growth occurring

outside the U.S in Japan China and South Korea We market wide

variety of lithium-based products ranging from
upstream commodity

lithium carbonate to highly specialized downstream products such

as organolithium compounds and high value materials for batteries

There are only three key producers of lithium compounds FMC
Rockwood Holdings Inc and Sociedad Qulmica Minera de Chile S.A

all of which produce lithium carbonate FMC and Rockwood are the

primary producers in downstream lithium specialties

Financial Information In millions
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Our Industrial Chemicals segment which
represents 31 percent

of our 2011 consolidated revenues has low-cost positions in high

volume inorganic chemicals including soda ash and hydrogen peroxide

complemented by high value niche positions in specialty
alkali and

specialty peroxygens product lines Our strategic
intent for the Industrial

Chemicals Group is to create portfolio of high performing businesses

exhibiting greater top
and bottom line growth

with significantly higher

margins and reduced volatility
than in the past We will achieve this by

enhancing our leadership position in natural soda ash and continuing

Products and Markets

INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS

2011 SALES MIX

Industrial Chemicals serves diverse
group

of markets from economically

sensitive industrial sectors to technology-intensive specialty
markets

We process
and sell refined inorganic products that are sought by

customers for their critical reactivity or specific functionality in markets

such as glass detergents chemicals and pulp and paper
In addition

we produce purify and market higher value downstream derivatives

into specialized and customer-specific applications These applications

include electronics iodides and animal nutrition

Ai1cili

Our Alkali Chemicals Division produces natural soda ash Soda ash

is used by manufacturers in glass chemical processing
and detergent

industries To lesser degrees we also produce sodium bicarbonate caustic

soda and sodium sesquicarbonate
The majority of our alkali sales are

manufactured by and sold through FMC Wyoming Corporation
which

we manage as an integral part of our alkali business and in which we

own shares representing an 87.5 percent economic interest with the

remaining shares held by two Japanese companies

We mine and produce natural soda ash using proprietary
low-cost

mining technologies such as longwall
and solution mining

which we

believe give us globally
the lowest cost position

Our two production

sites in Green River Wyoming have the name plate capacity to produce

approximately 4.85 million short tons of soda ash annually During

2009 with the economic downturn resulting in drop in soda ash

demand we mothballed the Granger facility
and consolidated all of

to shift our peroxygens portfolio toward high-value specialties We

expect steady organic growth
in our soda ash business due to capacity

expansions serving consistent growth in global demand We anticipate

significant organic growth in environmental applications over the next

five years and we see opportunities to expand our environmental

technology platform through targeted acquisitions
of complementary

technologies In addition to solid revenue growth we expect improved

profit mix stemming from increased specialty market participation
and

the benefits of restructuring actions

INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS
2011 REVENUE BY REGION MIX

our soda ash production at the Westvaco facility Since then export

markets have recovered much faster than the U.S domestic market and

in July 2011 we restarted our Granger facility
to ramp up production

to an annual rate of 500000 short tons by the end of 2011 to satisfy

export
demand We also began evaluating further production increases

at Granger
which could bring Granger production to 1.2 million short

tons by 2015

Peroxygens

We produce peroxygerl products at production
facilities in the

United States Canada Spain Germany and the Netherlands We also

participate
in joint venture company in Thailand We sell hydrogen

peroxide into the pulp and paper
chemical processing environmental

electronics and food industries We are leading North American

producer of hydrogen peroxide due in part to our broad product line

geographically-advantaged plant locations state-of-the-art processing

technology and superior customer service Hydrogen peroxide represents

approximately 65 percent
of our peroxygens

sales

Our specialty peroxygens
business supplies persulfate products primarily

to polymer printed circuit board hair care and soil remediation markets

Peracetic acid is predominantly supplied to the food industry for

biocidal applications Typically we compete as specialty player where

we believe that we are differentiated by our strong technical expertise

unique process technology intellectual property
and geographic location

29%

3%

Zeolites Silicates

67%
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Zeolites and Silicates

We have two manufacturing facilities in Spain where we have market

position in zeolites and silicates We sell zeolites and silicates products

which are used in
detergents car tires textile foundry and pulp and

paper markets We are exploring new applications for zeolite and

silicates including water treatment environmental detergent and

agricultural markets

Industry Overview

We primarily participate in the following product areas soda ash

peroxygens and zeolites and silicates These products are generally

inorganic and are generally commodities that in many cases have few

cost-effective substitutes Growth is typically function of industrial

production in developed economies and function of the rate of

industrialization in developing economies Pricing tends to reflect the

supply and demand balance as producers add or reduce
capacity in

response to demand changes

Soda Ash

Soda ash is highly alkaline inorganic chemical essential in the production

of glass and widely used in the production of chemicals soaps and

detergents and many other products Natural soda ash is typically

produced from trona natural form of sodium
sesquicarbonate

through mining and chemical
processing Soda ash may also be produced

synthetically but this
process requires significantly more energy

and

produces large quantities of waste by-products making it much less

cost-effective than natural soda ash production

Because of the processing cost advantages of trona and the large natural

reserves of trona in the U.S particularly in Green River Wyoming
all U.S soda ash is naturally produced By contrast due to lack of

trona the majority of the soda ash that is manufactured in the rest of

the world is produced synthetically Other U.S producers are OCI
Chemical Corporation Solvay S.A The General Chemical Group
Inc in which majority stake is owned by Tata Chemicals Limited

and Nirma Limited

Approximately 50 percent
of U.S soda ash production served

export

markets in 2011 with approximately 38 percent
of U.S soda ash

production exported through the American Natural Soda Ash

Corporation ANSAC ANSAC is the foreign sales association of

three Wyoming U.S soda ash producers established in 1983 under

the Webb-Pomerene Act and subsequent legislation Since its creation

ANSAC has been successful in
coordinating soda ash

exports taking

advantage of the inherent cost benefits of U.S produced natural

soda ash and leveraging its large scale of operations to the benefit of

Source and Availability of Raw Materials

its member
companies Consequently U.S

exports
of soda ash have

increased over fivefold in the last 25 years

Peroxygens

Hydrogen peroxide is typically sold for use as bleacher or oxidizer

While it often competes with other chemicals capable of performing

similar functions the extent of substitution is limited Our specialty

peroxygen
derivatives e.g persulfates and peracetic acid also functions

as bleaching or oxidizing agents
in some applications Environmental

regulations regional cost differences
primarily due to transportation

costs and technical differences in product performance factor into

the decision to use hydrogen peroxide or one of its derivatives rather

than another product Hydrogen peroxide is sold in aqueous solutions

usually 70 percent 50 percent or 35 percent by weight

The pulp and
paper industry represents approximately 65 percent

of demand for
hydrogen peroxide in North America and Europe

In these markets hydrogen peroxide is used as an environmentally

friendly bleaching agent to brighten chemical mechanical and recycled

pulps as well as to treat wide
range

of mill pollutants in the waste

stream The North American and European paper markets are mature

and new investment in pulp and
paper capacity is largely focused in

Asia and South America The other North American and European

hydrogen peroxide producers are EKA wholly owned subsidiary of

Akzo Nobel NV Arkema Inc Evonik Industries AG Kemira Ovj
and Solvay S.A

Zeolites and Silicates

Zeolite has network structure which facilitates the
exchange of

cations enabling it to soften hard water in detergents Environmental

regulations limiting or banning the use of sodium tripolyphosphate in

detergents have facilitated the introduction of Zeolite as component
in

detergents The properties of zeolites make them very suitable for

specific applications such as adsorption separation ion exchange and

others In addition the zeolite network structure can be modified to

produce specialty zeolite products designed to meet sophisticated market

demands We are currently working on applications to meet these

demands The main European Zeolite producers are PQ Corporation

Industrial Zeolite Birac and FMC

Soluble silicates are very versatile inorganic chemical products They

are produced by combining various ratios of sand with alkali to obtain

variety of products used in many industries The applications of

silicates include
detergents ceramics paper foundry construction

rubber agriculture textiles and
production of other chemicals Due

to their relatively low price and high logistic cost the silicate market

is very fragmented with mostly local production The main European

producers are PQ Corporation Cognis and FMC

Our raw material
requirements vary by business segment and include

mineral-related natural resources trona ore and lithium brines processed

chemicals seaweed specialty wood pulps and
energy sources such as

gas coal oil and
electricity Raw materials represented approximately 26

percent
of our 2011 costs of sales and services and no one raw material

represented more than 12
percent

of our total raw material purchases

We extract ores used in Industrial Chemicals manufacturing processes

from mines e.g trona in North America Raw materials used by

Specialty Chemicals include lithium brines various types of seaweed

and natural colorant raw materials that are sourced on global basis

and specialty pulps which are purchased from selected global producers

Raw materials used by Agricultural Products primarily processed

chemicals are obtained from variety of
suppliers worldwide
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We own number of U.S and foreign patents
trademarks and licenses that are cumulatively important to our business We do not believe that

the loss of any one or group
of related patents

trademarks or licenses would have material adverse effect on the overall business of FMC The

duration of our patents depends on their respective jurisdictions Their expiration dates range through 2031

We encounter substantial competition in each of our three business

segments This competition
is expected to continue in both the

United States and markets outside of the United States We market

our products through our own sales organization
and through alliance

partners independent distributors and sales representatives
The number

of our principal competitors varies from
segment to segment In general

we compete by operating in cost-efficient manner and by leveraging

our industry experience to provide advanced technology high product

quality and reliability and quality customer and technical service

Our Agricultural
Products segment competes primarily in the global

chemical crop protection
market for insecticides herbicides and

fungicides The industry is characterized by relatively small number

of large competitors and large number of smaller often regional

competitors Industry products include crop protection chemicals

and for certain major competitors genetically engineered crop

biotechnology products Competition from generic agrochemical

producers
has increased as significant

number of product patents

held industry-wide have expired in the last decade In general we

compete as an innovator by focusing on product development including

novel formulations proprietary mixes and advanced delivery systems

and by acquiring or licensing mostly proprietary chemistries or

technologies that complement our product
and geographic focus We

also differentiate ourselves by our global cost-competitiveness
via our

manufacturing strategies establishing effective product stewardship

programs
and developing strategic

alliances that strengthen
market

access in key countries and regions

With significant positions in markets that include alginate carrageenan

microcrystalline cellulose and lithium-based products our Specialty

Chemicals segment competes on the basis of product differentiation

market applications expertise customer service and price BioPolymer

competes
with both direct suppliers

of cellulose and seaweed extract

as well as suppliers of other hydrocolloids
which may provide similar

functionality in specific applications In microcrystalline cellulose

competitors are typically
smaller than us while in seaweed extracts

carrageenan and alginates we compete
with other broad-based chemical

companies We and each of our two most significant competitors in

lithium extract the element from naturally occurring lithium-rich

brines located in the Andes Mountains of Argentina and Chile which

are believed to be the worlds most significant
and lowest cost sources

of lithium

Our Industrial Chemicals segment serves the soda ash markets worldwide

the peroxygens
markets predominantly in North America and Europe

and the zeolite and silicate markets in Europe In North America our

soda ash business competes
with four domestic producers of natural soda

ash three of which operate
in the vicinity of our mine and processing

facilities near Green River Wyoming Outside of the U.S Canada

Europe
and South Africa we sell soda ash mainly through ANSAC

Internationally our natural soda ash competes
with synthetic soda

ash manufactured by numerous producers ranging from integrated

multinational companies to smaller regional companies We maintain

leading position
in the North American market for hydrogen peroxide

especially in specialty segments There are currently four other firms

competing in the hydrogen peroxide market in North America but

most of them focus primarily on the commodity pulp
and

paper

Seasonality

The seasonal nature of the crop protection
market and the geographic quarters Markets in the southern hemisphere Latin America and

spread of the Agricultural Products business can result in significant parts
of the Asia Pacific region including Australia are served from

variations in quarterly earnings among geographic locations Agricultural July through February generally resulting in earnings in the third

products
sold into the northern hemisphere North America Europe

and fourth and first
quarters

The remainder of our business is generally

parts of Asia serve seasonal agricultural
markets from March through not subject to significant

seasonal fluctuations

September generally resulting in earnings in the first second and third

Competition

We have number one or number two market position
in many of our product lines based on revenue either globally or in North America

largely as result of our product offerings proprietary technologies and our position as low-cost producer The following product lines accounted

for the majority of our 2011 consolidated revenue Market positions are based on the most recently available revenue data

Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals Industrial Chemicals

Product Line Market Position Product Line Market Position Product Line Market Position

Pyrethroids in North America Microcrystalline cellulose globally
Soda ash in North America

Carbofuran globally Carrageenan globally Persulfates globally

Alginates globally

Lithium globally
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segment
The

primary competitive factor
affecting the sales of soda

ash and hydrogen peroxide to commodity markets is price We seek to

maintain our competitive position by employing low cost processing

technology We possess strong cost and market positions in our European

peroxygens business zeolites and silicates In each of these markets we

face significant competition from
range of multinational and regional

Research and Development Expense

chemical producers We are the only producer of persulfates in the

Americas but face competition from imports from Germany Japan

Taiwan and India In the European persulfates market we compete
with two domestic firms as well as imports from China Taiwan and

India In both regions Chinese imports are constrained by the
presence

of anti-dumping duties

We perform research and development in all of our segments with the majority of our efforts focused in the Agricultural Products
segment

The

development efforts in the Agricultural Products segment focus on developing environmentally sound solutions and new product formulations

that
cost-effectively increase farmers yields and provide alternatives to existing and new chemistries Our research and development expenses

in the last three
years are set forth below

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

Agricultural Products
84.3 80.9 73.1

Specialty Chemicals
14.2 13.4 12.9

Indusmal Chernscals 67 62

TOTAL
105.2 100.5 92.8

Environmental Laws and Regulations

discussion of environmental related factors can be found in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations and in Note 10 Environmental Obligations in the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K

Employees

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC filings are available free of

charge on our website www.fmc.com Our annual
report on Form 10-

quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and

amendments to those reports are posted as soon as practicable after

we furnish such materials to the SEC

In accordance with New York Stock
Exchange NYSE rules on

May 20 2011 we filed certification
signed by our Chief Executive

Officer CEO that as of the date of the certification he was unaware

of
any violation by FMC of the NYSEs

corporate governance listing

standards We also file with each Form lO-Q and our Form 10-K

certifications by the CEO and Chief Financial Officer under sections

302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxey Act of 2002

We employ approximately 5000 people with approximately 2500 people has occurred there has been no material effect on consolidated sales and
in our domestic operations and 2500 people in our foreign operations earnings We cannot predict however the outcome of future contract

Approximately 35
percent

of our U.S-based and foreign-based employees negotiations In 2012 we have nine collective-bargaining agreements
respectively are represented by collective bargaining agreements We have expiring all of which are related to our foreign-based employees These

successfully concluded virtually all of our recent contract negotiations contracts affect
approximately 33

percent
of foreign-based employees

without work stoppage In those rare instances where work
stoppage

Securities and Exchange_Commission_Filings
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ITEM 1A Risk Factors

Among the factors that could have an impact on our ability to achieve operating results and meet our other goals are

PARr
ITEM 1A Risk Factors

Industry Risks

Pricing and volumes in our markets are sensitive to number of industry

specific and global issues and events including

Capacity utilization- Our businesses are sensitive to industry capacity

utilization As result pricing
tends to fluctuate when capacity

utilization changes occur within our industry

Competition- All of our segments
face competition

which could

affect our ability to maintain or raise prices successfully enter certain

markets or retain our market position Additionally in Agricultural

Products competition includes not only generic suppliers of the same

pesticidal active ingredient but also alternative proprietary pesticide

chemistries crop protection technologies that are bred into or applied

onto seeds and intellectual property regarding production or use of

pesticides
Increased generic presence

in agricultural chemical markets

has been driven by the number of significant product patents and

product data protections
that have expired in the last decade and

this trend is expected to continue

Changes in our customer base- Our customer base has the potential to

change especially when long-term supply contracts are renegotiated

Our Industrial Chemicals and Specialty
Chemicals businesses are

most sensitive to this risk

Climatic conditions- Our Agricultural Products markets are affected

by climatic conditions which could adversely impact crop pricing

and pest
infestations The nature of these events makes them difficult

to predict

Changing regulatory environment- Changes in the regulatory

environment particularly in the United States Brazil China and

the European Union could adversely impact our ability to continue

selling certain products in our domestic and foreign markets or could

increase the cost of doing so Our Agricultural Products business is most

sensitive to this general regulatory risk given
the need to obtain and

maintain pesticide registrations
in

every country in which we sell our

products Compliance with changing
laws and regulations may involve

significant costs or capital expenditures or require changes in business

practice that could result in reduced profitability In the European

Union the regulatory risk specifically includes chemicals regulation

known as REACH Registration Evaluation and Authorization of

Chemicals which affects each of our business segments to varying

degrees The fundamental principle behind the REACH regulation is

that manufacturers must verify that their chemicals can be marketed

safely through special registration system

Climate change regulation- Changes in the regulation of greenhouse

gases depending on their nature and scope could subject our

manufacturing operations particularly certain Industrial Chemicals

operations in the United States to significant additional costs or

limits on operations

Raw materials and energy costs- Our operating results are significantly

affected by the cost of raw materials and
energy including

natural
gas

We may not be able to raise prices or improve productivity sufficiently

to offset future increases in the costs of raw materials or energy

Supply arrangements
and production hazards- Certain raw materials

are critical to our production process especially in our Agricultural

Products and Specialty Chemicals segments
While we have made

supply arrangements to meet planned operating requirements an

inability to obtain the critical raw materials or execute under the

contract manufacturing arrangements
would adversely impact our

ability to produce certain products We increasingly source critical

intermediates and finished products from number of suppliers

especially in Agricultural
Products An inability to obtain these

products or execute under the contract sourcing arrangements
would

adversely impact our ability to sell products Our facilities and those

of our key contract manufacturers are subject to operating hazards

which may disrupt our business

Economic and political change- Our business could be adversely

affected by economic and political changes in the markets where

we compete including inflation rates recessions trade restrictions

foreign ownership restrictions and economic embargoes imposed by the

United States or any
of the foreign countries in which we do business

changes in laws taxation and regulations
and the interpretation and

application of these laws taxes and regulations restrictions imposed

by foreign governments through exchange controls or taxation policy

other governmental actions and other external factors over which

we have no control

Foreign operations- The Companys foreign operations can be adversely

impacted by nationalization or expropriation
of

property undeveloped

property rights and legal systems or political instability
Economic and

political conditions within foreign jurisdictions or strained relations

between countries can cause fluctuations in demand price volatility

supply disruptions or loss of property In Brazil our customers face

combination of economic factors that could result in cash flow

pressures
that lead to slower payments

Market access risk- Our results may be affected by changes in

distribution channels which could impact our ability to access the

market In certain Agricultural Products segments we access the market

through joint ventures in which we do not have majority control

Where we do not have strong product portfolio or market access

relationships we may be vulnerable to changes in the distribution

model or influence of competitors with stronger product portfolios

Business disruptions- Our business could be adversely affected by

information technology systems outages or intrusions disruption in

our supply chain or manufacturing and distribution operations or

other sudden disruption in business operations beyond our control

as result of events such as acts of sabotage terrorism or war civil

or political unrest natural disasters pandemic situations and large

scale power outages
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Operational Risks- The Companys manufacturing operations inherently

entail hazards that require continuous oversight and control such as

leaks ruptures fire explosions toxic releases mechanical failures or

vehicle accidents If operational risks materialize they could result in

loss of life damage to the environment or loss of production all of

which could negatively impact
the Companys ongoing operations

reputation financial results and cash flow

Litigation and environmental risks- Current reserves relating to our

ongoing litigation
and environmental liabilities may ultimately prove

to be
inadequate

Technology Risks

While we have seen signs of
recovery

in global economic activity and

in worldwide credit markets since the financial crisis that commenced

in 2008 general slowdown in economic activity caused by an

economic recession could adversely affect our business worsening

of economic conditions could adversely affect our customers ability

to meet the terms of sale or our suppliers ability to fully perform
their commitments to us

We are an international company and face foreign exchange rate risks

in the normal course of our business We are particularly sensitive to

the euro the Brazilian real and the Chinese yuan To lesser extent

we are sensitive to the Mexican peso the Argentine peso
the British

pound sterling and several Asian currencies including the Japanese yen

Hazardous materials- We manufacture and
transport certain materials

that are inherently hazardous due to their toxic or volatile nature

While we take precautions to handle and
transport

these materials in

safe manner if they are mishandled or released into the environment

they could cause property damage or personal injury claims against us

Environmental Compliance- The Company is subject to extensive

federal state local and foreign environmental and safety laws and

regulations concerning among other things emissions in the air

discharges to land and water and the
generation handling treatment

and disposal of hazardous waste and other materials The Company
takes its environmental responsibilities very seriously but there is

risk of environmental impact inherent in its manufacturing operations

and transportation of chemicals

We have
significant investments in

long-lived assets and continually

review the carrying value of these assets for recoverability in light

of changing market conditions and alternative
product sourcing

opportunities

Obligations related to our pension and postretirement plans reflect

certain assumptions To the extent our plans actual experience differs

from these assumptions our costs and funding obligations could

increase or decrease
significantly

ITEM Unresolved Staff Comments

None

ITEM Properties

FMC leases executive offices in Philadelphia Pennsylvania and
operates

32 manufacturing facilities and mines in 20 countries Our major

research and development facility is in Ewing New Jersey

Trona ore used for soda ash production in Green River Wyoming is

mined primarily from
property held under long-term leases We own

the mineral rights to the Salar del Hombre Muerto lithium reserves

in Argentina number of our chemical plants require the basic raw

materials that are provided by these mines without which other sources

of raw materials would have to be obtained

Our ability to compete successfully particularly in Agricultural Failure to continue to make process improvements to reduce costs

Products and
Specialty Chemicals depends in part upon our ability could impede our competitive position

to maintain superior technological capability and to continue to

identify develop and commercialize new and innovative high value

added products for
existing and future customers

Financial Risks
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PART

ITEM Mine Safety Disclosures

We believe our facilities are in good operating conditions The number and location of our owned or leased production properties for continuing

operations are

Latin America

United States and Canada Western Europe Asia-Pacific Total

Agricultural Products

Specialty Chemkas 17

Industrial Chemicals

TOTAL 10 32

ITEM Legal Proceedings

Like hundreds of other industrial companies we have been named as

one of many defendants in asbestos-related personal injury litigation

Most of these cases allege personal injury or death resulting from

exposure to asbestos in premises
of FMC or to asbestos-containing

components
installed in machinery or equipment manufactured or

sold by discontinued operations The machinery and equipment

businesses we owned or operated did not fabricate the asbestos-

containing component parts at issue in the litigation
and to this day

neither the U.S Occupational Safety and Health Administration nor

the Environmental Protection Agency has banned the use of these

components Further the asbestos-containing parts for this machinery

and equipment were accessible only at the time of infrequent repair

and maintenance few jurisdictions have permitted
claims to proceed

against equipment manufacturers relating to insulation installed by

other companies on such machinery and equipment We believe that

overall the claims against FMC are without merit

As of December 31 2011 there were approximately 12000 premises and

product asbestos claims pending against FMC in several jurisdictions

Since the 1980s we have had discharged approximately 100000 asbestos

claims against FMC the overwhelming majority of which have been

dismissed without
any payment to the plaintiff

Settlements by us with

claimants since that time have totaled approximately $43.6 million

We intend to continue managing these cases in accordance with our

historical experience We have established reserve for this litigation

within our discontinued operations
and believe that any exposure

of loss in excess of the established reserve cannot be reasonably

estimated Our experience
has been that the overall trends in terms of

the rate of
filing

of asbestos-related claims with respect to all potential

defendants has changed over time and that filing rates as to us in

particular
have varied significantly over the last several years We are

peripheral defendant that is we have never manufactured asbestos or

asbestos-containing components
As result claim

filing
rates against

us have yet to form predictable pattern
and we are unable to project

reasonably accurate future
filing rate and thus we are presently unable

to reasonably estimate our asbestos
liability

with respect to claims that

may be filed in the future

In late June 2004 we were served in lawsuit captioned Lewis et

FMC Corporation which was filed in United States District

Court for the Western District of New York The suit was brought by

thirteen residents of Middleport New York who
allege

that we violated

certain state and federal environmental laws and seeks injunctive relief

and monetary damages
for personal injuries and property damage in

connection with such alleged
violations motion for summary judgment

was decided in our favor on March 29 2011 On April 28 2011 the

plaintiffs
filed an appeal of that decision to the U.S Court of Appeals

for the Second Circuit but failed to perfect the appeal and the case

was dismissed The plaintiffs
filed new complaint in New York state

court in late September 2011 on the state law claims on which the

federal district judge did not rule in granting
the summary judgment

motion in the original
lawsuit nuisance personal injury

and
property

damage In October 2011 we removed the new lawsuit from the

state court to federal court based on diversity of citizenship and filed

motion to dismiss the case on the basis of improper
and untimely

service of
process

which remains pending

See Note Principal Accounting Policies and Related Finartcial

InformationEnvironmental Obligations Note 10 Environmental

and Note 18 Commitments Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

in the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K the content of which are incorporated by reference to

this Item

ITEM Mine Safety Disclosures

information regarding mine safety and other regulatory actions at our mine in Green River Wyoming is included in Exhibit 95 to this Form 10-K
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ITEM 4A Executive Officers of The Registrant

ITEM 4A Executive Officers of The Registrant

The executive officers of FMC Corporation the offices currently held by them their business experience since at least January 2007 and earlier

and their
ages as of December 31 2011 are as follows

All officers are elected to hold office for one year or until their successors

are elected and qualified No family relationships exist among any of the

above-listed officers and there are no arrangements or understandings

between
any

of the above-listed officers and any other
person pursuant

to which they serve as an officer The above-listed officers have not

been involved in
any legal proceedings during the

past ten years
of

nature for which the SEC requires disclosure that are material to an

evaluation of the ability or integrity of
any such officer

Age on

12/31/2011Name Office year of election and other information

Pierre Brondeau 54 President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board 0-present President and Chief Executive Officer

of Dow Advanced Materials specialty materials
company 09 President and Chief Operating Officer

of Rohm and Haas Company predecessor of Dow Advanced Materials 08 Executive Vice President and Business

Group F.xecutive Electronic Materials and Specialty Materials 07 Vice President and Business Group Executive

Electronic Materials 03 President and Chief Executive Officer Rohm and Haas Electronic Materials LLC
and Regional Director Europe 03 Board Member Tyco Electronics 07 Present Marathon Oil Company10 present

Kim Foster 63 xccutivc Vice Prcsident and Chief Finandal Officer 01 -present Vice President and General Managcr_
Agrk tiltu ral Products Grou 98 Director International Agricultural Products Group 96 General Manager
Airport Products and Systems I_ivision 91 Board member Hexcel Corporation 07 present

Andrea Utecht 63 Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary 01-present Senior Vice President Secretary and

Counsel Atofina Chemicals Inc 96
Michael Wilson 49 President Specialty Chemicals Group present Vice President and General Manager Industrial Chemicals

Group 03-10 General Manager Lithium Division 97 Vice President and General Manager Technical Specialty

Papers Division Wausau Paper Corporation 96 Vice President Sales and Marketing Rexam Inc 93
Milton Steele 63 President Agricultural Products Group 01-present International Director Agricultural Products 99

General Manager Bio Product Division 98 General Manager Asia Pacific 96 Area Manager Asia Pacific 92
Mark Douglas 49 President Industrial Chemicals Group present Vice President Global Operations and International

Development 10 Vice President President Asia Dow Advanced Materials 09 Corporate Vice President

President Asia Rohm and Haas Company 07-09 Corporate Vice President Director of Procurement and

logistics Robin and Haas Compan 0507
Thomas DeasJr 61 Vice President and lrea.surer 01-present Vice President Treasurer and CFO Applied Tech Products Corp 98

Vice President lieasurer and CFO Airgas Inc 97 Vice President Treasurer and CPO Maritrans Inc 96
Vice PresidentTreasury and Assistant Treasurer Scott Paper Company 88

Graham Wood 58 \ice President Controller 01 Present Group ControllerAgricultural Products Group 99 Chief Financial

OfficerEuropean Region 97 Group ControllerFMC Foodtech 93
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PART

ITEM Market For the Registrants Common Equity

Related Stockholders Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

FMC common stock of $0.10 par
value is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange Symbol FMC There

were 3731 registered common stockholders as of December 31 2011 Presented below are the 2011 and 2010 quarterly summaries of the high

and low prices
of the companys common stock

Common
2011 2010

stock prices First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Htgh 8562 8928 9300 8800 6224 6580 6938 8203

Low 72.57 76.79 66.58 63.81 50.75 56.69 55.64 66.84

Our Board of Directors has declared regular quarterly dividends since FMCs annual meeting of stockholders will be held at 200 p.m on

2006 however any future payment
of dividends will depend on our Tuesday April 24 2012 at Top of the Tower 1717 Arch Street 50

financial condition results of operations conditions in the financial Floor Philadelphia PA 19103 Notice of the meeting together with

markets and such other factors as are deemed relevant by our Board proxy materials will be mailed approximately 30 days prior to the

of Directors Total cash dividends of $41.2 million $36.4 million meeting to stockholders of record as of February 28 2012

and $36.3 million were paid in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Transfer Agent and Registrar of Stock

Wells Fargo Bank NA
Shareowner Services

P.O Box 64854

St Paul Minnesota 55 164-0856

or

161 North Concord Exchange

South St Paul Minnesota 55075-1139

Phone 1-800-468-9716

651-450-4064 local and outside the U.S

www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices
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PART II

ITEM Market For the Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholders Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On February 18 2011 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase

ofup to $250.0 million ofour common stock At December 31 2011

$139.8 million remained unused from the authorization On

February 17 2012 the Board authorized the repurchase of
up to

an additional $250.0 million of our common stock The repurchase

program
does not include

specific timetable or price targets
and may be

suspended or terminated at any time Shares may be purchased through

open
market or privately negotiated transactions at the discretion of

management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other

factors
During the year ended December 31 2011 2053478 shares

were repurchased under the publicly announced repurchase program
for

$165.1 million From time to time we acquire shares from employees

in connection with the vesting exercise and forfeiture of awards under

our equity compensation plans

Stockholder Return Performance Presentation

The graph that follows shall not be deemed to be incorporated by The following Stockholder Performance Graph compares the five-year

reference into
any filing

made by FMC under the Securities Act of cumulative total return on FMCs Common Stock for the period from

1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
January 2007 to December 31 201 with the SP 500 Index and

the SP 500 Chemicals Index The comparison assumes $100 was

invested on December 31 2006 in FMCs Common Stock and in

both of the indices and the reinvestment of all dividends

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

FMC Corporation 100.00 143.58 119.00 149.67 215.78 234.01

SP 500 Index 100.00 105.48 66.96 84.33 96.82 98.86

SP 500 Chemicals Index 100.00 126.73 76.66 110.47 134.15 132.51
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For the three and twelve months ended December 31 2011 we made the following share repurchases

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Publicly Announced Program

Maximum Dollar Value of

Total Number of Average Price Paid Total Number of Total Dollar Amount Shares that May Yet be

Period Shares Purchased Per Share Shares Purchased Purchased Purchased

Q12011 46733 80.61 304810180

Q2 2011 18578 84.33 18578 9999973 294810207

Q3 2011 1282807 78.42 1274900 99998972 194811235

October 1-31 2011 71.02 19481 1235

November 1-30 2011 150000 79.86 150000 11978326 182832909

December 1-31 2011 510036 84.46 510000 43074317 139.758592

Q4 2011 660041 83.41 660000 55052643 139758592

TOTAL 2011 2108159 80.36 2053478 165051588 139758592
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ITEM Selected Financial Data

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

PART II

ITEM Selected Financial Iata

The selected consolidated financial and other data presented below for and as of the end of each of the years
in the five-year period ended

December 31 2011 are derived from our consolidated financial statements The selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31 2011

Year Ended December 31

in Millions except per
share data and ratios 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Income Statement Data

Revenue 3377.9 3116.3 2826.2 3115.3 2632.9

Income from continuing operations before equity

in earnings loss of affiliates interest income

and expense loss on extinguishment of debt and

income taxes
587.3 387.1 334.7 500.7 228.0

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes 550.5 350.5 310.0 471.9 195.3

Income from continuing operations
414.0 218.5 257.0 346.5 166.3

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 31.8 33.6 18.2 24.9 24.3

Net income 382.2 184.9 238.8 321.6 142.0

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interest 16.3 12.4 10.3 17.0 9.6

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC
STOCKHOLDERS 365.9 172.5 228.5 304.6 132.4

Amounts attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations net of income taxes 397.7 206.1 246.7 329.5 156.7

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 31.8 33.6 18.2 24.9 24.3

NET INCOME 365 172 228 3046 1324

Basic earnings loss per common share

attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations
5.58 2.84 3.40 4.44 2.06

Discontinued operations 0.45 0.46 0.25 0.34 0.32

NETINCOME 513 238 315 410 174

Diluted earnings loss per common share

attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations
5.54 2.82 3.37 4.35 2.02

Discontinued operations 0.44 0.46 0.25 0.33 0.31

NETINCOME 510 236 312 402 171

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 3743.5 3319.9 3136.2 2993.9 2733.4

Long-term
debt 798.6 619.4 610.5 595.0 497.3

Other Data

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges
11.3x 7.5x 9.2x 11.6x Six

Cash dividends declared per share 0.600 0.500 0.500 0480 0.405

Discontinued
operations

net ofincome taxes includes the following items related to our discontinued businesses gains
and losses related to adjustments to our estimates ofour liabilities

for environmental exposures general liability workers compensation postretirement benefit obligations legal defense property
maintenance and other costs losses for

the settlement of

litigation and gains
related to property

sales

In calculating
this ratio earnings consist of income loss from continuing operations before income taxes plus interest expense

amortization expense
related to debt discounts fees and

expenses
amortization of capitalized interest interest included in rental

expenses
assumed to be one-third of rent and equity in earnings loss of affiliates

Fixed charges consist of

interest expense
amortization of debt discounts fres

and
expenses

interest capitalized as part offixed assets and interest included in rental
expenses
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ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Information

Statement under the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 We and our representatives may from

time to time make written or oral statements that are forward-looking

and provide other than historical information including statements

contained in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations within in our other
filings

with

the SEC or in
reports to our stockholders

In some cases we have identified forward-looking statements by such

words or phrases as will likely result is confident that expect

expects should could may will continue to believe

believes anticipates predicts forecasts estimates projects

potential intends or similar expressions identifying forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 including the
negative of those words and phrases

Such forward-looking statements are based on our current views and

assumptions regarding future events future business conditions and

the outlook for the company based on currently available information

These statements involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and

other factors that may cause actual results to be materially different from

any results levels of activity performance or achievements expressed

or implied by any forward-looking statement These factors include

among other things the risk factors listed in Item IA of this Form 10-

We wish to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such

forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date made

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

We are diversified chemical company serving agricultural consumer

and industrial markets globally with innovative solutions applications

and market-leading products We
operate

in three distinct business

segments Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial

Chemicals Our Agricultural Products segment develops markets and

sells all three
major classes of crop protection chemicals insecticides

herbicides and fungicides with particular strength in insecticides

and herbicides These products are used in agriculture to enhance

crop yield and quality by controlling broad
spectrum

of insects

weeds and disease as well as pest
control in non-agricultural markets

Specialty Chemicals consists of our BioPolymer and lithium businesses

This
segment

focuses on food ingredients that are used to enhance

texture color structure and physical stability pharmaceutical additives

for binding encapsulation and
disintegrant applications ultrapure

biopolymers for medical devices and lithium for
energy storage specialty

polymers and pharmaceutical synthesis Our Industrial Chemicals

segment manufactures wide
range

of inorganic materials including

soda ash hydrogen peroxide specialty peroxygens zeolites and silicates

Through December 31 2010 our Industrial Chemicals
segment

also

held niche position in phosphorous chemicals products however in

November 2010 we made the decision to exit the phosphate business

with the shutdown of our Huelva
facility

in Spain

2011 Highlights

Our businesses continue to experience positive results primarily from

higher volumes and higher pricing Results for 2011 reflect increases in

both consolidated revenues and
earnings in all three of our operating

segments driven by solid performance We also made significant progress

towards our Vision 2015 strategic plan

The following are the more significant developments in our businesses

during the year ended December 31 2011

Revenue of $3377.9 million in 2011 increased $381.2 million or

13 percent versus last year when excluding the $119.6 million impact

of revenues from the exited phosphate and sulfur derivatives businesses

in Spain during 2010 Revenue increased in all businesses and in all

regions more detailed review of revenues by segment are included

under the section entitled Results of Operations On regional

basis- adjusted to exclude exited businesses discussed above- sales in

Europe Middle East and Africa increased eight percent
sales in Asia

were up
19

percent
sales in Latin America grew 22 percent and sales

in North America were up six percent

Our
gross margin of$l167.4 million increased $116.7 million or

approximately 11
percent versus last year Gross margin percent

of

approximately 35 percent increased slightly by one percentage point

compared to last year as higher selling prices were mostly offset by

higher costs

Selling general and administrative
expenses excluding non-operating

pension and postretirement charges of $428 million increased

$36.7 million or approximately nine
percent largely due to increased

spending on targeted growth initiatives and to lesser extent foreign

exchange

Adjusted earnings after-tax from continuing operations attributable

to FMC stockholders of approximately $429 million increased

approximately $68 million or 19 percent primarily due to higher

operating results in all three of our segments and to lesser extent

lower effective tax rate See the disclosure of our Adjusted Earnings

Non-GAAP financial measurement below tinder the section titled

Results of Operations
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ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In 2011 we incurred restructuring charges largely associated with

the phase out of the Sodium Percarbonate plant assets in La Zaida

Spain which represented $21 million charge

We also completed the following Vision 2015 growth initiatives

In July 2011 we established Ruralco Soluciones joint venture

in Argentina to directly access that countrys large and growing

agrochemicals market This acquisition
fits our Vision 2015 strategy

to expand our reach in rapidly developing economies and will allow

FMC to accelerate its growth and market access in Argentinas crop

protection market

In August 2011 we entered into development
and distribution

agreements
with Christian Hansen and Marrone Bio Innovations

respectively for biological products
used in agricultural applications

In September 2011 we formed Natronx Technologies in partnership

with Church Dwight and TATA Chemicals to manufacture

and market sodium-based dry sorbents for air pollution control

in electric utility
and industrial boiler operations

In October 2011 we completed the acquisition of the persulfates

business of RheinPerChemie to accelerate our shift to high-margin

specialty peroxygens
The acquisition strengthens FMC Peroxygens

global reach and immediately broadens our product portfolio for

Europe the Middle East and Africa Additionally the acquisition

of RPC will enable FMC to globalize our specialty peroxygetis

franchises in environmental electronics food safety and other

applications

In November 2011 we completed the acquisition
of South Pole

Biogroup Ltda natural colors and health ingredients producer

to broaden our food ingredients portfolio
The acquisition further

expands our portfolio of natural specialty products
used in the food

beverage personal care nutrition and pharmaceutical
markets

Also in November 2011 we acquired the assets of Adventus

Intellectual Property expanding our growing portfolio of advanced

specialty solutions serving the global site remediation market

adding new bioremediation technology for chlorinated organic

compounds pesticides and hazardous metals that complement our

existing peroxygen-based solutions The acquisition enables FMC

to broaden its growing portfolio of advanced specialty solutions

serving the global site remediation market

In December 2011 we acquired
the Rovral and Sportak fungicide

product
lines from BayerCrop Science These established fungicides

are highly effective resistance management technologies that are

used worldwide with brands well recognized by leading agricultural

customers around the world Rovral and Sportak are registered in

more than 50 countries and are used in wide range of crops

including cereals canola soybean rice potatoes
fruits and vegetables

They offer fungicidal performance in terms of disease control are

well suited to integrated pest management strategies
and are useful

tools in anti-resistance programs

2012 Outlook

In 2012 we expect
another year of solid performance We expect to

have increased revenues driven by higher volumes in our Agricultural

Products segment particularly in Latin America North America and

Asia as result of strong market conditions and higher selling prices

and volumes in both Specialty and Industrial Chemicals

We expect an increase in earnings mostly driven by higher sales as

discussed above Our projected earnings increase is expected to be

partially offset by higher spending on growth initiatives and higher

raw material costs and energy costs We expect
cash flow from our

business segments to remain strong
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Results of Operations20 11 2010 and 2009

Overview

The following presents reconciliation of our segment operating profit to net income attributable to FMC stockholders as seen through the
eyes

of management For management purposes we report
the

operating performance of each of our business
segments

based on earnings before

interest and income taxes excluding corporate expenses other income expense net and
corporate special income/charges

SEGMENT RESULTS RECONCILIATION

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

Revenue

Agricultural Products 1464.5 1241.8 1051.6

Specialty Chemicals 879.1 824.5 753.1

Industrial Chemicals 1038.5 1054.8 1026.7

Eliminations 4.2 4.8 5.2

TOTAL
3377.9 3116.3 2826.2

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Agricultural Products 348.3 309.5 289.0

Specialty Chemicals 199.8 185.0 159.6

Industrial Chemicals 154.5 122.9 89.7

Eliminations 0.1 0.2 0.1

Segment operating profit 702.5 617.6 538.2

Corporate expense 62.5 63.0 44.1
Other inconse expense net 18.7 5.4 30.5

Operating profit before the items listed below 621.3 549.2 463.6

Interest expense net 39.4 39.3 27.0

Corporate special income charges

Restructuring and other charges income 32.4 151.9 132.8

Non-operating pension and postretirement charges income 14.5 19.9 3.0

Acquisition-related charges 0.8 7.1

Provision for income taxes 136.5 132.0 53.0

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 31.8 33.6 18.2

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC STOCKHOLDERS 365.9 172.5 228.5

Results Jhr al/segments including corporate expense
and other income expense are net of nontontrol/ing interests of $16.3 million $12.4 mi/lion mel $10.3 million/hr the years

ended December31 201 2010 and 2009 respectively
7he

majority of these noncontro//ing interests
pertain

to our Industrial chemicals segment

Beginniny in 20/1 we reclassified/hr all periods presented non-operating pension
and

post reti rement charges to its own line item within the above sable
non-operating pension

and postretirement casts are deJIned as those costs related to interest expected return on plan assets amortized actuarial
gains

and losses and the
inspscss of any plan curtailments

or settlements These costs usere previously
included within Other income expense net in the above table and are primarily related to changes in pen ion plan assess and liabilities

svhzch are tied to /lisancial market perJbrmance send use consider these toots to be outside our operational performance We exclude these
non-operaisug pension and

postreesrement
costs as we believe that removing them

provides better understanding of the
underlying profitability of our businesses provides increased transpareayani/ clarity

in she pe/brrnance

of our retirement plans
and enhances period-over-period comparability We continue to include the service cost and amortization ofprior service cost in our sperating segments

noted

above We believe these elements
reflect the current year operating

costs to our businesses
for

the employment benefits provided to active employees

The following chart which is provided to assist the readers of our

financial statements depicts certain after-tax charges gains These

items are excluded by us in the measures we use to evaluate business

performance and determine certain performance-based compensation

These after-tax items are discussed in detail within the Other results of

operations section that follows Additionally the chart below discloses

our Non-GAAP financial measure Adjusted after-tax earnings from

continuing operations attributable to FMC stockholders reconciled

from the GAAP financial measure Net income attributable to FMC

stockholders We believe that this measure provides useful information

about our operating results to investors and securities analysts We also

believe that excluding the effect of restructuring and other income

and charges non-operating pension and postretirement charges and

certain tax adjustments from operating results allows management
and investors to compare more easily

the financial performance of our

underlying businesses from period to period lhis measure should not

be considered as substitute for net income loss or other measures of

performance or liquidity reported in accordance with GAAP
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ADJUSTED EARNINGS RECONCILIATION

PART II

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Years Ended December 31

in Millions
2011 2010 2009

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders AP 365.9 172.5 228.5

Corporate special charges income pre-tax
47.7 171.8 136.9

Income tax expense benefit on Corporate special charges income 15.6 55.2 37.7

Corporate special charges income net of income taxes 32.1 116.6 99.2

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 31.8 33.6 18.2

Tax adjustments 0.9 38.7 43.7

ADJUSTED AFTER-TAX EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC STOCKHOLDERS NON-GAAP 428.9 361.4 302.2

Year Ended December 31 2011 compared to December 31 2010

In the following discussion year refers to the
year

ended December 31 2011 and prior year refers to the year ended December 31 2010 Additionally

in the discussion below please refer to our chart titled Segment Results Reconciliation within the Results of Operations section All comparisons are

between the periods unless otherwise noted

Segment Results

For management purposes segment operating profit is defined as

segment revenue less
segment operating expenses segment operating

expenses
consist of costs of sales and services selling general and

administrative expenses and research and development expenses We

have excluded the following items from segment operating profit

corporate
staff

expense
interest income and expense associated with

corporate debt facilities and investments income taxes gains or losses

on divestitures of businesses restructuring and other charges income

Agricultural Products

Revenue of$ 1464.5 million increased approximately 18
percent versus

the prior year period due to strong sales in North America Latin America

and Asia slightly offset by the expected decline in Europe Middle

East and Africa EMEA North America revenue of $284.4 million

increased 12 percent due to increased volumes as result of
strong

market demand for our pre-emergent herbicides partially offset by

unfavorable weather conditions experienced in the second quarter of

2011 Latin America revenue of $782.5 million increased 25 percent

driven by favorable market conditions particularly in Brazils
sugarcane

cotton and soybean markets and growth in planted acres for key crops

Revenue in Asia of $246.0 million increased 21 percent reflecting

continued strong market conditions particularly in Australia China

Indonesia Thailand Pakistan and India As expected these increases

were partially offset by decline in EMEA revenues of four percent

to $151.6 million The decline was primarily driven by the absence of

sales of our bifenthrin product in Europe which is further discussed

below under Certain Regulatory Issues

Agricultural Products operating profit of $348.3 million increased

approximately 13 percent compared to prior year reflecting the

strong
sales growth partially offset by increased raw material costs and

$24.5 million or 13 percent
increase in selling and administrative

non-operating pension and postretirement charges investment gains

and losses loss on extinguishment of debt asset impairments Last-in

First-out LIFO inventory adjustments acquisition related charges

and other income and expense items

Information about how each of these items relates to our businesses at the

segment
level and results by segment are discussed below and in Note 19

to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K

expenses
for focused growth initiatives higher people-related costs and

unfavorable exchange impacts

In 2012 we expect full-year revenue growth of approximately 10 percent

reflecting increased volumes in all regions particularly in Latin America

North America and Asia due to anticipated strong
market conditions

and growth in new and recently introduced products and the sales impact

of new fungicide products We
expect full-year segment operating profit

growth
of approximately 10

percent
driven by the sales gains partially

offset by higher spending on targeted growth initiatives

Certain Regulatory Issues

In the European Union EU following an administrative appeals process

the European Commissions proposal to exclude our bifenthrin product

from the European Commissions official list of approved pesticides was

adopted on November 30 2009 FMC had an additional six months to sell

bifenthrin in the EU through May 2010 and subsequently in most EU

countries there was up to 6-12 months for further sale by distributors or

dealers and use by farmers On December 30 2010 the French Ministry

of Agriculture issued notice adding bifenthrin along with eight other

pesticidal
active ingredients to the Grenelle list of pesticides While not

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

in Millions
2011 2010

Revenue 1464.5 1241.8 222.7 18%

Operating Profit 348.3 309.5 38.8 13
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superseding the
remaining

sell-out and
usage period allowed by the EU

decision the Grenelle
listing

has had the practical effect of discouraging

product use in France during 2011 At the European level we re-submitted

for reconsideration The European Commission has reviewed the re

consideration dossier arid in December 2011 issued its recommendation

that Bifenthrin he included on the approved product list The Commissions

recommendation will now be voted on by Member States decision is

expected in the first half of 2012 At the French level we believe that the

Grenelle
listing was unwarranted and

contrary to French administrative law

and we are challenging the decision Through these efforts we are seeking to

minimize the interruption in future hifenthrin sales in the European market

During 2012 however we are not selling any
bifenthrin for agricultural

use into the EU and thc absence oi such sales will not have material effect

on the Companys financial condition or results of operations

Specialty Chemicals

We intend to defend vigorously all our products in the U.S EU and

other countries regulatory processes where FMCs pesticide products

will be reviewed in the ordinary course of regulatory programs during

2012 as part
of the ongoing cycle of

re-registration in countries around

the world In 2008 the Brazilian health surveillance agency informed

us that they intend to review carbofuran along with 13 other major

pesticides but has yet to issue any required
formal announcement that

identifies their
specific concerns or preliminary position on re-registration

We are cooperating and defending our product in this
process

Under

the Brazilian regulatory process any
recommendation would require

public notice and comment as well as concurrence from the Brazilian

environmental and agricultural ministries before
any regulatory change

is effective Thus we do not expect sales impact in Brazil in 2012

Revenue in industrial Chemicals was $1038.5 million decrease

of approximately two percent versus the prior year The decrease is

primarily attributable to the exit of our phosphate and sulfur derivative

businesses in Spain during 2010 The absence of phosphate and sulfur

derivatives revenue in 2011 resulted in overall revenue declines in the

segment
of approximately 12

percent
The decline in these revenues

were partially offset by higher pricing across the
segment particularly

in soda ash which impacted revenues by approximately six percent

Higher freight hilling
and favorable

currency impacts increased revenue

by approximately three percent

Alkali revenues of $696.4 million increased 12 percent over the prior

year due to higher pricing particularly in the export market higher

freight billings
and slightly higher volumes Export demand continues

to be robust especially in Asia and Latin America In our domestic

market we experienced higher pricing due to constrained supply while

volume growth continues to be in line with the demand recovery being

experienced in flat glass detergents and chemicals

Peroxygens revenues of $297.4 million increased 10 percent over the

prior year driven primarily by higher pricing and favorable currency

impacts offset by slightly reduced volumes The increased pricing was

primarily in our hydrogen peroxide and specialty persulfates product lines

Year Ended December 31 Increase/ Decrease

in Mi/lions 2011 2010

Revenue 879.1 824.5 54.6 7%

Operating Profit 199.8 185.0 14.8

Revenue in Specialty Chemicals was $879.1 million an increase of Segment operating profit of $1 99.8 million increased eight percent

approximately seven percent versus the prior year The increase was driven versus the print year The increase was primarily driven by the volume

primarily by volume increases and higher pricing
in BioPolymer and

gains higher pricing
and favorable mix in BioPolymer and favorable

favorable
pricing in lithium

specialties
and favorable currency impacts pricing in Lithium offset by adverse weather conditions in Argentina

which impacted mining operations Selling general and administrative

BioPolymer revenue of $654.3 million increased approximately
expenses

increased by 14
percent or $9.8 million to support growth

seven percent
from the

prior year
This increase was due to higher

initiatives
volumes which increased revenue by three

percent
favorable

pricing

which impacted sales by two percent and the impact of stronger In 2012 we expect full-year revenue growth of approximately 10 percent

euro which accotinted for the remaining two percent The volume driven by higher selling prices across the segment and higher volumes

gains and higher pricing were realized in both the food ingredients in BioPolymer and lithium primaries Full-year segment operating

and pharmaceutical markets profit growth is expected to he approximately 10
percent reflecting

higher sales partially offset by higher raw material and energy costs
Lithium revenue of $224.8 million increased approximately six percent

compared to the prior year Currency impacts resulted in one percent As we anticipate ongoing growth for microcrystalline cellulose MCC
increase in revenue while pricing was up

four percent and volumes on global basis especially high in rapidly developing economies in

were flat as compared to prior year
Lithium has been impacted by March 2011 we completed the expansion of our MCC plant in Cork

tightening of supply Ireland The expansion now in full production increased our global capacity

by approximately 25 percent for fond and pharmaceutical grade MCC

Industrial Chemicals

Year Ended December31 Increase/Decrease

in Millions 2011 2010

Revenue 1038.5 1054.8 16.3 2%
Operating Profit 154.5 122.9 31.6 26
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Revenues of $44.7 million were percent higher year over year in

Zeolites and Silicates from $41.0 million in the prior year

Segment operating profit of $154.5 million increased approximately

26 percent versus the year ago period primarily as result of the

higher pricing documented above The exited phosphate and sulfur

derivative businesses had loss of $1.3 million for the year
ended

December 31 2010 Additionally the startup costs associated with

our Grariger soda ash facility were offset by favorable production

efficiencies in Alkali Selling general and administrative costs increased

seven percent or $3.5 million primarily for targeted growth initiatives

In 2012 we expect full-year revenue to be approximately 10 percent due

to higher selling prices in soda ash and peroxygens
and volume growth

in soda ash export markets We expect full-year operating profit growth

of approximately 20
percent

driven by higher sales in soda ash and

peroxygens
and the continued mix shift toward specialty peroxygens

Venezuela Investment

Recent events in Venezuela such as hyperinflation devaluation of

currency government price controls parallel exchange rates and

political issues have created significant
risks and uncertainties for

the Venezuelan subsidiaries of multinational corporations We hold

noncontrolling investment in Venezuelan phosphate business

Tripoliven C.A The value of this investment on our consolidated

balance sheet at December 31 2011 is approximately $9 million While

there has been lag between the declaration and payment to us of

dividends from Tripoliven we did receive dividends from Tripoliven

during 2010 We do not believe there is any impairment of Tripoliven

at December 31 2011 as Tripoliven continues to operate as profitable

business and we expect in the future to recover at least the value of our

investment If our investment in Tripoliven were to be totally impaired

it would have an immaterial impact on our liquidity or consolidated

financial position but the impairment charge would have one-time

effect on our results of operations in the period in which it would be

recorded

Other Results of Operations

Corporate expenses

We recorded expenses of $62.5 million in 2011 compared to

$63.0 million in 2010 The slight decrease was result of reduced

consulting expenses
of approximately $3 million during 2011 compared

to the same period in 2010 Consulting expenses
incurred in the latter

part of 2010 were associated with our global procurement initiative

aimed at reducing the costs of goods and services purchased on world

wide basis The majority of these consulting expenses were not repeated

in 2011 The decrease in consulting expenses were partially offset by

increased costs of approximately $2 million to support our global

growth initiatives Corporate expenses are included as component

of the line item Selling general and administrative expenses on our

consolidated statements of income

Other income expense net

Other expense
increased to $18.7 million in 2011 from $5.4 million

in 2010 The increase was primarily due to expense
related to an

increase in our LIFO inventory reserves in 2011 of $2.6 million versus

2010 where we had reduction in the LIFO reserve of$l0.4 million

resulting in period-to-period change
of $13 million Other income

expense net is included as component of the line item Costs of

sales and services on our consolidated statements of income

Interest expense net

Interest expense net for 2011 of $39.4 million was relatively flat

compared to the same period in 2010 of $39.3 million

Corporate special income charges

Restructuring and other charges income

These charges totaled $32.4 million in 2011 compared to $151.9 million

in 2010 Our restructuring and other charges income are comprised

of restructuring asset disposals and other charges income Please see

the table and further discussion regarding our restructuring
and other

charges income in Note to our consolidated financial statements

included in this Form 10-K Restructuring and asset disposal charges

irs 2011 of $28.0 million were primarily associated with the Sodium

Percarbonate phase-out charges of $21.0 million as well as continuing

charges related to facility restructurings and shutdowns which were

announced in years prior to 2011 Other charges income net in 2011

of $4.4 million was primarily associated with charges of $3.1 million

for environmental remediation at operating sites

Restructuring and asset disposal charges of $127.2 million in 2010 were

primarily associated with the Huelva shutdown charges of $110.4 million

as well as continuing charges related to facility restructuring and

shutdowns which were announced in years prior to 2010 Other charges

income net in 2010 of $24.7 million was primarily associated with

charges of $14.2 million for environmental remediation at operating

sites and $5.7 million charge related to our Agricultural Products

segment acquiring certain rights to herbicide still under development

The
activity

of the
restructuring charges listed above are also included

within Note to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K We believe the restructuring plans implemented are on

schedule and the benefits and savings either have been or will be achieved

Non-operating pension and postretirement charges

income

The charge for 2011 was $14.5 million compared to $19.9 million for

2010 The decrease in charges is primarily the result of settlement

charge of $7.3 million recorded in 2010 associated with the acceleration

of previously deferred pension actuarial losses The acceleration was

triggered by lump-sum payout to our former Chairman and CEO in

2010 No such event occurred for the year ended December 31 2011

On the consolidated statements of income these charges are included

in Selling general and administrative expenses

Acquisition-related charges

The charge in 2011 of $0.8 million related to the expensing of the

inventory fair value step-up resulting from the application of purchase

accounting The charges for year ended December 31 2011 relate to

number of acquisitions completed in 2011 On the consolidated

statements of income these charges for all years presented are included in
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Costs of sales and services No such charges occurred for the year ended

December 31 2010 See Note to our consolidated financial statements

included in this Form 0-K for more information on our acquisitions

Provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes was $136.5 million for 2011 compared

to provision of $132.0 million for the prior year period resulting in

effective tax rates of 24.8
percent and 37.7 percent respectively The

change in the effective tax rate was primarily result of the change

in tax adjustments recorded in 2011 and 2010 as described below

2011 tax adjustments were favorable in the amount of $0.9 million

primarily related to reduction of approximately $15 million for our

liability for unrecognized tax benefits due to settlements of audits

mostly offset by net valuation allowance increases of approximately

$13 million The valuation allowance increase was primarily related

to foreign operations because of our expectation that the tax losses

at these operations are not expected to be fully recoverable in future

years
from the

earnings

2010 tax adjustments were unfavorable in the amount of $38.7 million

and are primarily result of
recording $40 million valuation allowance

in our Spanish legal entity predominantly due to the Huelva
facility

shutdown for tax losses that are not expected to be fully recoverable

in future
years

from the
earnings

of the
remaining

businesses in that

entity 2010 tax adjustments were also impacted by $3.6 million

tax charge associated with the tax treatment of the Medicare Part

subsidy which was enacted as part
of the recent U.S health care

reform legislation The unfavorable tax adjustments were partially

offset by reduction in our liability
for unrecognized tax benefits due

to settlements of audits and
expiration

of statute of limitation and

recognition of various tax credits

Excluding the impact of these tax adjustments our effective tax rate in

2011 was 25.0 percent versus 26.6 percent in 2010 This decrease in

the effective tax rate is primarily due to changes in the mix of domestic

income compared to income earned outside of the U.S In 2011

larger portion of our foreign earnings were earned by our operations

in Hong Kong and Ireland which have lower tax rates than the U.S

These foreign operations service our global businesses and we anticipate

that they will continue to be larger source of earnings for FMC

Discontinued operations net of income taxes

Our discontinued operations represent adjustments to retained liabilities

primarily related to operations discontinued between 1976 and 2001

The primary liabilities retained include environmental liabilities

other post-retirement benefit liabilities self-insurance and long-term

obligations related to legal proceedings

Discontinued operations net of income taxes totaled charge of

$31.8 million for 2011 compared to charge of $33.6 million 2010

The charges for 2011 were primarily related to an increase in reserves

associated with our Front Royal site operating and maintenance

activities for number of environmental sites and charges for legal

reserves and
expenses

related to discontinued
operations

The charges for 2010 were primarily related to an increase in the

provision for environmental issues at our Middleport site as well as

operating and maintenance activities for number of environmental

sites and charges for
legal reserves and

expenses
related to discontinued

operations

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders increased to $365.9 million

for 2011 from $172.5 million for 2010 The increase was primarily

due to higher operating profits in all three of our segments lower

effective tax rate and lower restructuring and other charges income
These items were partially offset by the increase in LIFO inventory

adjustments

Year ended December 31 2010 compared to December 31 2009

In the following discussion year refers to the year ended December 31 2010 and prior year refers to the
year

ended December 31 2009

Additionally in the discussion below please refer to our chart titled Segment Results Reconciliation within the Results of Operations section

All comparisons are between the periods unless otherwise noted

Segment Results

Agricultural Products

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

in Millions 2010 2009

Revenue 1241.8 1051.6 190.2 18%

Operating Profit 309.5 289.0 20.5

Revenue of $1 24 1.8 million increased 18 percent versus the prior year

as higher sales were recognized in North America Latin America and

Asia North America revenue increased 15 percent to $252.0 million due

to strong
demand for our proprietary herbicides growth from new and

recently introduced products particularly our newly acquired herbicide

fluthiacet-methyl and improving
market conditions in some non-crop

segments Europe Middle East and Africa revenue of $158.7 million were

flat year over year Latin America revenue of $628.9 million increased

24 percent due to improved market conditions particularly in the

sugarcane cotton soybeans corn and tobacco
segments

and growth

in new and recently introduced products Revenue in Asia increased

21 percent to $202.1 million reflecting better market conditions the

introduction of new products and growth in most countries particularly

India Indonesia Australia and China
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Segment operating profit of $309.5 million increased seven percent

compared to the prior year period reflecting strong
sales performance

partially
offset by higher first-half inventory and distribution costs and

selling and administrative expenses Higher selling and administrative

Specialty
Chemicals

Revenue in Industrial Chemicals was $1054.8 million an increase of

approximately
three

percent versus the prior-year period An increase in

volumes across the segment increased revenues by eight percent
which

was offset by seven percent decline in pricing Soda ash revenues were

up
due to increased volumes particularly in the export market partially

offset by lower prices The segment experienced volume increases in

peroxygens
and phosphates offset by reduced selling prices

for these

products The higher volumes in the segment also resulted in increased

freight billings which increased revenue by three percent The segment

Other Results of Operations

Corporate expenses

We recorded expenses of $63.0 million in 2010 compared to $44.1 million

in 2009 The increase was primarily due to increased incentive compensation

expense
of $8.0 million and consulting expense of $7.9 million compared

to the prior year
The increase in consulting services was result of several

new initiatives primarily involving global procurement
aimed at reducing

the costs of goods and services purchased on world-wide basis

Other income expense net

Other income expense net is comprised primarily of LIFO inventory

adjustments Other expense was $5.4 million in 2010 compared to

$30.5 million in 2009 The decrease was due primarily to income

related to $25.6 million decrease in our LIFO inventory reserves

expenses
of $33.7 million or 22

percent
increase were primarily due to

foreign exchange impacts higher spending on growth initiatives and

increased people-related costs

was also negatively impacted by $12 million or one percent
decrease

due to lower electricity sales due to the divestiture of Spanish co

generation facility
in the third quarter of 2009 In Spain we operate

electricity co-generation facilities and sell excess electricity into the

Spanish electrical grid

Segment operating profit of $122.9 million increased approximalely

37 percent versus the year ago period driven by the
strong

demand

recovery and lower raw material and energy costs which more than

offset lower selling prices across the segment

Interest expense net

The 2010 net interest expense increased to $39.3 million compared to

$27.0 million in 2009 primarily due to higher interest rates associated

with our senior bond offering in the fourth quarter 2009 whose proceeds

were used to pay
off lower variable rate debt under our committed

credit facilities

Corporate special income charges

Restructuring and other charges income

These charges were $151.9 million in 2010 compared to $132.8 million

in 2009 Refer to page 25 for description of these charges incurred

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

in Millions
2010 2009

Revenue 824.5 753.1 71.4 9%

Operating Profit 185.0 159.6 254 16

Revenue in Specialty Chemicals was $824.5 million an increase of Lithium revenues of $213.0 million increased 22
percent

from the

approximately nine percent versus the prior-year period The increase prior-year period primarily due to higher volumes driven by improving

was driven primarily by robust demand recovery in lithium
primaries

economic conditions slightly offset by lower pricing Higher volumes

and
strong

commercial performance in BioPolymer
increased revenue by 29 percent

while the lower pricing negatively

impacted revenues by seven percent
The

improving economic conditions

BioPolymer revenues oî $611.5 million increased six percent from the

in lithium are driven primarily by growth in battery and metals markets

prior-year period This increase was primarily due to higher volumes
in Asia

which increased revenue by five percent BioPolymer experienced

broad-based volume gains across both food and pharmaceutical markets Segment operating profit of$ 185.0 million increased 16 percent versus

Additionally improved pricing and mix increased revenue driven the year ago period as volume gains in lithium primaries favorable

primarily by higher pricing in food ingredients commercial performance in BioPolymer and the benefits of productivity

initiatives were partially offset by higher raw material costs

Industrial Chemicals

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

in Millions
2010 2009

Revenue 1054.8 1026.7 28.1 3%

Operating Profit 122.9 89.7 33.2 37
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during 2010 During 2009 in
response to weaker market conditions

we made number of decisions in that year to realign some of our

operating assets We made the decisions to shut down the
peroxygens

manufacturing facility in Santa Clara Mexico lithium facility in

Bayport Texas operations in Barcelona Spain and our lithium metal

production unit in Bromborough UK We incurred restructuring and

asset disposal charges in 2009 of $81.5 million primarily as result of

these decisions Other charges income net in 2009 of $51.3 million

were primarily associated with $29.9 million of
legal matters mostly in

our Industrial Chemicals
segment as well as charges of $20.2 million

for environmental remediation at operating sites Legal matters in

our Industrial Chemicals
segment mostly had to do with charge of

$21.0 million in connection with the resolution of regulatory matter as

well as $3.3 million charge related to the settlement of
legal

matter

Non- operating pension and postretireinen charges
ilicolne

The
charge

for 2010 was $19.9 million compared to income of

$3.0 million for 2009 The increase in charges is result of amortization

related to pension asset losses incurred in prior periods and decrease

in actual plan discount rates from 2009 to 2010 The charge for 2010

was also impacted by $7.3 million settlement charge associated

with the acceleration of previously deferred pension actuarial losses

The acceleration was triggered by lump-sum payout to our former

Chairman and CEO

Acquisition -rein ted charges

The
charges in 2009 of $7.1 million related to the

expensing
of the

inventory fair value step-up resulting from the application of purchase

accounting The charges for
year

ended December 31 2009 relate to

2008 acquisition in our Specialty Chemicals segment and 2009

acquisition in our Agricultural Products segment Additionally the

amount in 2009 includes inventory adjustments related to the third

quarter 2008 acquisition in our Specialty Chemicals segment and

subsequent alginates business restructuring

Provision for income taxes

We recorded provision of $132.0 million in 2010 compared
with

provision of $53.0 million in 2009 resulting in effective tax rates of

37.7 percent
and 17 percent respectively The effective tax rate was

impacted by tax adjustments recorded in 2010 and 2009 Refer to page

26 for description of these tax adjustments recorded during 2010

The tax adjustments recorded in 2009 are described below

2009 tax adjustments were favorable in the amount of $43.7 million and

were primarily result of reduction in our liability for unrecognized

tax benefits due to favorable settlements of tax audits and the expiration

of statutes of limitations as well as the reversal of certain domestic

related tax valuation allowances These domestic valuation allowances

were no longer necessary
because of our expectation that the related

deferred tax assets were likely to be realized

Excluding the impact of these tax adjustments our effective tax rate in

2010 was 26.6 percent versus 31.1 percent in 2009 The fluctuation is

primarily the result of the mix of domestic income compared to income

we earn domestically as income earned outside of the U.S is typically

taxed at rates lower than income earned inside the U.S

Discontinued operations net of income tax

Discontinued operations net of income tax totaled loss of $33.6 million

in 2010 versus loss of $18.2 million in 2009 Refer to page
26

for description of our 2010 charges The 2009 loss is primarily

related to environmental
charges

associated with our Front Royal and

Middleport sites and operating and maintenance activities for number

of environmental sites partially offset by recoveries related to our Front

Royal site The 2009 loss also includes charges for legal reserves and

expenses
related to discontinued operations

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders decreased to $172.5 million

in 2010 compared with $228.5 million in 2009 The decrease was

primarily due to higher restructuring and other charges income
and increased

corporate expenses interest expense income taxes and

environmental charges Partially offsetting these decreases were higher

profits across all segments

28 FMC CORPORATION Form 10-K



Liquidity and Capital Resources

PART II

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2011 and 2010 were

$158.9 million and $161.5 million respectively Of the cash and cash

equivalents balance at December 31 2011 $82.1 million were held

by our foreign subsidiaries Our intent is to reinvest permanently the

earnings of our foreign subsidiaries and therefore we have not recorded

additional taxes that would be payable if we repatriated
these

earnings

In the event that funds from our foreign subsidiaries are repatriated

to the U.S we would be required to accrue and pay U.S taxes on

those amounts

At December 31 2011 we had total debt of $825.6 million as compared

to $637.9 million at December 31 2010 This included $779.1 million

and $503.0 million of long-term debt excluding current portions of

$19.5 million and $116.4 million at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively Other short-term debt which consists solely of foreign

borrowings increased to $27.0 million at December 31 2011 compared

to $18.5 million at December 31 2010

2011 Credit Agreement

On August 2011 we executed new revolving
credit

facility
referred

to as the 2011 Credit Agreement The 2011 Credit Agreement provides

for $1.5 billion unsecured revolving credit
facility $300 million of

which is available for the issuance of letters of credit for the account

of the Company and certain foreign subsidiaries Borrowers and

$50 million of which is available for swing line loans to certain Borrowers

with an expansion feature subject to certain conditions to increase

the
facility to $2.25 billion

There were no borrowings
under the 2011 Credit Agreement at

inception and our prior domestic and European credit agreements

dated as of August 28 2007 and February 21 2008 respectively were

terminated at that time

Loans under the 2011 credit
agreement

will bear interest at either

floating rate which will be base rate or Eurocurrency rate equal

to the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate for the relevant term plus in

each case an applicable margin The applicable fully-drawn margin
is

1.13 percent per year subject to adjustment based on the credit rating

assigned to our senior unsecured debt We are required to pay facility

fee on the total amount of the credit facility
The initial

facility
fee is

0.15 percent per year The applicable margin
and the

facility
fee are

subject to adjustment based on the rating assigned to our long-term

senior unsecured debt

Among other restrictions the 2011 Credit Agreement contains financial

covenants applicable to FMC and its consolidated subsidiaries related

to leverage measured as the ratio of debt to adjusted earnings and

interest coverage measured as the ratio oi adjusted earnings to interest

expense Our actual leverage
for the four consecutive quarters

ended

December 31 2011 was 1.4 which is below the maximum leverage

of 3.5 Our actual interest
coverage

for the four consecutive quarters

ended December 31 2011 was 15.9 which is above the minimum

interest coverage of 3.5 We were in compliance with all covenants at

December31 2011

2011 Senior Notes

On November 22 2011 we issued $300 million
aggregate principal

amount of 3.95 percent Senior Notes due 2022 The net proceeds

from the offering were used for general corporate purposes including

acquisitions
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Statement of Cash Flows

ash provided by operating activities was $425.6 million $399.7 million and $343.5 million for 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

The table below
presents

the
components

of net cash provided by operating activities

Twelve months ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Income from
continuing operations

before
equity in earnings loss of a1llsates interest income

and expense and income taxes 587.3 387.1 334.7

Significant non-cash expenses 198.4 268.8 198.2

Operating income before non-cash expenses Non-GAAP 785.7 655.9 532.9

Change in trade receivables 77.9 109.9 59.3

Change in inventories 110.5 7.9 35.4

Change in accounts payable 69.3 106.6 71.5

Change in accrued rebates 15.3 33.2 13.7

Change in all other operating assets and liabilities 1.6 25.5 78.9

Restructuring and other spending 87.3 53.4 37.4

Environmental spending continuing net of recoveries 12.0 8.9 7.4

Pension and other postretirement benefit contributions 67.0 105.2 93.4

Cash basis operating income Non-GAAP 517.2 535.9 391.9

Interest payments 36.3 38.4 24.3

Tax payments 47.9 41.5 24.1

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 7.4 56.3

Cash provided by operating activities 425.6 399.7 343.5

Represents the sum of depreciation amortization non-cash asset write down share-based tompensation and
pension charges

Overall the use of cash for trade receivables in each
year

is primarily due to revenue increases particularly for Agricultural Produtts sales in Brazil where terms are significantly longer

than the rest of our businesses The
changes year over year primarily represent timing

associated with receivables collections

The
change

in
inventory from 2010 to 2011 resulted in use of cash

primarily
due to an inventory

build to fllflll projected
2012

first quarter
demand in

Agricultural Iroducts

particularly in North America and Latin America The change from 2009 to 2010 was largely driven by higher sales in 2010 as well as in 2009 inventories decreasedfrom the end

of2008 due to lower
inventory costs in Industrial Chemicals particularly for

the exited phosp hate rock produtt line

The source of cash in 2011 was driven by continued focus on vendor terms and trade
practices

as well as the increased
inventory

build at the end sf2011 to satisfo projected demand

In 2010 accounts payable
increased as result

ofhigher focus on payables management The 2009 accounts payable use of cash was due to the higher cost phosp hate rock in
payables

at the end sf2008 which was replaced by lower cost phosphate rock at the end of2009

These rebates are associated with our Agricultural Products
segment

andare primarily in North America and Brazil and generally settle in the fourth quarter of each
year

The changes

in
year over yearfor each

year presented in the table above is primarily associated with
timing ofpayments

Changes in all periods presented primarily represent timing ofpayments associated with all other operating assets and liabilities

See Note in our consolidatedflnancial statements included in this Form 10-Kforfurcher details Included in 2011 amounts is the
approximate

$44 million payment associated

with the European Union fine See Note 18 in our consolidatedflnancial included in this Form 10-Kfor further details

Included in our income for each of the
years presented are environmental charges of $3.1 million $14.2 million and $20.2 million for environmental and remediation at our

operating
sites which will be

spent
in

years beyond 2011 The amounts in this row
represent

environmental remediation spending at our
operating

sites which were recorded against

pre-existing reserves

Amounts include voluntary contributions to our US defined benefit plan of $55 million $80 million and $75 million respectively In 2010 the amount also includes lump-sum

payout ofapproximately
$15 million from our nonqualsfied pension plan

10 The signfIcant increase in excess tax benefits in 2010 which are
presented

as afinancing activity
in the statement of cash flows from share-based

compensation
was due to the use ofour

remaining US Federal net
operating

losses in 2010 As result we recognized in 2010 excess tax benefits generated in
years

2006 through 2010 Excess tax benefits in 2011
represent

excess tax benefits generated solely in
year

2011 See Note 14 to our consolidacedflnancial statements included in this Form I0-Kfor further discussion on these excess tax benefIts

rash required by operating activities of discontinued rash required by investing
iictizitics was

operations was $44.3 million $45.2 million and $358.0 million $154.0 million aiid200.7millionfo

$42.0 million far 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively 2011 2010 ancl2009 respectively

The decrease from 2010 to 2011 is result of reduced spending on The change from 2010 to 2011 was primarily due to the acquisitions

legal proceedings partially offset by increased spending on discontinued completed during 2011 and higher capital spending associated with

environment sites The change in 2010 compared to 2009 was due to capacity expansions as compared to 2010 See Note to the consolidated

higher spending on legal proceedings associated with discontinued financial statements included within this Form 10-K for more information

operations partially offset by lower net environmental spending in on the 2011 acquisitions The decrease in cash required in 2010 as

2010 Discontinued environmental spending was $21.1 million in 2011 compared to 2009 was driven primarily by reduction in acquisitions

compared to $17.1 million in 2010 and $22.1 million in 2009 The and capital expenditures

remaining discontinued cash outflows primarily represents spending against

reserves for
legal proceedings associated with discontinued operations
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Cash required by financing activities was $25.3 million

$116.6 million and $77.8 million in 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

The change in 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily due to the

issuance of our senior debt notes during 2011 which resulted in

cash inflow of approximately $300 million This inflow was partially

offset by repayments of other long term debt during the year
and

increased capital stock repurchases as compared to 2010 The change

from 2009 to 2010 was due primarily to the repurchases of common

stock and lower proceeds from borrowings
of long term debt partially

offset by lower repayments
under our committed credit facilities and

the inclusion of excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Other potential liquidity needs

Our cash needs for 2012 include operating
cash requirements capital

expenditures
scheduled mandatory payments

of long-term debt

dividend payments
share repurchases contributions to our pension

plans environmental and asset retirement obligation spending and

restructuring We plan to meet our liquidity needs through available

cash cash generated from operations and borrowings under our

committed revolving
credit

facility

Projected 2012 capital expenditures are expected to be approximately

30 percent higher than 2011 levels primarily to increase capacity in

BioPolymer lithium and soda ash

Projected 2012 spending
includes approximately $40 million of

net environmental remediation spending This spending does not

include expected spending of approximately $10 million in 2012 on

capital projects relating to environmental control facilities Also we

expect to spend approximately $30 million in 2012 for environmental

compliance costs which we will include as component of costs of

sales and services in our consolidated statements of income since these

amounts are not covered by established reserves Capital spending to

expand maintain or replace equipment at our production
facilities

may trigger requirements for upgrading our environmental controls

which may increase our spending
for environmental controls above

the foregoing projections

Our U.S Pension Plan assets increased slightly from $842.4 million

at December 31 2010 to $853.9 million at December 31 2011 Our

U.S Pension Plan assets comprise approximately 93 percent
of our

total plan assets with the difference representing plan assets related to

foreign pension plans Due to lower market return expectations we are

reducing our long-term rate of return assumption to 7.75 percent for

2012 from 8.5 percent
used in 2011 See Note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements included within this Form 10-K for details on how

we develop our long-term rate of return assumptions In order to reduce

future funding volatility we intend to contribute $65 million in 2012

which is in excess of the minimum requirements versus contributions

of $55 million in 2011 and $80 million in 2010 We do not believe

that the additional contribution will have significant negative impact

on our current and future liquidity
needs However continuation

of the volatility of interest rates and negative equity returns under

current market conditions may require greater
contributions to the

Plan in the future

On February 18 2011 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase

of up to $250.0 million of our common stock At December 31 2011

$139.8 million remained unused from the authorization On

February 17 2012 the Board authorized the repurchase of up to

an additional $250.0 million of our common stock The repurchase

program
does not include specific

timetable or price targets
and may be

suspended or terminated at any time Shares may be purchased through

open
market or privately negotiated transactions at the discretion of

management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other

factors During the year
ended December 31 20112053478 shares

were repurchased under the publicly announced repurchase program
for

$165.1 million From time to time we acquire shares from employees

in connection with the vesting exercise and forfeiture of awards under

our equity compensation plans

On July 21 2010 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act was signed into law Title VII of the Act contains

significant changes in the ways
derivatives are regulated Several U.S

government regulatory agencies
and departments are charged

with

developing
the many regulations required

under the new law While

the exact effects on FMC cannot be known until final regulations are

promulgated we believe our liquidity requirements will be adequately

met by the sources available to us

Commitments

We provide guarantees to financial institutions on behalf of certain

Agricultural
Products customers principally in Brazil for their

seasonal borrowing
The total of these guarantees was $18.5 million

and $24.1 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

and are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets for each date as

Guarantees of vendor financing

Short-term debt consisted of foreign credit lines at December 31 2011

and 2010 We provide parent-company guarantees
to lending institutions

providing credit to our foreign
subsidiaries

We continually evaluate our options for divesting real estate holdings

and
property plant and equipment

that are no longer integral to our

operating businesses In connection with our property
and asset sales

and divestitures we have agreed to indemnify the buyer for certain

liabilities including
environmental contamination and taxes that

occurred prior to the date of sale Our indemnification obligations

with
respect to these liabilities may be indefinite as to duration and

may or may not be subject to deductible minimum claim amount

or cap As such it is not possible for us to predict the likelihood that

claim will be made or to make reasonable estimate of the maximum

potential loss or range
of loss If triggered we may be able to recover

certain of the indemnity payments from third
parties

We have not

recorded any specific liabilities for these guarantees
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Our total significant committed contracts that we believe will affect cash over the next four years and beyond are as follows

Contractual Commitments Expected Cash Payments by Year

in Millions 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016beyond Total

Debt maturities 46.5 5.7 32.5 0.1 743.1 827.9

Contractual interest 37.1 36.7 30.5 35.8 287.7 433.8

Lease obligations 27.4 28.6 26.5 28.8 41.8 153.1

Certain long-term liabiliOcs 2.3 5.7 6.2 6.3 58.0 78.5

Forward energy and foreign exchange

contracts

Non-contingent acquisition payable 25.9 25.9

Purchase obligations 32.0 21.2 2.4 0.8 19.7 76.1

TOTAL 171.2 97.9 104.1 71.8 1150.3 1595.3

Exluding discounts

Contractual interest is the interest we are contracted to pay on our lang-term
debt

obligations We had $17.7 million of long-term
debt

subject to variable interest rates at

December31 2011 The rate assumed for the variable interest component of the contractual interest obligation was the rate in ejfect at December .31 2011 Variable rates are market
determined and willfluctuate over time

Before sublease rental income

Payments associated with our Ewing research and development facility and our Shanghai innovation center

At December31 2011 the net value of these contracts results in net asset
position

See Note to the consolie/.atedJInancial statements within this Form 10-K

Purchase obligations consist ofagreements to purchase goods and services that are enforceable and
legally binding on us and specsfr all

sign 11 cant terms including fixed or minimum
quantities

to be purchased price provisions
and

timing of the transaction We have entered into number
ofpurchase obligations for the

sourcing of materials and energy where take-

or-pay arrangements apply
Since the

majority of the minimum obligations under these contracts are take-or-pay commitments over she Ii of the contract as opposed to
year by year

take-sr-pay the obligations in the table related to these
types of contacts are presented

in the earliest
period in which the minimum

obligation
could he

payable under these
types of

contracts

As of December31 2011 the
liability for uncertain tax positions was $8.1 million and this

liability is excluded from the table above Due to the
high degree of uncertainty regarding

the
timing of potential /iiture

cash
flows associated with these liabilities we are unable to make

reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and
periods in which these liabilities

might be paid

Contingencies

See Note to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K

Climate Change

We have been
following legislative and regulatory developments

regarding climate change because the regulation of greenhouse gases

depending on their nature and
scope could subject some of our

manufacturing operations to additional costs or limits on operations On
Iecember 29 2009 EPAS Mandatory Reporting of Greenhouse Gases

Rule became effective This rule requires FMC to collect information

regarding greenhouse gas emissions from our large sources and
report

them beginning in 2011 Our Alkali Chemicals Division mines and

processes trona ore into soda ash and related products at our facilities

near Green River Wyoming This
activity constitutes most of FMCs

greenhouse gas
emissions

globally In 2011 we reported to the EPA

under the Greenhouse Gas reporting rule
approximately 1.6 million

metric tons of direct emissions from these operations for 2010 In

2012 we will report approximately 1.9 million metric tons of direct

emissions from these operations for 2011 The reason for the increase in

emissions was that during 2011 we re-commissioned the first phase of

natural soda ash capacity at our Green River
facility

known as Granger

We expect the total greenhouse gas emissions from our Green River

Wyoming operations to increase further in 2012 reflecting full
year

of operations at the Granger facility

In addition two plants in our BioPolymer business also
reported

emissions above the EPAS reporting threshold but each plants emissions

are substantially less than at our Green River facilities in total less than

0.1 million metric tons

significant source of greenhouse gas emissions at Green River are

process emissions That is significant portion of the greenhouse

gases released during the
mining and processing of soda ash occurs

naturally in the trona ore feedstock Unlike the situation with
energy

efficiency where efficiencies may result in reduction of greenhouse

gases the amount of greenhouse gases present in the trona ore cannot

be reduced All of the
companies producing natural soda ash have

such
process emissions Yet the lower

energy intensity of natural soda

ash provides favorable carbon intensity compared with synthetic

soda ash produced throughout the rest of the world Even with the

additional emissions from the
operation of the Granger facility our

carbon emission intensity is expected to remain favorable
compared

to our synthetic soda ash competition

Soda ash is an essential raw material in the production of glass of all

kinds Climate
change energy intensity and alternative forms of

energy

will drive increased production of new forms of
glass lower emissivity

glass solar panel glass etc and will increase the need for this essential

raw material from FMC The soda ash industry has an interest in
assuring

that climate
change legislation or regulation recognizes the benefits of

soda ash particularly natural soda ash and the challenges facing this

industry in controlling its greenhouse gas
emissions
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It is not possible at this time to predict whether or when Congress may

enact climate change legislation in the United States or what provisions

might be included in the final legislation In the absence of federal

climate change legislation
EPA has moved forward with finding

of endangerment and promulgated tailoring rule to apply the

Prevention of Significant Deterioration PSD provisions of the Clean

Air Act to greenhouse gas
emissions This rule is being challenged in

court We have announced engineering of major process optimization

involving solution mining to return Granger to nameplate capacity

Although
the innovative

process
will reduce our energy

and carbon

intensity if approved by the Board of Directors this optimization project

may require review for greenhouse gas
emissions by EPA Such

review could impact project schedule or cost

Because of the many variables it is premature to make any estimate of

the costs of complying with un-enacted federal climate change legislation

or as yet un-implemented federal regulations
in the United States

However we are aware of the potential impacts
that could result from

emissions regulations in the U.S that are more stringent than those

experienced by our global competitors These could make it more

difficult for us to competitively produce natural soda ash at Green

River reduction in natural soda ash production as result of more

stringent regulations in the U.S would lead to more greenhouse gas

emissions globally
because the lost supply

of natural soda ash would

be replaced by the more costly and more greenhouse gas
intensive

synthetic soda ash

At this point our U.S facilities are not subject to any state or regional

greenhouse gas regulation that limits or imposes fees on current

emissions and our foreign operations outside of Europe and Canada

are not subject to national or local greenhouse gas regulation Although

some of our European and Canadian operations may be subject to

greenhouse gas regulation the cost to these facilities has not been and

is not expected to be material to FMC

We have considered the potential physical
risks to FMC facilities and

operations
and the indirect consequences of regulation or business

trends as result of potential future climate change Because of the many

variables not only with respect to the science but also with
respect to

the nature and effect of future global climate change regulation itself

it is impossible to predict in any meaningful way what type
of

property

damage or disruptions to our operations or indirect
consequences might

result from future climate change

Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting

Pronouncements and Regulatory Items

See Note to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles U.S GAAP The

preparation
of these financial statements requires us to make estimates

and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities

revenues and
expenses

We have described our accounting policies

in Note to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K We have reviewed these accounting policies identifying

those that we believe to be critical to the preparation and understanding

of our consolidated financial statements We have reviewed these critical

accounting policies
with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Critical accounting policies are central to our presentation of results

of operations and financial condition in accordance with U.S GAAP

and require management to make estimates and judgments on certain

matters We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience

current conditions and other reasonable factors

Environmental obligations
and related recoveries

We provide for environmental-related obligations
when they are

probable and amounts can be reasonably estimated Where the available

information is sufficient to estimate the amount of
liability

that estimate

has been used Where the information is only sufficient to establish

range
of probable liability

and no point within the range is more likely

than any other the lower end of the range has been used

Estimated obligations to remediate sites that involve oversight by the

United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA or similar

government agencies are generally accrued no later than when Record

of Decision ROD or equivalent is issued or upon completion of

Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study RIIFS or equivalent that

is submitted by us to the appropriate government agency or agencies

Estimates are reviewed quarterly by our environmental remediation

management as well as by financial and legal management and if

necessary adjusted as additional information becomes available The

estimates can change substantially as additional information becomes

available regarding the nature or extent of site contamination required

remediation methods and other actions by or against governmental

agencies or private parties

Our environmental liabilities for continuing and discontinued operations

are principally
for costs associated with the remediation and/or study

of sites at which we are alleged to have released hazardous substances

into the environment Such costs principally include among other

items RI/FS site remediation costs of operation and maintenance of

the remediation plan management costs fees to outside law firms and

consultants for work related to the environmental effort and future

monitoring costs Estimated site liabilities are determined based upon

existing remediation laws and technologies specific site consultants

engineering studies or by extrapolating experience with environmental

issues at comparable sites

Included in our environmental liabilities are costs for the operation

maintenance and monitoring of site remediation plans OMM Such

reserves are based on our best estimates for these OMM plans Over

time we may incur OMM costs in excess of these reserves However

we are unable to reasonably estimate an amount in excess of our recorded

reserves because we cannot reasonably estimate the period
for which

such OMM plans will need to be in place or the future annual cost

of such remediation as conditions at these environmental sites change

over time Such additional OMM costs could be significant in total

but would be incurred over an extended period of
years

Included in the environmental reserve balance other assets balance and

disclosure of reasonably possible loss contingencies are amounts from

third party insurance policies which we believe are probable of recovery
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Provisions for environmental costs are reflected in income net of

probable and estimable recoveries from named Potentially Responsible

Parties PRPs or other third parties Such
provisions incorporate

inflation and are not discounted to their
present values

In calculating and evaluating the adequacy of our environmental reserves

we have taken into account the joint and several
liability imposed by

Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability

Act CERCLA and the analogous state laws on all PRPs and have

considered the identity and financial condition of the other PRPs at

each site to the extent possible We have also considered the identity

and financial condition of other third
parties from whom

recovery

is anticipated as well as the status of our claims against such
parties

Although we are unable to forecast the ultimate contributions of PRPs

and other third parties with absolute
certainty the degree of uncertainty

with
respect to each

party is taken into account when determining the

environmental reserve by adjusting the reserve to reflect the facts and

circumstances on site-by-site basis Our
liability

includes our best

estimate of the costs expected to be paid before the consideration of

any potential recoveries from third parties We believe that
any recorded

recoveries related to PRPs are realizable in all material respects Recoveries

are recorded as either an offset in Environmental liabilities continuing

and discontinued or as Other Assets in our consolidated balance

sheets in accordance with U.S accounting literature

See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for changes in estimates associated with our environmental

obligations

Impairments and valuation of
long-lived assets

Our long-lived assets include
property plant and equipment and

long-term investments goodwill and intangible assets We test for

impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the net

book value of these assets may not be recoverable from the estimated

undiscounted expected future cash flows expected to result from their

use and eventual
disposition In cases where the estimated undiscounted

expected future cash flows are less than net book value an impairment

loss is recognized equal to the amount by which the net book value

exceeds the estimated fair value of assets which is based on discounted

cash flows at the lowest level determinable The estimated cash flows

reflect our assumptions about selling prices volumes costs and market

conditions over reasonable period of time

We perform an annual impairment test of goodwill in the third
quarter

The
assumptions used to estimate fair value include our best estimate

of future growth rates discount rates and market conditions over

reasonable period We performed this test in 2011 and determined that no

impairment charge was required See Note to our consolidated financial

statements included in this Form 10-K for newly issued accounting

guidance associated with the annual impairment test requirements

See Note to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for charges associated with long-lived asset disposal costs

and the activity associated with the
restructuring reserves

Pensions and other postretirement benefits

We provide qualified and nonqualified defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans as well as postretirement health care

and life insurance benefit plans to our employees and retirees The

costs benefits and obligations related to these benefits reflect key

assumptions related to general economic conditions including interest

discount rates healthcare cost trend rates expected rates of return

on plan assets and the rates of
compensation increase for employees

The costs benefits and
obligations for these benefit

programs are also

affected by other
assumptions such as average

retirement
age mortality

employee turnover and plan participation To the extent our plans

actual experience as influenced by changing economic and financial

market conditions or by changes to our own plans demographics

differs from these assumptions the costs and obligations for providing

these benefits as well as the plans funding requirements could increase

or decrease When actual results differ from our assumptions the

difference is typically recognized over future periods In addition the

unrealized gains and losses related to our pension and postretirement

benefit obligations may also affect periodic benefit costs benefits in

future periods

We use several assumptions and statistical methods to determine

the asset values used to calculate both the expected rate of return on

assets component
of pension cost and to calculate our plans funding

requirements The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on

market-related value of assets that
recognizes investment gains and

losses over five-year period We use an actuarial value of assets to

determine our plans funding requirements The actuarial value of

assets must be within certain
range high or low of the actual market

value of assets and is adjusted accordingly

We select the discount rate used to calculate pension and other

postretirement obligations based on review of available yields on

high-quality corporate bonds as of the measurement date In selecting

discount rate as of December 31 2011 we placed particular emphasis

on discount rate yield-curve provided by our actuary This yield-

curve when populated with projected cash flows that represented the

expected timing and amount of our plans benefit payments produced

single effective interest discount rate of 4.95
percent

which was used

to measure the plans liabilities

The discount rates used at our December 31 2011 and 2010 measurement

dates were 4.95
percent

and 5.40 percent respectively The effect of

the change in the discount rate from 5.40 percent to 4.95 percent at

December 31 2011 resulted in $60.6 million increase to our pension

and other postretirement benefit
obligations The effect of the change

in the discount rate from 5.90 percent at December 31 2009 to

5.40 percent at December 31 2010 resulted in $6.5 million increase

to 2011 pension and other postretirement benefit expense

The change in discount rate from 5.40 percent at December 31 2010

to 4.95 percent at December 31 2011 was attributable to decrease in

yields on high quality corporate bonds with cash flows matching the

timing and amount of our expected future benefit payments between

the 2010 and 2011 measurement dates Using the December 31 2010

yield curve our plan cash flows produced single weighted-average
discount rate of approximately 5.40

percent Matching our plan cash

flows to similarly constructed curve reflecting high-yielding bonds

available as of December 31 2011 resulted in single weighted-average

discount rate of approximately 4.95 percent

In
developing the assumption for the long-term rate of return on assets

for our U.S Plan we take into consideration the technical analysis

performed by our outside actuaries including historical market returns

information on the assumption for long-term real returns by asset class

inflation
assumptions and expectations for standard deviation related
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to these best estimates We also consider the historical performance

of our own plans trust which has earned compound annual rate oi

return of approximately 9.36 percent over the last 20 years which is

in excess of comparable market indices for the same period as well

as other factors which are discussed in Note 13 to our consolidated

financial statements in this Form 10-K Additionally see discussion

on long-term rate of return under Other Potential Liquidity
Needs

on page 31

For the sensitivity of our pension costs to incremental changes in

assumptions see our discussion below

Sensitivity analysis related to key pension and

postretirement benefit assumptions

one-half percent increase in the assumed discount rate would have

decreased pension and other postretirement
benefit obligations by

$66.9 million and $60.7 million at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively and decreased pension and other postretirement
benefit

costs by $6.5 million $6.4 million and $3.1 million for 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively one-half percent
decrease in the assumed discount

rate would have increased pension and other postretirement benefit

obligations by $73.7 million and $66.6 million at December 31 2011

and 2010 respectively
and increased pension and other postretirement

benefit net periodic benefit cost by $6.6 million $6.5 million and

$4.5 million for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

one-half
percent

increase in the assumed expected long-term rate of

return on plan assets would have decreased pension costs by $4.6 million

$4.5 million and $4.2 million for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

one-half percent decrease in the assumed long-term rate of return

on plan assets would have increased pension costs by $4.6 million

$4.5 million and $4.2 million for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Further details on our pension and other postretirement benefit

obligations and net periodic benefit costs benefits are found in

Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K

Income taxes

We have recorded valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets

to the amount that we believe is more likely than not to be realized

In assessing the need for this allowance we have considered number

of factors including
future taxable income the jurisdictions in which

such income is earned and our ongoing tax planning strategies
In

the event that we determine that we would not be able to realize all

or part of our net deferred tax assets in the future an adjustment to

the deferred tax assets would be charged to income in the period such

determination was made Similarly should we conclude that we would

be able to realize certain deferred tax assets in the future in excess of

the net recorded amount an adjustment to the deferred tax assets

would increase income in the period such determination was made

Additionally we file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction

and various state and foreign jurisdictions The income tax returns for

FMC entities taxable in the U.S and significant foreign jurisdictions

are open
for examination and adjustment We assess our income tax

positions and record liability
for all years open to examination based

upon our evaluation of the facts circumstances and information

available at the reporting date For those tax positions where it is more

likely than not that tax benefit will be sustained we have recorded

the largest amount of tax benefit with greater than 50% likelihood of

being realized
upon

ultimate settlement with taxing authority that has

full knowledge of all relevant information We adjust these liabilities

if necessary upon the completion of tax audits or changes in tax law

See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for additional discussion surrounding income taxes

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are

reasonably likely to have current or future effect on our financial

condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses
results

of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources that

is material to investors

Dividends

On January 19 2012 we paid dividends aggregating $10.5 million to our

shareholders of record as of December 30 2011 This amount is included

in Accrued and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets as

ofDecember 31 2011 For the years
ended December 3120112010

and 2009 we paid $41.2 million $36.4 million and $36.3 million in

dividends respectively On February 17 2012 the Board authorized

an increase in the quarterly dividend from $0.15 to $0 18 per
share

to shareholders of record as of March 30 2012

Fair Value Measurements

See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements included in

this Form 10-K for additional discussion surrounding our fair value

measurements
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk

Our earnings cash flows and financial position are exposed to market

risks relating to fluctuations in commodity prices interest rates and

foreign currency exchange rates Our policy is to minimize
exposure

to our cash flow over time caused by changes in commodity interest

and
currency exchange rates To accomplish this we have implemented

controlled program of risk management consisting of appropriate

derivative contracts entered into with major financial institutions

The analysis below
presents the sensitivity of the market value of our

financial instruments to selected changes in market rates and prices

Commodity Price Risk

The
range

of changes chosen reflects our view of changes that are

reasonably possible over
one-year period Market-value estimates are

based on the present value of projected future cash flows considering

the market rates and
prices chosen

At December 31 2011 our net financial instrument position was

net liability of $5.9 million compared to net liability of $6.8 million

at December 31 2010 The change in the net financial instrument

position was primarily due to lower unrealized losses in our commodity

and foreign exchange portfolios

Energy costs are approximately nine
percent

of our cost of sales and

services and are diversified among coal electricity and natural
gas

We attempt to mitigate our exposure to increasing energy costs by

hedging the cost of future deliveries of natural
gas

and by entering

into fixed-price contracts for the purchase of coal and fuel oil To

analyze the effect of changing energy prices we have performed

sensitivity analysis in which we assume an instantaneous 10 percent

change in
energy market prices from their levels at December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 with all other variables including interest

rates held constant 10
percent increase in

energy
market

prices

would result in decrease in the net liability position of $2.5 million

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

at December 31 2011 compared to $3.4 million decrease of the

net liability position at December 31 2010 10 percent decrease in

energy
market prices would result in an increase of $2.5 million in the

net liability position at December 31 2011 compared to an increase

of $3.4 million of the net
liability position at December 31 2010

Our Agricultural Products segment enters into contracts with certain

customers in Brazil to exchange our products for future physical delivery

of soybeans To mitigate the price risk associated with these barter

contracts we enter into offsetting derivatives to hedge our exposure

As of December 31 2011 our net financial instrument position was

immaterial As of December 31 2010 we had no such contracts in place

The primary currencies for which we have
exchange rate exposure are

the U.S dollar versus the euro the U.S dollar versus the Chinese
yuan

and the U.S dollar versus the Brazilian real Foreign currency debt and

foreign exchange forward contracts are used in countries where we do

business thereby reducing our net asset exposure Foreign exchange

forward contracts are also used to hedge firm and highly anticipated

foreign currency cash flows

To analyze the effects of changing foreign currency rates we have

performed sensitivity analysis in which we assume an instantaneous

10 percent change in the foreign currency exchange rates from their levels

at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 with all other variables

Interest Rate Risk

including interest rates held constant 10
percent strengthening of

hedged currencies versus our functional currencies would have resulted in

an increase of $2.4 million in the net asset position at December 31 2011

compared to an increase of $33.3 million in the net liability position at

December 31 2010 10
percent weakening of hedged currencies versus

our functional currencies would have resulted in decrease of $2.1 million

in the net asset position at December 31 2011 compared to decrease

of $31.1 million in the net
liability position at December 31 2010

As result at December 31 2011 the net asset position would have

become net liability position whereas the net liability position at

December 31 2010 would have become net asset position

One of the
strategies that we can use to manage interest rate exposure

is to enter into interest rate swap agreements In these agreements we

agree to exchange at specified intervals the difference between fixed

and variable interest amounts calculated on an agreed-upon notional

principal amount As of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

we had no interest rate swap agreements

Our debt portfolio at December 31 2011 is composed of 95 percent

fixed-rate debt and five
percent

variable-rate debt The variable-rate

component of our debt portfolio principally consists of borrowings

under our 2011 credit
agreement variable-rate industrial and pollution

control revenue bonds and amounts outstanding under foreign subsidiary

credit lines Changes in interest rates affect different portions of our

variable-rate debt portfolio in different ways

Based on the variable-rate debt in our debt portfolio at December 31 2011

one percentage point increase in interest rates then in effect would have

increased
gross

interest
expense by $0.4 million and one percentage

point decrease in interest rates then in effect would have decreased
gross

interest
expense by $0.3 million for the

year
ended December 31 2011
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The following are included herein

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years
ended Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2011 and 2010 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009
Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

FMC Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31

in Millions Fxeepr Per Share Data
2011 2010 2009

ftenue 3377.9 3116.3 2826.2

Costs and Expenses

Costs of sales and services
2210.5 2065.6 1943.6

Gross Margin
1167.4 1050.7 882.6

Selling general and administrative expenses
442.5 411.2 322.3

Research and deselopmenr expenses
105.2 100.5 2.8

Restructuring and other charges income 32.4 151.9 132.8

Total costs and expenses
2790.6 2729.2 2491.5

Income from continuing operations before equity in earnings loss of afliliates

interest income and expense and income taxes
587.3 387.1 334.7

Ilquity in earnings loss of affiliates
2.6 2.7 2.3

Interest income
0.1 0.2 0.2

lnLeresr expense
39.5 39.5 27.2

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
550.5 350.5 310.0

Provision for Income taxes
136.5 132.0 53.0

Income from continuing operations
414.0 218.5 257.0

Discontinued operations net of income t.txes
31.8 33.6 18.2

Net income
382.2 184.9 238.8

ess Net inconse an ributable to noncontrolling interests 16.3 12.4 10.3

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders 365.9 172.5 228.5

Amounts attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations net of income taxes
397.7 206.1 246.7

Discontinued operations net of income taxes
31.8 33.6 18.2

NET INCOME 365.9 172.5 228.5

Basic earnings loss per common share attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations
5.58 2.84 3.40

Discontinued operations
0.45 0.46 0.25

NET INCOME 5.13 2.38 3.15

Diluted earnings loss per common share attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations
5.54 2.82 3.37

Discontinued operations
0.44 0.46 0.25

NET INCOME 5.10 2.36 3.12

he ao ompoiving plates sin an sstecral part of
t/.ese consohd.itedJinancsal siarenenis
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FMC Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2011
in Millions Except Share and Par Value Data 2010

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 158.9 161.5

Trade receivables net ofallowance of$21.5 in 2011 and $21.7 in 2010 931.3 852.9

Inventories
470.3 347.8

Prepaid and other current assets 173.4 175.3

Deferred income taxes
135.5 108.7

Total current assets
1869.4 1646.2

Investments
28.3 22.4

Properry plant and equipment net 986.8 918.5

Goodwill
225.9 194.4

Other intangibles net
187.3 54.0

Other assets
198.9 169.7

Deferred income taxes
246.9 314.7

TOTAL ASSETS
3743.5 3319.9

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-term debt
27.0 18.5

Current portion of long-term debt
19.5 116.4

Accounts payable trade and other
458.3 389.3

Accrued and other liabilities
186.2 223.0

Accrued payroll 70.6 66.3

Accrued customer rebates
15.1 100.9

Guarantees of vendor financing 18.5 24.1

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits current 9.2 9.5

Income taxes
5.5 5.4

Total current liabilities
919.9 963.4

Long-term debt less current portion 779.1 503.0

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits long-term 368.7 307.5

Environmental liabilities continuing arid discontinued 213.3 209.9

Reserve for discontinued operations 41.6 38.6

Other long-term liabilities
116.8 108.3

Commitments and contingent liabilities Note 18

Equity

Preferred stock no par value authorized 5000000 shares no shares issued in 2011 or 2010

Common stock $0.10 par value authorized 130000001 shares in 201 and 2010 92991896 issued shares

in 2011 and 2010
9.3 9.3

Capital in excess of
par value of common stock

463.8 443.6

Retained earnings 2176.2 1853.0

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 390.0 311.7

Treasury stock common at cost 23154738 shares in 2011 and 21506052 shares in 2010 1018.7 862.7
Total FMC stockholders equity 1240.6 1131.5

Noncontrolling interests
63.5 57.7

Total equity 1304.1 1189.2

TOTAl LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3743.5 3319.9
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated Jinancial statements
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FMC Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

in Millions
2011 2010 2009

Cash provided required by operating activities of continuing operations

Net income
382.2 184.9 238.8

Discontinued operations
31.8 33.6 18.2

Income from continuing operations
414.0 218.5 257.0

Adjustments from income from continuing operations to cash provided required

by operating activities of continuing operations

Depreciation and amortization
126.6 133.6 127.2

Equity in earnings loss of affiliates
2.6 2.7 2.3

Restructuring and other charges income 32.4 151.9 132.8

Deferred income taxes
89.8 32.1 49.9

Pension and other postretirement benefits
35.1 39.4 14.3

Share-based compensation
15.8 14.7 11.2

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation
7.4 56.3

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effect of acquisitions and divestitures

Trade receivables net
77.9 109.9 59.3

Guarantees of vendor financing
5.6 25.4 29.2

Inventories
110.5 7.9 35.4

Other current assets and other assets
1.5 31.6 24.9

Accounts payable
69.3 106.6 71.5

Accrued and other current liabilities and other liabilities
2.1 2.6 3.6

Accrued payroll

4.2 14.2 6.4

Accrued customer rebates
15.3 33.2 13.7

Income taxes
2.8 59.4 21.0

Pension and other postretirement
benefit contributions 67.0 105.2 93.4

Environmental spending continuing net of recoveries 12.0 8.9 7.4

Restructuring and other spending
87.3 53.4 37.4

Cash provided required by operating activities
425.6 399.7 343.5

Cash provided required by operating activities of discontinued operations

Environmental spending discontinued net of recoveries 21.1 17.1 22.1

Payments of other discontinued reserves
23.2 28.1 19.9

Cash provided required by operating activities of discontinued operations 44.3 45.2 42.0

The accompanying notes are an integral pare of these consolidatedjInancialstatesnenrs
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FMC Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Continued

Year Ended December 31
in Millions

2011 2010 2009
Cash provided required by Investing activities

Capital expenditures 189.5 142.3 161.2
Proceeds from disposal of propert plant and equipment 1.2 2.6 3.9

Acquisitions net of cash acquired 148.1 7.5 34.3
Investments in nonconsolidated affiliates 3.2
Other investing activities 18.4 6.8 9.1

Cash provided required by investing activities 358.0 154.0 200.7
Cash provided required by financing activities

Net borrowings repayments under committed credit facilities 369.2
Increase decrease in short-term debt 9.0 14.9 5.1
Proceeds from borrowing of long-term debt 300.2 35.0 379.1

I.inancing fees
8.5 2.6

Repayments of long-term debt 121.3 26.0 3.5
Distributions to noncontrolling interests 12.9 1.0 13.4
Dividends paid 41.2 36.4 36.3
Issuances of common stock net 11.3 18.1 10.2

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 74 56.3

Repurchases of common stock tinder publicly announced program 165.1 35.0 35.0
Other repurchases of common stock

4.2 2.7 1.6
Other financing activities

0.4
Cash provided required by financing activities 25.3 116.6 77.8
Lifect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 0.6 1.0 1.2

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 2.6 84.9 24.2

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 161.5 76.6 52.4

CASH AND CASH EQUWALENTS END OF PERIOD 158.9 161.5 76.6

Cash
paid for interest net of capitalized interest was $36.3 million $38.4 million and $24.3 million and income taxes paid net of refunds was

$47.9 million $41.5 million and $24.1 million in December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

See Note for non-cash investing and financing activities representing non-contingent and
contingent consideration related to 2011 acquisitions

See Note 15 regarding quarterly cash dividend

The
accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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FMC Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

FMC Stockholders

Common Capital
Accumulated Other Non-

Stock $0.10 In Excess Retained Comprehensive Treasury controlling Total

in Millions Except Per Share Iara Par Value of Par Earnings Income Loss Stock Interest Equity

Balance December 31 2008 9.3 395.5 1524.7 276.1 750.5 63.5 966.4

Net income
228.5 10.3 238.8

Stock compensation plans
7.3 28.5 21.2

Shares for benefit plan trust
0.6 0.6

Reclassification adjustments for losses gains included

in net income net of income tax expense of$ 16.2
25.4 25.4

Net llnreali7ed pension and other benefit acwarial

gainsllosses
and

prior
service costs credits

net of income tax benefit of $28.6
53.5 53.5

Net deferral of hedging gains losses and other

net of income tax expense of $3.0
7.6 7.6

Acquisition
of noncontrolling interest

0.4 3.2 2.8

Foreign currency translation adjustments
17.4 0.5 16.9

Dividends $0.50 per share
36.3 36.3

Repurchases of common stock
36.6 36.6

Distributions to noncontrolling interests
13.4 1.1.4

Balance December 31 2009 9.3 388.6 1716.9 279.2 759.2 56.7 1133.1

Net income 172.5
12.4 184.9

Stock compensation plans
1.3 34.1 32.8

Excess taX benefits from share-based compensation 56.3
56.3

Shares for benefit plan trust
0.1 0.1

Reclassification adjustments for losses gains included

in net income net of income tax expense of$13.7
22.4 22.4

Net unrealized pension and other benefit actuarial

gains/losses and prior service Costs credits

net of income tax benefit of $16.3
23.4 23.4

Net deferrjl of hedging gains losses and other

net of income tax benefit of $3.6
5.9 5.9

Foreign currency translation adjustments
25.6 0.4 26.0

Dividends $0.50 per share 36.4 36.4

Repurcha.ses of common stock
137.7 137.7

Distributions to noncontrolling interests
11.0 11.0

Balance December 31 2010 9.3 443.6 1853.0 311.7 862.7 57.7 1189.2

Net income
365.9 16.3 382.2

Stock compensation plans
12.8 14.1 26.9

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation
7.4

7.4

Shares for benefit plan trust
0.8 0.8

Redassifkation adjustments for losses gains included

in net income net of inconse tax expense of$ 6.S
26.7 26.7

Net unrealized pension
and other benefit actuarial

gainsllosses
and prior service costs credits

net of income tax benefit of $46.6
80.3 80.3

Net deferr.tl of hedging gains losses and other

net of income tax benefit of $5.6
10.3 10.3

Foreign currency translation adjustments
14.4 0.6 15.0

Dividends cO.60 per share
42.7 42.7

Repurchases of common stock
169.3 169.3

Noncontrolling interests associated

with an acquisition see Note
3.0 3.0

Distributions to noncontrolling interests
12.9 12.9

Balance December 31 2011 9.3 463.8 $2176.2 390.0 1018.7 63.5 $1304.1

The aceompaning notes are an integral parr of
these consolidated fInancial statements
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FMC Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31
in Millions

2011 2010 2009
Net income

382.2 184.9 238.8
Reclassific.irion adjustments for losses gains included in net income net of income tax

expense of516.S $13.7 and $16.2 for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively 26.7 22.4 25.4

Foreign currency translation adjustment 15.0 26.0 16.9

Net deferral of hedging gains losses and other 10.3 5.9 7.6

Net unrealized pension and other benefit actuarial gains/losses arid prior service costs
credits

80.3 23.4 53.5
Comprehensive income

303.3 152.0 235.2

Less Comprehensive income attributable to the noncontrolling interest 15.7 120 9.8

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC STOCKHOLDERS 287.6 140.0 225.4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolicl.acedfInancial statements
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NOTE Principal Accounting Policies and Related Financial Information

Nature oi operations

We are diversified chemical company serving agricultural consumer

and industrial markets globally with innovative solutions applications

and market-leading products We operate in three distinct business

segments Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial

Chemicals Our Agricultural Products
segment develops markets and

sells all three major classes of crop protection chemicals insecticides

herbicides and fungicides with particular strength in insecticides

and herbicides These products are used in agriculture to enhance

crop yield and quality by controlling broad spectrum of insects

weeds and disease as well as pest
control in non-agricultural markets

Specialty Chemicals consists of our BioPolymer and lithium businesses

This segment focuses on food ingredients that are used to enhance

texture color structure and physical stability pharmaceutical additives

for binding encapsulation and disintegrant applications ultrapure

biopolymers for medical devices and lithium for energy storage specialty

polymers and pharmaceutical synthesis Our Industrial Chemicals

segment
manufactures wide

range
of inorganic materials including

soda ash hydrogen peroxide specialty peroxygens zeolites and silicates

Through December 31 2010 our Industrial Chemicals segment also

held niche position in phosphorous chemicals products however in

November 2010 we made the decision to exit the phosphate business

via the shutdown of our Huelva facility in Spain See Note

Basis of consolidation and basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FMC Corporation

and its subsidiaries were prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America Our

consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FMC and all

entities that we directly or indirectly control All
significant intercompany

accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation

Estimates and assumptions

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP we are required to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue

and
expenses during the

reporting period Actual results are likely to

differ from those estimates but we do not believe such differences will

materially affect our financial position results of operations or cash flows

Cash equivalents

We consider investments in all liquid debt instruments with original

maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Trade receivable net of allowance

Trade receivables consist of amounts owed to us from customer sales

and are recorded when revenue is recognized The allowance for trade

receivables represents our best estimate of the probable losses associated

with potential customer defaults In developing our allowance for trade

receivable we utilize two stage process
which includes calculating

general formula to develop an allowance to appropriately address the

uncertainty surrounding collection risk of our entire portfolio and

specific allowances for customers where the risk of collection has been

reasonably identified either due to liquidity constraints or disputes over

contractual terms and conditions

Our method of calculating
the

general formula consists of
estimating

the recoverability of trade receivables based on historical experience

current collection trends and external business factors such as economic

factors including regional bankruptcy rates and political factors Our

analysis of trade receivable collection risk is performed quarterly and

the allowance is adjusted accordingly The allowance for trade receivable

is $21.5 million and $21.7 million as of December 31 2011 and 2010

The provision to the allowance for trade receivables charged against

operations was $3.8 million $4.3 million and $5.8 million for the

years
ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Investments

Investments in companies in which our ownership interest is 50 percent

or less and in which we exercise significant influence over operating and

financial policies are accounted for using the equity method Under the

equity method original investments are recorded at cost and adjusted

by our share of undistributed earnings
and losses of these investments

Majority owned investments in which our control is restricted are also

accounted for using the equity method All other investments are carried

at their fair values or at cost as appropriate We are party to several

joint venture investments throughout
the world which individually

and in the aggregate are not significant to our financial results

On September 22 2011 we in conjunction with Church Dwight

and TATA Chemicals formed joint venture Natronx Technologies

LLC Natronx We hold one-third ownership interest in Natronx

Our investment is accounted for using the equity method The joint

venture will
engage

in the manufacturing and marketing of sodium-

based dry sorbents for air pollution control in electric utility and

industrial boiler operations Natronx intends to invest approximately

$60 million to construct 450000 ton per year facility
in Wyoming

to produce trona sorbents during 2012

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value Inventory

costs include those costs directly attributable to products before sale

including all manufacturing overhead but excluding
distribution costs

All domestic inventories excluding materials and supplies are determined

on last-in first-out LIFO basis and our remaining inventories are

recorded on first-in first-out FIFO basis See Note
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Property plant and equipment

We record propert plant and equipment including capitalized interest

at cost Depreciation is provided principally on the
straight-line

basis over

the estimated useful lives of the assets land improvements20 years

buildings20 to 40 years and machinery and equipment3 to

18 years Gains and losses are reflected in income
upon

sale or retirement

of assets Expenditures that extend the useful lives of
property plant

and equipment or increase productivity are capitalized Ordinary repairs

and maintenance are expensed as incurred through operating expense

Impairments of long-lived assets

We review the recovery of the net book value of long-lived assets whenever

events and circumstances indicate that the net book value of an asset

may not be recoverable from the estimated undiscounted future cash

flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition In cases

where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the net

book value we recognize an impairment loss equal to an amount by

which the net book value exceeds the fair value of the asset Long-lived

assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount

or fair value less cost to sell

Asset retirement obligations

We record asset retirement obligations at fair value at the time the

liability
is incurred if we can reasonably estimate the settlement date The

associated asset retirement obligations AROs are capitalized as part

of the carrying amount of related long-lived assets In future periods

the
liability

is accreted to its present value and the capitalized cost is

depreciated over the useful life of the related asset We also adjust the

liability
for changes resulting from the

passage
of time and/or revisions

to the timing or the amount of the original estimate Upon retirement

of the long-lived asset we either settle the obligation for its recorded

amount or incur gain or loss See Note for further discussion on

our AROs

Restructuring and other charges

We continually perform strategic reviews and assess the return on our

businesses This sometimes results in plan to restructure the operations

of business We record an accrual for severance and other exit costs

under the provisions of the relevant
accounting guidance

Additionally as part
of these

restructuring plans write-downs of long-

lived assets may occur Two types of assets are impacted assets to be

disposed of by sale and assets to be abandoned Assets to be disposed

of by sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or estimated

net proceeds from the sale Assets to be abandoned with no remaining

future service potential are written down to amounts expected to be

recovered The useful life of assets to be abandoned that have remaining

future service potential are adjusted and depreciation is recorded over

the adjusted useful life

Capitalized interest

We capitalized interest costs of $6.9 million in 2011 $7.5 million in

2010 and $3.8 million in 2009 These costs were associated with the

construction of certain long-lived assets and have been capitalized as

part
of the cost of those assets We amortize capitalized interest over

the assets estimated useful lives

Capitalized software

We capitalize the costs of internal use software in accordance with

accounting literature which generally requires the capitalization of

certain costs incurred to develop or obtain internal use software We

assess the recoverability of capitalized software costs on an ongoing

basis and record write-downs to fair value as necessary We amortize

capitalized software costs over expected useful lives
ranging from three to

10
years See Note 20 for the unamortized computer software balarLces

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets intangibles are

not subject to amortization Instead they are subject to at least an

annual assessment for impairment by applying fair value-based test

We test goodwill for impairment annually using
the criteria prescribed

by U.S GAAP accounting guidance for goodwill and other intangible

assets We did not record any goodwill impairments in 2011 2010 and

2009 Based upon our annual impairment test conducted in 2011

we believe that the fair value of our reporting units with goodwill

substantially exceeds their carrying value

Finite-lived
intangible assets consist primarily of patents access rights

customer relationships trade names registration rights industry licenses

developed formulations and other intangibles and are being amortized

over periods of to 25 years See Note for additional information

ott goodwill and intangible assets

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue when the
earnings process is complete which

is generally upon transfer of title This transfer typically occurs either

upon shipment to the customer or upon receipt by the customer In all

cases we apply the following criteria in recognizing revenue persuasive

evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the
selling price

is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured Rebates

due to customers are accrued as reduction of revenue in the same

period that the related sales are recorded based on the contract terms

We record amounts billed for shipping and handling fees as revenue

Costs incurred ior shipping and handling are recorded as costs of sales

and services

Income and other taxes

We provide current income taxes on income reported for financial

statement purposes adjusted for transactions that do not enter into

the computation of income taxes payable and recognize deferred

tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of

temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax basis
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of assets and liabilities We do not provide income taxes on the equity

in undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries or affiliates when

it is our intention that such
earnings

will remain invested in those

companies Investment tax credits or grants which were immaterial

to us in all years presented are accounted for in the period earned the

flow-through method

We record on net basis all taxes collected from customers to be remitted

to governmental authorities in our consolidated statements of income

Foreign currency translation

We translate the assets and liabilities of our foreign operations at exchange

rates in effect at the balance sheet date The foreign operations income

statements are translated at the monthly exchange rates for the period

For operations where the local currency is the functional currency we

record translation gains and losses as component of accumulated

other comprehensive income or loss in stockholders equity until the

foreign entity is sold or substantially liquidated In countries where the

local currency is not the functional currency except for property plant

and equipment and other non-current assets which are converted to

functional currencies at historical exchange rates all
gains or losses from

conversion are included in net income Net income loss for 2011 2010

and 2009 included aggregate transactional foreign currency gains and

losses We recorded net gain loss of $23.1 million $15.5 million and

$7.5 million for the
years ended December 31 20112010 and 2009

respectively Other comprehensive income or loss for 2011 2010 and

2009 included translation gains losses of $l4.4 million $25.6 million

and $17.4 million respectively

The value of the U.S dollar and other currencies in which we operate

continually fluctuate Results of operations and financial position for all

the
years presented have been affected by such fluctuations We enter into

certain foreign exchange contracts to mitigate the financial risk associated

with this fluctuation as discussed in Note 17 These contracts typically

qualify for hedge accounting
See Derivative financial instruments

below and Note 17

Derivative financial instruments

We mitigate certain financial exposures including currency risk interest

rate risk and commodity price exposures through
controlled

program
of

risk management that includes the use of derivative financial instruments

We enter into foreign exchange contracts including forward and purchased

option contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign currency

exchange rates

We recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value On the

date the derivative instrument is entered into we generally designate the

derivative as either hedge of the
variability

of cash flows to be received

or paid related to forecasted transaction cash flow
hedge or hedge

of the fair value of recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized

firm commitment fair value hedge We record in accumulated other

comprehensive income or loss changes in the fair value of derivatives

that are designated as and meet all the required criteria for cash flow

hedge We then
reclassify

these amounts into earnings as the underlying

hedged item affects earnings We record immediately in earnings changes

in the fair value of derivatives that are not designated as cash flow hedges

We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments

and hedged items as well as the risk
management objective and

strategy

for
undertaking various hedge transactions This process includes relating

derivatives that are designated as fair value or cash flow hedges to
specific

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific
firm commitments

or forecasted transactions We also formally assess both at the inception

of the hedge and throughout its term whether each derivative is highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged

item If we determine that derivative is not highly effective as hedge

or if derivative ceases to be highly effective hedge we discontinue

hedge accounting with
respect to that derivative prospectively

Treasury stock

We record shares of common stock repurchased at cost as treasury stock

resulting in reduction of stockholders equity in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets When the
treasury

shares are contributed under our

employee benefit plans we use first-in first-out FIFO method for

determining cost The difference between the cost of the shares and the

market price at the time of contribution to an employee benefit plan is

added to or deducted from
capital in excess of

par value of common stock

Segment information

We determined our reportable segments
based on our strategic

business

units the commonalities among the products and services within each

segment and the manner in which we review and evaluate operating

performance

We have identified Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and

Industrial Chemicals as our reportable segments Segment disclosures

are included in Note 19 Segment operating profit is defined as segment

revenue less
segment operating expenses segment operating expenses

consist of costs of sales and services selling general and administrative

expenses and research and development expenses We have excluded

the following items from
segment operating profit corporate

staff

expense interest income and
expense associated with

corporate debt

facilities and investments income taxes gains or losses on divestitures

of businesses restructuring and other charges income investment

gains and losses loss on extinguishment of debt asset impairments

LIFO inventory adjustments acquisition related costs non-operating

pension and postretirement charges and other income and
expense

items

Information about how restructuring and other charges income relate

to our businesses at the
segment

level is discussed in Note

Segment assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that are recorded

and reported by segment operations Segment operating capital employed

represents segment assets less
segment

liabilities Segment assets exclude

corporate
and other assets which are principally cash equivalents the LIFO

reserve on inventory deferred income taxes eliminations of intercompany

receivables and
property

and equipment not attributable to specific

segment Segment liabilities exclude substantially all debt income taxes

pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities environmental reserves

and related recoveries restructuring reserves deferred gains on sale and

leaseback of equipment fair value of
currency contracts intercompany

eliminations and reserves for discontinued operations

Geographic segment revenue is based on the location of our customers

Geographic segment long-lived assets include investments net property

plant and equipment and other non-current assets Geographic segment

data is included in Note 19
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Stock compensation plans

We recognize compensation expense
in the financial statements for

all share options and other equity-based arrangements Share-based

compensation cost is measured at the date of grant based on the fair

value of the award and is recognized over the employees requisite

service period See Note 14 for further discussion on our share-based

compensation

Environmental obligations

We provide for environmental-related obligations
when they are

probable and amounts can be reasonably estimated Xhere the available

information is sufficient to estimate the amount of liability that estimate

has been used Where the information is only sufficient to establish

range
of probable liability

and no point within the
range

is more likely

than
any other the lower end of the

range
has been used

Estimated obligations to remediate sites that involve oversight by the

United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA or similar

government agencies are generally
accrued no later than when Record

of Decision ROD or equivalent
is issued or upon completion of

Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study RI/FS or equivalent

that is submitted by us and the appropriate government agency
or

agencies Estimates are reviewed quarterly and if necessary adjusted

as additional information becomes available The estimates can change

substantially as additional information becomes available regarding
the

nature or extent of site contamination required
remediation methods

and other actions by or against governmental agencies or private parties

Our environmental liabilities for continuing and discontinued operations

are principally for costs associated with the remediation and/or study

of sites at which we are alleged to have released hazardous substances

into the environment Such costs principally include among other

items RI/FS site remediation costs of operation and maintenance of

the remediation plan management costs fees to outside law firms and

consultants for work related to the environmental effort and future

monitoring costs Estimated site liabilities are determined based
upon

existing remediation laws and technologies specific site consultants

engineering
studies or by extrapolating experience with environmental

issues at comparable sites

Included in our environmental liabilities are costs for the operation

maintenance and monitoring of site remediation plans OMM Such

reserves are based on our best estimates for these OMM plans Over

time we may incur OMM costs in excess of these reserves However

we are unable to reasonably estimate an amount in excess of our recorded

reserves because we cannot reasonably estimate the period for which

such OMM plans
will need to be in place or the future annual cost

of such remediation as conditions at these environmental sites change

over time Such additional OMM costs could be significant in total

but would be incurred over an extended period of
years

Included in the environmental reserve balance other assets balance and

disclosure of reasonably possible loss contingencies are amounts from

third party insurance policies which we believe are probable
of

recovery

Provisions for environmental costs are reflected in income net of

probable and estimable recoveries from named Potentially Responsible

Parties PRPs or other third parties Such provisions incorporate

inflation and are not discounted to their present values

In calculating and evaluating the adequacy of our environmental reserves

we have taken into account the joint
and several liability imposed by

Comprehensive Environmental Remediation Compensation
and

Liability Act CERCLA and the analogous state laws on all PRPs

and have considered the identity and financial condition of the other

PRPs at each site to the extent possible We have also considered the

identity and financial condition of other third parties from whom

recovery is anticipated as well as the status of our claims against such

parties Although we are unable to forecast the ultimate contributions

of PRPs and other third parties
with absolute certainty the degree

of

uncertainty
with

respect to each party is taken into account when

determining the environmental reserve on site-by-site basis Our

liability
includes our best estimate of the costs expected to be paid

before the consideration of any potential recoveries from third parties

We believe that
any

recorded recoveries related to PRPs are realizable

in all material respects
Recoveries are recorded as either an offset in

Environmental liabilities continuing and discontinued or as Other

Assets in our consolidated balance sheets in accordance with U.S

accounting literature

Pension and other postretirement benefits

We provide qualified and nonqualified
defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans as well as postretirement
health care and

life insurance benefit plans to our employees and retirees Effective

July 2007 all of our newly hired and rehired salaried and nonunion

hourly employees are no longer eligible
for our defined benefit pension

plans The costs or benefits and obligations related to these benefits

reflect key assumptions related to general economic conditions including

interest discount rates healthcare cost trend rates expected rates

of return on plan assets and the rates of compensation increase for

employees The costs or benefits and obligations for these benefit

programs are also affected by other assumptions such as average

retirement age mortality employee turnover and plan participation

To the extent our plans actual experience as influenced by changing

economic and financial market conditions or by changes to our own

plans demographics differs from these assumptions the costs and

obligations for providing these benefits as well as the plans funding

requirements
could increase or decrease When actual results differ

from our assumptions the difference is typically recognized over future

periods In addition the unrealized gains
and losses related to our

pension
and postretirement

benefit obligations may also affect periodic

benefit costs or benefits in future periods See Note 13 for additional

information relating to pension and other postretirement
benefits

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the

current years presentation
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NOTE Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements and Regulatory Items

New accounting guidance and regulatory items

Balance Sheet Offsetting

In December 2011 the Financial
Accounting Standards Board FASB

issued its updated guidance on balance sheet offsetting This new

standard
provides guidance to determine when

offsetting in the balance

sheet is appropriate The guidance is designed to enhance disclosures

by requiring improved information about financial instruments and

derivative instruments ihe goal is to provide users of the financial

statements the
ability to evaluate the effect or potential effect of

netting

arrangements on an entitys statement of financial
position This

guidance will only impact the disclosures within an entitys financial

statements and notes to the financial statements and does not result

in change to the accounting treatment of financial instruments and

derivative instruments We are required to adopt this guidance on

January 2013 We arc in the
process of evaluating this guidance

Testing Goodwill for Impairment

In September 2011 the FASB issued its updated guidance for the
testing

of goodwill for impairment The update allows us the option to first

assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not

that tIle fair value of
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If

after assessing qualitative factors it is determined that it is more likely

than not the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying

amount we will need to perform more detailed goodwill impairment

test which is used to identify potential goodwill impairments and to

measure the amount of goodwill impairment losses to be
recognized if

any The objective of this new approach is to simplify how entities test

goodwill for impairment We will adopt this new guidance in 2012

Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In June 2011 the FASB issued its guidance regarding the
presentation

of comprehensive income This new guidance requires us to present

total comprehensive income and its components and the
components

NOTE Acquisitions

of net income in either single continuous statement or two separate

but consecutive statements This guidance only impacts the location

of the disclosure of
comprehensive income within our consolidated

financial statements and does not result in
change to the accounting

treatment of comprehensive income The guidance is effective in two

stages the requirement to present single continuous statement or

two separate but consecutive statements is effective for us beginning

January 2012 however the
requirement to present the reclassification

adjustments from other comprehensive income to net income on the

face of the financial statements has currently been deferred by the

FASB indefinitely pending further deliberations on this requirement

Fair Value Measurements

In May 2011 the FASB amended its guidance about fair value

measurement and disclosure The new guidance was issued in

conjunction with new International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS fair value measurement standard aimed at updating IFRS

to conform with U.S GAAP The new FASB guidance will result in

some additional disclosure requirements however it does not result

in significant modifications to existing FASB guidance with
respect to

fair value measurement and disclosure We are required to adopt this

guidance on January 12012 We are in the
process

of
evaluating this

guidance however we do not believe it will have material effect on

our consolidated financial statements upon adoption

Accounting guidance and regulatory items

adopted in 2011

Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangements

In October 2009 the FASB amended its guidance regarding the

criteria for when to evaluate individual delivered items in multiple

deliverable
arrangement and how to allocate consideration received

We adopted this guidance on January 2011 There was no impact

to our financial statements upon adoption

2011 Acquisitions

During third and fourth
quarters

of 2011 we completed five acquisitions

descriptions of which are included below

Rovral and Sportak

In December 2011 we acquired the intellectual
property associated

with the fungicide chemistries iprodione and prochlorar from Bayer

CropScience which included the trade names Rovral and Sportak This

acquisition will be integrated into our Agricultural Products segment

Adventus Intellectual Property

In November 2011 we acquired the assets of Adventus Intellectual

Property Adventus from Covington Capital Corporation and

VentureLink Innovation Fund Inc Adventus has portfolio of specialty

remediarion technologies used in soil and ground water The acquired

assets ofAdventus will be integrated into our Peroxygen division within

our Industrial Chemicals
segment
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South Pole Biogroup

In November 2011 we acquired via stock purchase 100% of South

Pole Biogroup Ltda SPB SPB is South American natural color and

health ingredient producer that operates
the BioColor and BioNutrition

businesses SPB will be consolidated into our existing BioPolymer

division within our Specialty Chemicals segment

RheinPerChemie

In October 2011 we acquired via stock purchase 100% of

RheinPerChemie GmbH RPC from Unionchimica SpA RPC is

European persulfates
manufacturer and will be consolidated into our

existing Peroxygens division with our Industrial Chemicals
segment

Ruralco

In July 2011 we acquired 50 percent controlling ownership interest

in new Argentine agrochemical distribution company named

Ruralco Soluciones SA Ruralco Ruralco has been integrated into

our Agricultural Products segment

The results of operations related to the above acquisitions have been

included in our results since the respective acquisition dates

PURCHASE PRICE

The five acquisitions discussed above were all considered businesses

under the U.S GAAP business combinations accounting guidance and

therefore we applied acquisition accounting Acquisition accounting

requires among other things that most assets and liabilities assumed

be recognized at their fair values as of the acquisition date The net

assets of the combined acquisitions were recorded at the estimated fair

values using Level inputs see Note 17 for an explanation of Level

inputs In valuing acquired assets and liabilities
valuation inputs

include an estimate of future cash flows and discount rates based on

the internal rate of return and the weighted average rate of return

Transaction related costs of the acquisitions were expensed as incurred

The tables below present
in the aggregate

the fair value of the purchase

price and the preliminary allocation of purchase price to the assets and

liabilities acquired as part
of the combined acquisitions

The purchase

price
and related allocation is not considered final primarily due to

working capital adjustments expected to occur in the first quarter of

2012 This may result in additional adjustments to the preliminary

purchase price
allocation We will finalize the amounts recognized as

soon as possible as we obtain the information necessary to complete

the analysis but no later than one year from the acquisition date

in Millions

Cash net of cash acquired

148.1

Non-contingent payable

25.9

Contingent consideration
35

TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE
177.5

PRELIMINARY PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

in Millions

Current assets primarily inventory

22.4

Property plant equipment
0.8

Finite-lived intangible assets

98.2

Indefinite life intangible assets

36.6

Goodwill
34.7

Deferred tax assets

0.7

Other assets

1.1

Total fair value of assets acquired
194.5

Current liabilities
5.6

Non-contingent consideration payable

2.9

Contingent consideration payable

3.5

Deferred tax liabilities

4.6

Other liabilities

3.8

Nonconirolling interests acquired

3.0

Total fair value of liabilities assumed
4.4

TOTALcASH PAID
148.1

Represents
additional required siniount to be paid in 2012

Fair value of finis/sed good inventories acquired included stepup in the value of approcitnatelv
million ib maorsr wins will tsp Thtl ts sst of si md in

2012

See Note 4for the major classes of intangible
assets acquired

and their weighed average usef
Id lives

We
expect

$21.5 million to be deducobl.e
for

income tax purposes

Unaudited pro
forma revenue and net income related to these acquisitions for the years

2011 and 2010 are not presented because the pro
forma

impact is not material
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2010 and 2009 Acquisitions

In June 2010 we acquired global registration rights to an herbicide with

unique weed control features in our Agricultural Products
segment

As
part

of this
acquisition we also acquired certain rights relating to

separate herbicide compound still under development The combined

purchase price for both of the rights was approximately $7.5 million

See Note for more information
regarding the herbicide still under

development

In February 2009 we acquired the GB Professional Products line of insect

control products from
Waterbury Companies Inc and in June 2009

NOTE Goodwill and Intangible Assets

we acquired the proprietary fungicide Benalaxyl from
Isagro S.p.A

Both of these acquisitions have been integrated into our Agricultural

Products Group and fit our strategic goal of offering an expanded

product portfolio in focus markets and geographic segments The GB
Professional Products line provides comprehensive set of solutions to

pest management professionals primarily in the United States Benalaxyl

is highly effective
systematic fungicide and is registered in more than

50 countries with the majority of sales expected in the European Union

and Latin America The combined purchase price for both acquisitions

was approximately $34 million The results of operations of the above

acquisitions have been included in the Agricultural Products
segment

since their acquisition dates of February and June 2009 respectively

The changes in the
carrying amount of goodwill by business

segment
for the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 are presented in the

table below

Agricultural Specialty Industrial

in Millions Products Chemicals Chemicals Total

Balance December 31 2009 2.8 206.1 0.6 209.5

Foreign CurrencyAdjusrments 15.1 15.1
Balance December31 2010 2.8 191.0 0.6 194.4

Acquisitions 9.6 8.9 16.2 34.7

Foreign Currency Adjustments 2.9 0.3 3.2
BALANCEDECEMBER312011 12.4 197.0 16.5 225.9

Our intangible assets other than
goodwill consist of the

following

Weighted avg
December 31 2011 December 31 2010

useful life at Accumulated Accumulated
in Millions December 31 2011 Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net

Intangible assets subject to amortization

finite-lived

Customer relationships 20 102.0 2.2 99.8 23.0 0.9 22.1

Patents 0.6 0.1 0.5 0.6 0.1 0.5

Trademarks and trade names 0.2 0.2

Purchased and licensed technologies 14 54.6 9.9 44.7 32.9 6.7 26.2

Other intangibles 17 4.1 1.0 3.1 3.5 0.7 2.8

161.5 13.2 148.3 60.0 8.4 51.6

Intangible assets not subject to

amortization indefinite life

Trademarks and trade names 36.3 36.3 2.4 2.4

In-process research development 2.7 2.7

39.0 39.0 2.4 2.4

TOTAL INTANGIBLEASSETS 200.5 13.2 187.3 62.4 8.4 54.0

The increase in both finite-lived and indefinite life
intangible assets during the

year ended December 31 2011 was primarily due to the
acquisitions

completed during 2011 as further described in Note

At December 31 2011 the finite-lived and indefinite life
intangibles were allocated among our business

segments as follows

in Millions
Finite-lived Indefinite life

Agricultural Products
113.6 35.2

Specialty Chemicals
24.4 3.2

Industrial Chemicals
10.3 0.6

TOTAL
148.3 39.0

Amortization related to intangible assets was not significant in the periods presented The estimated pre-tax amortization
expense for each of

the five
years

ended December 31 2012 to 2016 is $11.3 million $11.2 million $10.6 million $9.6 million and $8.4 million respectively
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NOTE Inventories

The current replacement cost of inventories exceeded their recorded consolidated statements of income Approximately 40 percent of

values by $157.5 million at December 31 201 and $154.9 million inventories in 2011 and approximately 38 percent of inventories in

at December 31 2010 During 2010 inventory balances were reduced 2010 are recorded on the LIFO basis In 2011 and 2010 approximately

in the U.S due to liquidation of inventory quantities
carried at lower 60 percent

and 62 percent respectively
of inventories are determined

cost as compared with the costs of 2010 purchases This resulted in on FIFO basis

LIFO gain recorded in Cost of sales and services within the 2010

Inventories consisted of the following

in Millions

December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Finished goods and work in process
298.6 225.6

Raw materials
171.7 122.2

NET INVENTORY 470.3 347.8

NOTE Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment
consisted of the following

in Millions
December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Land and land improvements
143 1427

Mineral rights
31.4 31.4

Buildings
363 366

Machinery and equipment
2150.3 2153.5

Construction in progress
161 83

Total cost
2850.0 2T7.2

Accumulated depreciation
863 858

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT NET 986.8 918.5

Depreciation expense was $101.1 million $109.4 million and $108.4 million in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

NOTE Restructuring and Other Charges Income

Our restructuring
and other charges income are comprised of restructuring asset disposals and other charges income as noted below

Year Ended December 31

in Millions
2011 2010 2009

Restructuring Charges and Asset Disposals
28.0 127.2 81.5

Other Charges Income Net
4.4 24.7 51.3

TOTAL RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES 32.4 151.9 132.8

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES AND ASSET DISPOSALS

Restructuring Charges

Severance and Other Charges Asset Disposal

in Millions
Employee Benefits Income Charges Total

Sodium Percarbonate Phase-out 5.5 0.7 14.8 21.0

Huelva Shutdown 0.6 1.3 0.6 1.3

Barcelona Facility
Shutdown 0.2 1.3 3.9 2.4

Other Items
0.9 0.8 1.6 3.3

YEARENDED DECEMBER31 2011 5.6 1.5 20.9 28.0

Alginates Restructuring
0.6 6.2 1.6 7.2

Huelva Shutdown 37.0 4.0 69.4 110.4

Barcelona Facility
Shutdown 0.2 3.0 10 6.9

Other Items
5.3 2.6 2.7

YEARENDEDDECEMBER312010 41.5 4.6 81.1 127.2
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Restructuring Charges

Severance and Other Charges Asset Disposal

in Millions Employee Benefits Income Charges Total

Alginates Restructuring 3.9 0.8 8.6 13.3

Bayport Butyllithium Shutdown 0.7 6.8 7.5

Bromborough Lithium Metal Production Shutdown
1.8 0.6 5.0 7.4

Barcelona
Facility Shutdown 10.1 0.5 15.2 25.8

Santa Clara Shutdown
1.5 1.7 3.5 6.7

Other Items 12.4 2.0 6.4 20.8

YEARENDEDDECEMBER312009 30.4 5.6 45.5 81.5

Represents severance and
employee benefIt charges Income

represents adjustments to previously
recorded severance and employee benefits

Primarily represent
accelerated

depreciation and impairment charges on plant and equipment which were or are to be abandoned Asset
disposal charges

also included the acceleration

effect of re_estimating
settlement dates and revised cost estimates associated with asset retirement obligations due to facility shutdowns see Note

Other Charges primarily represent costs associated with accrued lease payments contract terminations and other miscellaneous exit costs Other Income
primarily represents flivorable

developments on previously
recorded exit costs as well as recoveries associated with

restructuring

The
restructuring charges and asset disposals noted above were the result of the following

Industrial Chemicals

Sodium Percarbonate Phase-out

In June 2011 we made the decision to phase out operations of our

Sodium Percarbonate plant assets in La Zaida Spain and exit the

sodium percarbonate business by December 2011 The
facility is part

of our Spanish subsidiary FMC Foret S.A Foret and is included

in our Industrial Chemicals
segment Competitive disadvantages and

underperforming results since the start-up of operations in 2001 have

made it uneconomical for FMC to continue sodium percarbonate

operations We ceased production at this
facility as of October 31 2011

Huelva Shutdown

In November 2010 we made the decision to cease operations at our

Huelva Spain facility
and exit the phosphate business in Europe The

facility was part of Foret which is included in our Industrial Chemicals

segment The closure of the
facility was initiated as consequence

of the

Spanish judicial ruling which effective January 12011 prohibited us

from
storing phosphogypsum on site adjacent to our production facility

The phosphogypsum is byproduct of the process of manufacturing

phosphoric acid which is used in the manufacturing of our phosphate

products After receipt of the unfavorable Spanish judicial ruling we

attempted to pursue strategic alternatives for our Foret phosphorus

business With no reasonable economic alternatives the judicial

ruling inhibited our ability to cost effectively produce our phosphate

product and therefore rendered it uneconomical for FMC to continue

operations at the facility We ceased production at this
facility as of

December 31 2010

Barcelona Facility Shutdown

In June 2009 we made the decision to phase out operations of our

facility
in Barcelona Spain which was completed in 2010 The

facility

is
part

of Foret High costs at the Barcelona facility coupled with

reduced demand for product manufactured at that site had made it

uneconomical for FMC to continue operations at the Barcelona
facility

Santa Clara Shutdown

In March 2009 we made the decision to shut down our manufacturing

operations at our Peroxygens facility in Santa Clara Mexico The

decision to shut down the Santa Clara
operations was made in an effort

to maximize cost savings and improve efficiencies

Specialty Chemicals

Alginates Restructuring

In January 2009 we announced plans to realign our BioPolymer alginates

manufacturing operations in Norway and the United Kingdom as we

continued integration of the alginates business acquired in August 2008

Bayport Butyllithium Shutdown

In March 2009 we made the decision to close our Bayport butyllithium

facility located in Bayport Texas The Bayport butyllithium facility

is part of our Lithium division Our decision is consistent with our

ongoing strategy to be
globally competitive and focus on products

consistent with market demands

Bromborough Lithium Metal Production Shutdown

In September 2009 we made the decision to close our Lithium metal

production unit at our Bromborough UK plant The
facility is included

in our Specialty Chemicals segment

Other Items

In addition to the restructurings described above we have engaged in

certain other
restructuring activities which have resulted in severance

and asset disposal costs We
expect

these
restructuring activities to

improve our global competitiveness through improved cost efficiencies
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We have mining operations in Green River Wyoming for our soda ash

business as well as mining operations in our lithium operations
We

have legal
reclamation obligations

related to these facilities upon
closure

of the mines Additionally we have obligations at the majority
of our

manufacturing
facilities in the event of

permanent plant shutdown

Certain of these obligations are recorded in our environmental reserves

described in Note 10 For certain AROs not already accrued we have
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calculated the fair value of these AROs and concluded that the present

value of these obligations was immaterial at 1Iccember 31 2011 and

2010 We have also determined that the liability
for certain other

AROs cannot currently be calculated as the settlement dates are not

reasonably estimable We will recognize the
liability

for these AROs

when sufficient information exists to estimate range
of potential

settlement dates

The following table shows roll forward of restructuring reserves that will result in cash spending These amounts exclude asset retirement

obligations which are discussed in Note

Balance at Change in Cash Balance at Change in Cash Balance at

in Millions
12/31/09 reserves payments Other 12/31/10 reserves payments Other 12/31/11

Sodium Percarbonate Phase-out
6.2 4.9 0.2 1.1

Alginates Restructuring 8.5 5.6 10.0 0.2 4.3 0.3 1.8 2.8

Bayport Butyllithium Shutdown 0.3 0.1 0.2

Bromborough Lithium Metal

Production Shutdown 1.8 1.8

HuelvaRestructuring
41.0 0.2 0.8 40.0 1.1 34.4 0.6 7.3

Barcelona Facility Shutdown 10.1 3.2 8.8 3.4 1.5 1.5 1.2 1.4 0.2

Santa Clara Facility Shutdown 1.1 1.1

Other Workforce Related and
Facility

ShutdownsW 0.8 3.9 6.3 2.6 1.0 1.0 1.2 0.2 1.0

TOTAL 226 461 273 54 468 71 435 20 124

Primarily severance costs related to workforce reductions andfacility
shutdowns described in the Other Items sections above

Primarily severance exited lease contract termination and other miscellaneous exit costs The accelerated
depreciation

and impairment charges
noted above impacted our property

plant and equipment balances and are not included in the above tables

Included in tccrued and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets

Primarily foreign currency
translation adjustments

and cash proceeds
associated with recoveries

OTHER CHARGES INCOME NET

Year Ended December 31

in Millions
2011 2010 2009

Environmental Charges Net 3.1 14.2 20.2

Legal Matters
1.5 29.9

Othernet
13 90 12

OTHER CHARGES INCOME NET 4.4 24.7 51.3

Environmental Charges Net charge of $3.3 million related to the settlement of
legal matter in

our Industrial Chemicals segment
and $5.6 million of other charges

Environmental charges represent
the net charges associated with

primarily representing settlements with state authorities for property

environmental remediation at continuing operating sites see Note 10
claims and adjustments

for additional details

Legal Matters
Other Net

In 2010 our Agricultural Products segment acquired certain rights

During the year
ended December 31 2009 we recorded an approximate

relating to an herbicide compound still under development We

charge of $21.0 million in connection with the resolution of regulatory
recorded $5.7 million for these rights as charge for the

year
ended

matter in our Industrial Chemicals Segment In 2009 we also recorded
December 31 2010

NOTE Asset Retirement Obligations
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The changes in the
carrying amounts of AROs for the

years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 are as follows

in Millions

Balance at December 31 2009
15.1

Acceleration due to facility
shutdowns

28.8

Increase decrease to previously recorded ARO
liability 0.9

Accretion expense 0.3

Payments 8.7

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments

Balance at December 31 2010 34.6

Increase decrease to previously recorded ARO
liability 5.5

Accretion expense 0.3

Payments 12.1

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments 1.3
BALANCE AT DECEMBER31 2011 27.0

This increase was priniarily associated with our decision to phase out operations at our Huelva facility As result of this decision the estimated settlement date associated with asset

retirement obligation at the fiscility was accelerated
resulting in an increase to the liability and an increase to capitalized asset retirement costs The capitalized asset retirement costs

were depreciated on an accelerated basis over the remaining period that we operated the facilities See Note 7forfisrther details on the
phase outs and

restructuring
initiatives

NOTE Discontinued Operations

Our discontinued operations represent adjustments to retained liabilities primarily related to operations discontinued between 1976 and 2001 The
primary

liabilities retained include environmental liabilities other postretirement benefit liabilities self-insurance and long-term obligations related to
legal proceedings

Our discontinued operations comprised the following

Year Ended December31

inMillion.s 2011 2010 2009

Adjustment for workers compensation product liability and other postretirement

benefits related to previously discontinued operations net of income tax expense

of $0.3 $0.4 and $0.2 for 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively 0.7 0.8 0.5

Provision for environmental liabilities and
legal reserves and expenses related to previously

discontinued operations net of recoveries net of income tax benefit of $19.9 $24.2

and $11.4 in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively 32.5 39.5 18.7
Income from and adjustment associated with tax matter related to previously

discontinued operation
5.1

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS NET OF INCOME TAXES 31.8 33.6 18.2

Year Ended December 31 2011

For the
year ended December 31 2011 we recorded $52.4 million

$32.5 million after-tax charge to discontinued operations related

primarily to environmental issues and legal reserves and
expenses

Environmental charges of $25.4 million $15.8 million after-tax related

primarily to provision increase for environmental issues at our Front

Royal site as well as operating and maintenance activities for number

of environmental sites See roll forward of our environmental reserves

in Note 10 We also recorded increases to legal reserves and
expenses

in the amount of $27.0 million $16.7 million after-tax

Year Ended December 31 2010

For the
year ended December 31 2010 we recorded $63.7 million

$39.5 million after-tax charge respectively to discontinued operations

related primarily to environmental issues and
legal reserves and

expenses

Environmental charges of $38.1 million $23.6 million after-tax related

primarily to
provision

increase for environmental issues at our Middlleport site

as well as operating and maintenance activities for number of environmental

sites partially offset by recoveries We also recorded increases to
legal reserves

and expenses in the aniount of $25.6 million $1 5.9 million after-tax

Year Ended December 31 2009

For the
year ended December 31 2009 we recorded $30.1 million

$18.7 million after-tax charge to discontinued
operations related primarily to

environmental issues and
legal reserves and

expenses Environmental charges

of $7.1 million $4.4 million after-tax relate primarily to provision increase

for environmental issues at our Front Royal and Middleport sites as well as

for
operating and maintenance activities for number of environmental

sites partially offset by recoveries We also recorded increases to
legal reserves

and expenses in the amount of $23.0 million $14.3 million after-tax

Reserve for Discontinued Operations at

December 31 2011 and 2010

The reserve for discontinued
operations totaled $41.6 million and

$38.6 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The

liability at December 31 2011 was comprised of $5.1 million for
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workers compensation and product liability $8.6 million for other

postretirement medical and life insurance benefits provided to former

employees of discontinued businesses and $27.9 million of reserves

for legal proceedings associated with discontinued operations The

discontinued postretirement medical and life insurance benefits
liability

equals the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation Associated

with this
liability

is net pretax
actuarial gain and prior service credit of

$13.3 million $8.7 million after-tax and $14.0 million $9.1 million

after-tax at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The estimated

net actuarial gain and prior service credit that will be amortized from

accumulated other comprehensive income into discontinued operations

during 2012 are $1.7 million and $0.1 million respectively

The
liability at December 31 2010 was comprised of $6.0 million for

workers compensation and product liability $10.8 million for other

postretirement
medical and life insurance benefits provided to former

employees of discontinued businesses and $21.8 million of reserves for

legal proceedings associated with discontinued operations

NOTE 10 Environmental Obligations

We use actuarial methods to the extent practicable to monitor

the adequacy
of product liability workers compensation and other

postretirement benefit reserves on an ongoing
basis While the amounts

required to settle our liabilities for discontinued operations
could

ultimately differ materially from the estimates used as basis for

recording these liabilities we believe that changes in estimates or

required expenditures for any individual cost component will not

have material adverse effect on our liquidity or financial condition in

any single year
and that in any event such costs will be satisfied over

the course of several
years However changes in estimates or required

expenditures
for

any
individual cost component

could have material

adverse effect on our results of operations in any one reporting period

Spending in 2011 2010 and 2009 was $1.3 million $0.7 million

and $1.1 million respectively for workers compensation product

liability
and other claims $1.0 million $1.6 million and $1.2 million

respectively for other postretirement benefits and $20.9 million

$25.8 million and $17.6 million respectively related to reserves for

legal proceedings associated with discontinued operations

We are subject to various federal state local and foreign environmental

laws and regulations that govern emissions of air pollutants discharges

of water pollutants and the manufacture storage handling and disposal

of hazardous substances hazardous wastes and other toxic materials and

remediation of contaminated sites We are also subject to liabilities arising

under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and

Liability
Act CERCLA and similar state laws that impose responsibility

on persons
who arranged for the disposal of hazardous substances and on

current and previous owners and
operators

of
facility

for the clean-up

of hazardous substances released from the
facility

into the environment

We are also subject to liabilities under the Resource Conservation and

Recovery Act RCRA and analogous state laws that require owners and

operators
of facilities that have treated stored or disposed of hazardous

waste pursuant to the RCRA permit to follow certain waste management

practices and to clean up releases of hazardous substances into the

environment associated with past or present practices In addition when

deemed appropriate we enter certain sites with potential liability
into

voluntary remediation compliance programs
which are also subject to

guidelines that require owners and operators current and
previous to

clean
up

releases of hazardous substances into the environment associated

with past or present practices

We have been named Potentially Responsible Party PRP at 30

sites on the federal governments National Priorities List NPL at

which our potential liability
has not yet

been settled In addition we

received notice from the EPA or other regulatory agencies that we

may be PRP or PRP equivalent at other sites including 38 sites at

which we have determined that it is reasonably possible that we have

an environmental liability In cooperation with appropriate government

agencies we are currently participating in or have participated in

Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study RI/FS or equivalent at

most of the identified sites with the status of each investigation varying

from site to site At certain sites RI/FS has only recently begun

providing limited information if
any relating to cost estimates timing

or the involvement of other PRPs whereas at other sites the studies

are complete
remedial action plans have been chosen or Record of

Decision ROD has been issued

Environmental liabilities consist of obligations relating to waste handling

and the remediation and/or study of sites at which we are alleged to

have released or disposed of hazardous substances These sites include

current operations previously operated sites and sites associated with

discontinued operations We have provided reserves for potential

environmental obligations that we consider probable and for which

reasonable estimate of the obligation can be made Accordingly total

reserves of $251.2 million and $241.8 million respectively befbre

recoveries existed at December 31 2011 and 2010 The long-term

portion of these reserves is included in Environmental liabilities

continuing and discontinued on the consolidated balance sheets net

of recoveries and amounted to $213.3 million and $209.9 million at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The short-term portion

of our continuing operations obligations is recorded in Accrued and

other liabilities In addition we have estimated that reasonably possible

environniental loss
contingencies net of expected recoveries may exceed

amounts accrued by approximately $110 million at December 31 2011

This reasonably possible estimate is based upon information available as

of the date of the
filing

and the actual future loses may be higher given

the uncertainties regarding the status of laws regulations enforcement

policies the impact of potentially responsible parties technology and

information related to individual sites

To ensure we are held responsible only for our equitable share of site

remediation costs we have initiated and will continue to initiate legal

proceedings for contributions from other PRPs We have recorded

recoveries representing probable realization of claims against insurance

companies U.S government agencies and other third parties of

$82.6 million and $68.6 million at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively The recoveries at December 31 2011 and 2010 are recorded

as either an offset to the Environmental liabilities continuing and

discontinued totaling $24.3 million and $16.9 million or as Other

assets totaling $58.3 million and $51.7 million in the consolidated

balance sheets respectively Cash recoveries for the years 2011 2010 and

2009 were $12.4 million $14.6 million and $13.7 million respectively
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lhe table below isa roll forward of our total environmental reserves continuing and discontinued from December 31 2008 December 31 2011

in Millions

Total environmental reserves net of recoveries at December 31 2008

2009

Provision 47.5

Spending net of recoveries 36.1

Net Change 11.4

Total environmental reserves net of recoveries at December 31 2009 l84.1

2010

Provision 76.1

Spending net of recoveries 35.3

Net Change 40.8

Total environmental reserves net of recoveries at December 31 2010 224.9

2011

1rovision 45.2

Spending net of recoveries 43.2

Net Change 2.0

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL RESERVES NET OF RECOVERIES AT DECEMBER 312011 226.9

Ihe table below provides detail of current and long-term environmental reserves continuing and discontinued

December 31

in Millions 2011 2010

Environmental reserves current net of recoveries 13.6 15.0

213.3 209.9

226.9 224.9

Environmental reserves long-term continuing and discontinued net of recoveries

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL RESERVES NET OF RECOVERIES

.urreis includes only those reserves related to continuing operations
These amounts are included wuhin Accrued and other liahslsiscs on the conssslidaied balance sheets

Our net environmental provisions relate to costs for the continued cleanup of both operating sites and for certain discontinued manufacturing

operations
from

previous years
The net provisions are comprised as follows

Environmental reserves

Oilier assets

NET ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISION

See above roll firward of our total environmental reserves as presented on our consolidated balance sheets

Rep rescnO certain environmental recoveries See Note 20
for

details of Other assets as
presented on our consolidated balance sheets

Significant Environmental Sites

Front Royal

On October 21 1999 the Federal District Court for the Western

District of Virginia approved Consent Decree signed by FMC the

EPA Region lii and the Department of Justice DOJ regarding

past response costs and future clean-up work at the discontinued

fiber-manufacturing site in Front Royal Virginia In January 2010 the

EPA issued Record of Decision ROD fbr Operable Unit OU-7

primarily addressing waste basins and ground water which should be

the last operable unit to be rensediated at the site The reserve prior to

2011 included provision for OU-7 and previously approved work

for other operable units under the Consent Decree During 2011

Operating and

Discontinued Sites Total

172.7

Year ended December 31

2010

14.2

2009

20.2

in Millions 2011

Continuing operations 3.1

Discontinued operations 25.4 38.1 7.1

NET ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISION 28.5 52.3 27.3

Recorded as component of Restructuring
and other

charges income on our consolidated statements of
income See Note .7

Recorded
is component ofDiscontinued operations

net on our consolidated statements of income See Note

On our consolidated balance sheets the net environmental provisions are recorded as follows

Year ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

45.2 76.1 47.5

16.7 23.8 20.2

28.5 52.3 27.3
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extensive design work occurred providing the basis for an improved

cost estimate for the construction of the groundwater treatment

plant The groundwater treatment plant is an integral component

of the remedy required to address the OU-7 ROD We recorded an

increase to the reserve associated with the new treatment plant estimate

during the
year

As
part

of prior settlement government agencies

have reimbursed us for approximately one-third of the clean-up costs

due to the governments role at the site and we expect reimbursement

to continue irs the future The amount of the reserve for this site

was $36.4 million and $28.5 million at December 31 2011 and

December 31 2010 respectively

Pocatello

We have successfully decommissioned our Pocatello plant completed

closure of the RCRA ponds and formally requested that EPA acknowledge

completion of work under June 1999 RCRA Consent Decree Future

remediation costs include completion of one of the CERCLA remedies

identified in the Supplemental Feasibility Study SFS that addresses

ground water contamination and existing waste disposal areas on the

Pocatello plant portion of the Eastern Michaud Flats Superfund Site

In April 2010 the EPA presented their recommended alternative from

the SFS to the National Remedy Review Board NRRB The NRRB
has endorsed the selection of this alternative and the EPA has drafted

proposed plan recommending this remedy

On September 26 2011 the EPA issued their Proposed Plan for the

site As expected the Proposed Plan described the EPAS recommended

alternative remedy referred to above The public comment period on

the EPAs Proposed Plan ended in December The EPA is expected to

issue an Interim Amendment to the Record of Decision ROD in

2012 Additionally we continue to conduct work
pursuant to CERCLA

unilateral administrative orders to address air emissions from beneath

the
cap

of several of the closed RCRA ponds

The Shoshone-Bannock Tribes the Tribes are objecting to the EPAs

Proposed Plan The Tribes are seeking further investigations and studies

to identify technology to excavate and treat elemental phosphorus in

soil FMC has supported EPAs Proposed Plan on the basis that there is

no technology to safely excavate and treat the elemental phosphorus-

contaminated soils and further studies will only delay the remediation

and development of the site

The amount of the reserve for this site was $64.8 million and

$71.0 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Middieport

At our facility in Middleport New York we have constructed an

engineered cover closed the RCRA regulated surface water impoundments

and are collecting and treating both surface water runoff and ground

water draft corrective measures study CMS has been prepared for

two off-site areas and is under review by the EPA and New York State

Departments of the Environment and Health collectively referred to as

the Agencies This initial draft CMS for these two areas was submitted

in 2010 At the Agencies request second draft of the CMS for these

areas was submitted in May 2011

Next the Agencies will issue its preliminary draft Statement of Basis

indicating the selected remedial alternatives There will be public

comment period where FMC will have the opportunity to respond

to the selected remedy Additional costs may result in the event any

remedies other than FMCs preferred remedies are selected The

amount of the reserve for this site is $47.0 million and $46.2 million

at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Other

Although potential environmental remediation expenditures in excess

of the reserves and estimated loss contingencies could be significant

the impact on our future consolidated financial results is not subject to

reasonable estimation due to numerous uncertainties concerning the

nature and scope of possible contamination at many sites identification

of remediation alternatives under constantly changing requirements

selection of new and diverse clean-up technologies to meet compliance

standards the timing of potential expenditures and the allocation of

costs among PRPs as well as other third parties

The liabilities arising from potential environmental obligations that have

not been reserved for at this time may be material to any one quarter or

years results of operations in the future However we believe any
such

liability arising from potential environmental obligations is not likely

to have material adverse effect on our liquidity or financial condition

as it may be satisfied over the next 20
years or longer

Regarding current operating sites we spent $9.8 million $8.4 million

and $11.6 million for the years 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively on

capital projects relating to environmental control facilities Additionally

in 2011 2010 and 2009 we spent $29.6 million $25.9 million and

$24.9 million respectively
for environmental compliance costs which

are operating costs not covered by established reserves
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NOTE 11 Income Taxes

Domestic and foreign components of income from continuing operations before income taxes are shown below

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

Domestic 325.7 303.2 275.9

Foreign 224.8 47.3 34.1

TOTAL 550.5 350.5 310.0

The provision benefit for income taxes attributable to income from continuing operations consisted of

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

Current

Federal 16.5 73.4

Foreign 30.2 26.0 3.1

State 0.5

Total current 46.7 99.9 3.1

Deferred

Federal 64.8 20.2 44.6

Foreign 18.9 4.3

State 61 76 53

Total deferred 89.8 32.1 49.9

TOTAL 136 1320 530

Total income tax provisions benefits were allocated as follows

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

Continuing operations 136.5 132.0 53.0

Discontinued operations 19.6 28.9 11.2

Items charged directly to equity 43.1 62.5 9.4

TOTAL 73.8 40.6 32.4

Significant components
of the deferred income tax provision benefit attributable to income from continuing operations before income taxes

are as follows

Year Ended December 31

We have recognized that it is more likely than not that certain future

tax benefits may not be realized through
future taxable income During

the
year

ended December 31 2011 the valuation allowance was

increased by $16.3 million The increase in the valuation allowance

was mainly due to our foreign operations
for tax losses that are not

expected to be
fully

recoverable in future
years During the year ended

December31 2010 we increased the valuation allowance $39.2 million

The increase was related to our Spanish legal entity predominantly due

to the Huelva
facility shutdown for tax losses that are not expected to

be fully recoverable in future years
from the earnings

of the remaining

businesses in that entity During the
year

ended December 31 2009

we reduced the valuation allowance related to domestic
operations by

$18.2 million because of our expectation that the related deferred tax

assets were likely to be realized

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

Defrred tax exclusive of valuation allowance 73.5 7.1 68.1

Net increase decrease in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 16.3 39.2 18.2

DEFERRED INCOME TAX PROVISION 898 321 499
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December 31

in Millions 2011 2010

Reserves for discontinued operations environmental and restructuring
104.4 102.8

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits 109.8 81.0

Other reserves 51.5 53.8

Alternative minimum foreign tax and other credit carryforwards 70.9 96.5

Net operating loss carryforwards 83.7 88.8

Deferred expenditures capitalized for tax 63.2 71.9

Other 77.4 61.4

Deferred tax assets 560.9 556.2

Valuation allowance net 92.6 76.3

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance 468.3 479.9

Property plant and equipment net 85.9 56.5

Deferred tax liabilities 85.9 56.5

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 382.4 423.4

We believe that it is more likely
than not that future earnings

will be sufficient to utilize the net deferred tax assets recorded as of December 31 2011

At December 31 2011 we had net operating
ioss and tax credit

carryforwards as follows U.S state net operating loss carryforwards

of $782.7 million expiring in various amounts and years through

2029 foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $246.5 million

As of December 31 2011 our federal income tax returns for
years

through 2008 have been examined by the Internal Revenue Service

IRS and all issues have been settled We believe that adequate

provision for both federal and foreign income taxes has been made for

the
open years 2003 and after Income taxes have not been provided

for the equity in undistributed earnings of foreign consolidated

subsidiaries of $908.6 million nor have they been provided for our

foreign unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates of$17.2 million at

December 31 2011 Restrictions on the distribution of these earnings

are not significant It is not practical to estimate the amount of taxes

that might be payable upon the remittance of such earnings Foreign

earnings
taxable as dividends were $24.2 million $12.2 million and

$6.2 million in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

expiring in various
years

U.S foreign tax credit carryforwards of

$13.0 million expiring in various amounts and
years through 2019

and alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $52.4 million

with no expiration date

Uncertain Income Tax Positions

U.S GAAP accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes

prescribes model for the recognition and measurement of tax

position taken or expected to be taken in tax return and provides

guidance on derecognition classification interest and penalties

disclosure and transition

We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various

states and foreign jurisdictions The income tax returns for FMC

entities taxable in the U.S and significant foreign jurisdictions are

open for examination and adjustment As of December 31 2011

the United States Federal and State income tax returns are open
for

examination and adjustment for years 2006-2011 Our significant

foreign jurisdictions which total 15 are open
for examination and

adjustment during varying periods from 2003-20 11

The effective income tax rate applicable to income from continuing operations before income taxes was different from the statutory U.S federal

income tax rate due to the factors listed in the following table

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Statutory U.S tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Net difference

Percentage depletion 3.7 5.1 5.6

State and local income taxes less federal income tax benefit 1.1 .2 1.7

Foreign earnings subject to different tax rates 9.0 6.2 2.8

Manufacturers production deduction and miscellaneous tax credits 0.8 0.8

Loss Medicare Part tax benefit 0.9

Tax on intercompany dividends and deemed dividend for tax purposes 1.0 0.8 2.2

Nondeductible expenses
1.0 0.9 0.9

Changes to unrecognized tax benefits 1.9 1.1 4.2

Change in valuation allowance 3.2 11.5 5.9

Other 1.1 1.6 0.2

Total difference 10.2 2.7 17.9

Effective tax rate 24.8% 37.7% 17.1%
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The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2011 financial statements There are no interest and penalties included

that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate is $8.1 million in the $8.1 million liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized December 31 2011

tax benefits as component
of income tax expense

in the consolidated

We do not expect any
reductions in the

liability
for unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months on account of settlements and the

expirations
of statutes of limitations See the reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits below

inMilltonc 2011 2010 2009

Balance at beginning of year 17.3 14.4 42.4

Additions for the current year 4.9 6.1

Additions for tax positions on acquisitions 1.4

Reductions for tax posit ions of
prior ears for

Mjustments 0.6 1.2

Settlements during the period 15.5 2.6 32.7

BALANCEAT END OFYFAR 8.1 17.3 14.4

NOTE 12 Debt

201 Credit Agreement Loans under the 2011 Credit Agreement bear interest at either

floating rate which will be base rate or Eurocurrency rate equal

On August 2011 we executed new 2011 credit agreement the to the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate for the relevant term plus in

201 Credit Agreement which provides for five-year $1.5 billion
each case an applicable margin The applicable margin is 1.13 percent

unsecured revolving credit
facility

with the option to extend the maturity
per year subject to adjustment based on the credit rating assigned to

for up to an additional two years The 201 Credit Agreement also
our senior unsecured debt

contains an option under which subject to certain conditions we may

request an increase in the
facility to $2.25 billion This new facility

replaces the two existing unsecured credit agreements the domestic and 20 Senior Notes

European credit agreements aggregating approximately $91 million

that were scheduled to mature August 28 2012
On November 22 2011 we issued $300 million

aggregate principal

amount of 3.95 percent Senior Notes due 2022 The net proceeds

from the offering were used for general corporate purposes including

acquisitions

Debt maturing within one year

Debt maturing within one year consists of the following

December 31

nMillions 2011 2010

Short-term debt 27.0 18.5

Current portion of long-term debt 19.5 116.4

TOTAL DEBT MATURING WITHIN ONE YEAR 46.5 134.9

Weighted average interest rates for short-term debt outsanding at year-end 9.7% 5.0%

Short-term debt consisted of foreign credit lines at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 We often provide parent-company guarantees

to lending institutions providing credit to our foreign subsidiaries
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December 31 2011

Interest Rate

Percentagein Millions Maturity Date 12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Pollution control and industrial revenue bonds less unamortized discounts

of $0.2 and $0.2 respectively 0.1-6.5% 2013-2035 176.7 182.0

Debentures 7% 455

Senior notes less unamortized discount of $2.1 and $0.9 respectively 3.95-5.2% 2019-2022 597.9 299.1

2011 credit agreement 1.4% 2016

Foreign debt 0-11.3% 2013 24.0 92.8

Total long-term debt 798.6 619A

Less debt maturing within one year 19.5 116.4

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT PORTION 779.1 503.0

The debentures matured and were paid on July
2011

At December 31 2011 we had no in borrowings under the 2011 Credit Agreement Letters of credit outstanding under the 2011 Credit

Agreement totaled $75.5 million Therefore available funds under this
facility were $1424.5 million at December 31 2011

Maturities of long-term debt

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding excluding discounts at

December 31 2011 are $19.5 million in 2012 $5.7 million in 2013

$32.5 million in 2014 $0.1 million in 2015 $0.1 million in 2016

and $743.0 million thereafter

Covenants

Among other restrictions the 2011 Credit Agreement contains financial

covenants applicable to FMC and its consolidated subsidiaries related

to leverage measured as the ratio of debt to adjusted earnings and

interest
coverage measured as the ratio of adjusted earnings to interest

expense Our actual leverage for the fuur consecutive quarters ended

December 31 2011 was 1.4 which is below the maximum leverage

of 3.5 Our actual interest
coverage

for the four consecutive qu1rters

ended December 31 2011 was 15.9 which is above the minimum

interest coverage
of 3.5 We were in compliance with all covenants at

December 31 2011

Compensating Balance Agreements

We maintain informal credit
arrangements

in many foreign countiies

Foreign lines of credit which include overdraft facilities typically

do not require the maintenance of compensating balances as credit

extension is not guaranteed but is subject to the availability of funds

NOTE 13 Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits

The funded status of our U.S qualified and nonqualified defined benefit

pension plans our United Kingdom Ireland and Norway defined

benefit pension plans plus our U.S other postretirement healthcare

and life insurance benefit plans for continuing operations together

with the associated balances and net periodic benefit cost recognized

in our consolidated financial statements as of December 31 are shown

in the tables below

We are required to recognize in our consolidated balance sheets the

overfunded and underfunded status of our defined benefit postretirenient

plans The overfunded or underfunded status is defined as the difference

between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation

We are also required to recognize as component
of other comprehensive

income the actuarial
gains

and losses and the
prior

service costs and

credits that arise during the period
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The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used and components of our defined benefit postretirement plans The following

tables also reflect measurement date of December 31

Pensions Other Benefits

December 31 _________________________________

in Millions exceprfor percentages
2011 2010 2011 2010

Following are the weighted average assumptions used

to determine the benefit obligations at December 31

Discount Rate 4.95% 5.40% 4.95% 5.40%

Rate of compensation increase 3.40% 4.20%

Accumulated benefit obligation

Plans with unfi.inded accumulated benefit obligation 1213.9 1106.5

Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation atJanuary 1175.5 1098.6 45.4 42.3

Service cost 18.8 18.2 0.1 0.2

Interest cost 61.6 63.2 1.5 2.5

Actuarial loss gain 69.4 66.5 15.5 2.9

Amendments 2.2 5.7

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 0.9 3.9

Plan participants contributions 0.2 0.2 6.0 6.4

Settlements 15.6

Other 0.5 0.1 0.1

Curtailments 0.5

Benefits paid 59 56

Projected benefit obligation at December31 1268.3 1175.5 28.4 45.4

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January 905.8 766.7

Actual return on plan assets 8.4 111.7

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 0.6 2.9

Company contributions 64.0 102.6 3.0 2.6

Plan participants contributions 0.2 0.2 6.0 6.4

Settlements 15.6

Benefits paid 59.0 56.9 9.0 9.0

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 918.8 905.8

FUNDED STATUS OF THE PLAN LIABILITY 349.5 269.7 28.4 45.4

Amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

Pension other asset 1.9

Accrued benefit
liability 349.5 271.6 28.4 45.4

TOTAL 349.5 269.7 28.4 45.4

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income

loss that has not yet been recognized as components of net

periodic benefit cost at December31 2011 and 2010 are as

follows

Net transition asset 0.1

Prior service cost credit 9.8 9.5 0.2 0.3

Net actuarial loss gain 586.3 480.0 16.1 3.1

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss pretax 596 489 16

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss net of tax 373.5 306.5 11.3 4.1

Rfer to Note 9for information on our discontinued
postreti

rement benefit plans
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Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations for continuing operations recognized in other comprehensive
loss income are as follows

Pensions

Year ended December 31

Other Benefits

Our U.S qualified
defined benefit pension plan U.S Plan holds

the majority of our pension plan assets The expected long-term rate of

return on these plan assets was 8.5 percent
for 2011 2010 and 2009

In developing the assumption for the long-term rate of return on assets

for our U.S Plan we take into consideration the technical analysis

performed by our outside actuaries including historical market returns

information on the assumption for long-term
real returns by asset class

inflation assumptions and expectations
for standard deviation related

to these best estimates We also consider the historical performance

of our own plans trust which has earned compound annual rate of

return of approximately 9.36 percent over the last 20 years which is

in excess of comparable market indices for the same period as well

as other factors Given an actively managed investment portfolio the

expected annual rates of return by asset class for our portfolio assuming

an estimated inflation rate of approximately 2.1 percent is between

7.9 percent
and 10.4 percent for equities

and between 3.4 percent

and 6.0 percent for fixed-income investments which
generates

total

expected portfolio return that is in line with our assumption
for the

rate of return on assets The target asset allocation for 2011 by asset

category is 75 to 85 percent equity securities 15 to 25 percent fixed

income investments and zero to percent cash and other short-term

investments

Our U.S qualified pension plans investment
strategy

consists of

total return investment management approach using portfolio mix

of equities and fixed income investments to maximize the long-term

return of plan assets for an appropriate level of risk The goal of this

strategy is to minimize plan expenses by matching asset growth to the

plans liabilities over the long run Furthermore equity investments are

weighted towards value equities and diversified across U.S and non-U.S

stocks Derivatives and hedging instruments may be used effectively

to manage and balance risks associated with the plans investments

Investment performance and related risks are measured and monitored

on an ongoing basis through annual liability measurements periodic

asset and liability studies and quarterly investment portfolio reviews

in Millions
2011 2010 2011 2010

Current year net actuarial loss gain 143.9 33.8 15.5 2.9

Current year prior service cost credit 2.2 5.5

Amortization of net actuarial loss gain 36.3 34.1 2.4 0.4

Amortization of prior service cost credit L9 1.2 0.2 0.1

Foreign currency exchange rate changes on the above line items 1.2 08
Total recognized in other comprehensive income loss before taxes 106.7 3.2 12.9 3.4

Total recognized an other comprehensive income loss after taxes 67

Refer to Note 9for information on our discontinued postretirement benefit plans

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost for our pension actuarial gain
and prior service credit for our other benefits that will be

plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income loss into

income loss into our net annual benefit cost income during 2012 net annual benefit cost income during 2012 will be $2.1 million

are $53.0 million and $2.1 million respectively The estimated net and $0.2 million respectively

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used for and the components of net annual benefit cost income

Year Ended December 31

Pensions Other Benefits

inMillionsexcepeforpercentages 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.40% 5.90% 7.00% 5.40% 5.90% 7.00%

Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%

Rate of compensation increase 4.20% 4.20% 4.20%

Components of net annual benefit cost

in millions

Service cost 18.8 182 16.7 0.1 0.2 0.2

Interest cost 61.6 63.2 64.2 1.5 2.5 2.6

Expected return on plan assets 82.5 79.0 74.8

Amortization of transition asset
0.1

Amortization of prior service cost 1.9 1.2 0.8 0.2 0.1 1.0

Amortization of net actuarial and other

gain loss 36.3 26.5 5.8 2.4 0.4 0.9

Recognized loss due to settlement

and curtailments

NET ANNUAL BENEFIT COST FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 36.1 37.2 13.4 1.0 2.2 0.9
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The
following tables present our fair value hierarchy for our major categories of pension plan assets by asset class See Note 17 for the definition

of fair value and the descriptions of Level and in the fair value hierarchy

in Millioni

Cash and short term investments

Equity securities

Common stock

Preferred stock

Mutual ftinds

Fixed income investments

Investment contracts

Mutual funds

Corporate debt instruments

Government debt

Other investments

Real estate/property

Private equity funds

We made the following contributions to our pension and other postretirement benefit plans

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010

U.S qualified pension plan 55.0 80.0

U.S Nonqualified pension plan 3.1 18.0

Non-U.S plans 5.9 4.6

Other postretirement benefits net of participant contributions 3.0 2.6

TOTAL 67.0 105.2

We expect our voluntary cash contributions to our U.S qualified pension plan to be $65 million in 2012

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other

Identical Assets Observable Inputs

12/31/2011 Level Level

39.5 39.5

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

474.2 474.2

2.6 2.6

191.9 128.8 63.1

199.6 199.6

7.4 7.4

0.5 0.5

2.4 2.4

0.6 0.6

Other
0.1 0.1

TOTAL ASSETS 918.8 655.4 262.7 0.7

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs

in Millions 12/31/2010 Level Level Level

Cash and short-term investments 46.6 46.6

Equity securities

Common stock 457.4 457.4

Preferred stock 1.3 1.3

Mutual funds 205.3 134.5 70.8

Fixed income investments

Investment contracts 185.4 185.4

Mutual funds 6.9 6.9

Government debt
2.1 2.1

Other investments

Real estate/property 0.6 0.6

Private equity funds 0.1 0.1

Other 0.1 0.1

TOTAL ASSETS 905.8 648.8 256.2 0.8

As of December31 2011 and2OlO we have $63.1 million and $70.8 million
respectively of investments in certain mutual

finds where the net asset value reported by the
underlying

funds approximates
the

fair value These investments are redeemable with the fltnd at net asset value under the
original terms of the partnership agreements

and/or subscription

agreements
and

operacions of the
underlying finds However it is possible that these

redemption rights may be restricted or eliminated by the juinds in the future in accordance with

the
underlyingfiind agreements Due to the nature of the investments held

by
the flnds changes in market conditions and the economic environment may significantly impact the net

asset value of the flnds and consequently the fair value of the interests in the funds Furthermore changes to the liquidity provisions of the fltnds may sign /flcantly impact che
fair

value of the interest in the fiinds

The change in the value of plan assets using significant unobservable inputs Level from December 31 2010 to December 31 2011 was not

material for the period presented There were no changes to the Level investments during 2010
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The following table reflects the estimated future benefit payments
for our pension

and other postretirement
benefit plans These estimates take

into consideration expected future service as appropriate

ESTIMATED NET FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS

in Millions

2012
70.8

2013
74.6

2014
77.0

2015
78.9

2016
81.7

20172021
440.4

Assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the other FMC Corporation Savings
and Investment Plan The FMC

postretirement
benefit obligations and net periodic

other postretirement Corporation Savings and Investment Plan is qualified salary-reduction

benefit costs reported for the health care portion
of the other plan under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code in which

postretirement plan one-percentage point change in the assumed substantially all of our U.S employees may participate by contributing

health care cost trend rates would be immaterial to our net periodic
other portion of their compensation For eligible employees participating

postretirement
benefit costs for the year

ended December 31 201 in the Plan except for those employees covered by certain collective

and our other postretirement benefit obligation at December 31 2011 bargaining agreements
the Company makes matching contributions

of 80 percent
of the portion of those contributions up to five

percent

The United Kingdom Ireland and Norway pension plans are included
of the employees compensation Additionally effective July 2007

in our disclosures for all years presented
The financial

impact
of

all newly hired and rehired salaried and nonunion employees receive

compliance with U.S GAAP pension accounting literature for other

an employer contribution of five
percent

of the employees eligible

non-U.S
pension plans is not substantially different from the locally

compensation
This change was instituted for these employees effective

reported pension expense
July 2007 since newly hired and rehired salaried and nonunion hourly

employees are no longer eligible
for our defined benefit plan Charges

against income for both of these contributions were $10.6 million in

2011 $7.8 million in 2010 and $7.1 million in 2009

NOTE 14 Share-based Compensation

Stock Compensation Plans

We have share-based compensation plan which has been approved

by the stockholders for certain employees officers and directors This

plan is described below

FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock

Plan

The FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan the

Plan provides for the grant of variety of cash and equity awards

to officers directors employees and consultants including stock

options restricted stock performance units including restricted

stock units stock appreciation rights
and multi-year management

incentive awards payable partly in cash and partly in common stock

The Compensation
and Organization Committee of the Board of

Directors the Committee subject to the provisions
of the Plan

approves
financial targets award grants

and the times and conditions for

payment
of awards to employees The FMC Corporation Non-Employee

Directors Compensation Policy formerly the FMC Corporation

Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors administered by

the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board

of Directors sets forth the compensation to be paid to the directors

including
awards currently restricted stock units only to be made to

directors under the Plan

Stock options granted under the Plan may be incentive or nonqualifled

stock options
The exercise price for stock options may not be less than

the fair market value of the stock at the date of grant
Awards granted

under the Plan vest or become exercisable or payable at the time

designated by the Committee which has generally been three years

from the date of
grant

Incentive and nonqualified options granted

under the Plan expire not later than 10 years from the
grant

date

Under the Plan awards of restricted stock and restricted stock units

may be made to selected employees The awards vest over periods

designated by the Committee which has generally been three years

with
payment

conditional upon continued employment Compensation

cost is recognized over the vesting periods
based on the market value

of the stock on the date of the award Restricted stock units granted

to directors under the Plan vest immediately if granted as part
of or

in lieu of the annual retainer other restricted stock units granted to

directors vest at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders in the calendar

year following the May annual grant date

The total number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance

under the Plan is 14.4 million which is in addition to the shares available

from predecessor plans Cancellations through expiration forfeiture or

otherwise of outstanding awards increase the shares available for future

awards or grants At December 31 2011 5.1 million shares of FMC
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common stock were reserved for share based awards which
represents

the sum of available future grants of share based awards 3.3 million

and unvested share-based awards 1.8 million

At December 31 2011 and 2010 there were restricted stock units

representing an aggregate
of 51849 shares and 41374 shares of common

stock respectively credited to the directors accounts

Stock Compensation

We recognized total of $15.8 million $9.8 million after-tax

$14.7 million $9.1 million after-tax and $11.2 million $6.9 million

after-tax in share-based
compensation expense during the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively This
expense

is

classified as selling general and administrative in our consolidated

statements of income

We received $11.3 million $18.1 million and $10.2 million in cash related

to stock option exercises for the years ended December 31 2011 2010

and 2009 respectively The shares used for the exercise of stock options

occurring during the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

came from treasury shares

For tax
purposes

share-based
compensation expense is deductible in

the
year

of exercise or vesting based on the intrinsic value of the award

on the date of exercise or vesting For financial
reporting purposes

share-based compensation expense is based upon grant-date fair value

and amortized over the
vesting period Excess tax benefits represent the

difference between the share-based compensation expense
for financial

reporting purposes
and the deduction taken for tax purposes These

excess tax benefits cannot be reported in our financial statements

while net operating loss exists From the adoption of share-based

compensation accounting in 2006 through March 31 2010 we did

not recognize any excess tax benefits in our consolidated balance sheets

from the exercise of stock options and the vesting of restricted awards

due to our U.S net operating loss carryforward position

During the second and third quarter of 2010 we utilized the
remaining

U.S financial net operating
losses as we generated U.S income during

2010 sufficient to absorb the remaining unrecognized excess tax

benefits As result we recognized all of the excess tax benefits from

the exercise of stock options and the
vesting

of restricted stock awards

from 2006 through 2009 as well as the excess tax benefits generated

during the period from January 12010 through December 31 2010

As of December 31 2010 we recognized $56.3 million of excess tax

benefits of which $44.0 million related to years 2006 through 2009 on

our consolidated balance sheet as component of equity This amount

is also included as financing activity in our consolidated statements

of cash flows for the
year

ended December 31 2010 The excess tax

benefits for the
year

ended December 31 2011 totaled $7.4 million

Stock Options

The grant-date fair values of the stock options we granted in the years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 were estimated using the

Black-Scholes
option valuation model the key assumptions for which

are listed in the table below The expected volatility assumption is based

on the actual historical experience of our common stock The expected

life
represents

the period of time that options granted are expected to

be
outstanding The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S Treasury

securities with terms equal to the expected timing of stock option

exercises as of the
grant date The dividend yield assumption reflects

anticipated dividends on our common stock

Black Scholes valuation assumptions for stock option grants

2011 2010 2009

Expected dividend yield 0.61% 0.87% 1.13%

Expected volatility 41.61% 42.17% 41.90%

Expectedlifeinyears 6.5 6.5 6.5

Risk-free interest rate 2.84% 3.13% 2.82%

The
weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the

years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $35.17 $24.50

and $18.17 per share respectively
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The following summary shows stock option activity for employees under the Plan for the three years ended December 31 2011

We recognized $6.0 million $3.7 million after-tax $5.3 million

$3.3 million after-tax and $4.9 million $3.0 million after-tax in

compensation expense
related to stock options

for the
years

ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively We applied an

estimated forfeiture rate of four
percent per

stock option grant irs the

calculation of such
expense

As of December 31 2011 we had total remaining unrecognized

compensation cost related to unvested stock options of $6.5 million

which will be amortized over the weighted-average remaining requisite

service period of approximately 1.8 years

Restricted Awards

The grant-date
fair value of restricted stock awards and stock units under

the Plan is based on the market price per share of our common stock

on the date of grant and the related compensation cost is amortized

to expense on straight-line basis over the vesting period during which

the employees perform related services which is typically three years

except for those
eligible

for retirement prior to the stated vesting period

The following table shows our employee restricted award activity for the three years ended December 31 2011

We recognized $9.8 million $6.1 million after-tax $9.4 million

$5.8 million after-tax and $6.3 million $3.9 million after-tax in

compensation expense
related to restricted awards for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively We applied an

estimated forfeiture rate assumption of two percent
of outstanding grants

in the calculation of such
expense

As of December 31 2011 we had

total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested

restricted awards of $9.1 million which will be amortized over the

weighted-average remaining requisite service period of approximately

1.9 years

Number of

Options Granted

But Not Exercised

Weighted-Average

Remaining Weighted-Average

Contractual Life Exercise Price

in Years Per Share

Aggregate

Intrinsic

Value

Number of Shares in Thousands In Md/ions

December 31 2008 1528 shares exercisable 2492 5.4 26.49 45.4

Granted 281 44.45

Exercised 574 13.40 19.9

Forfeited 24 43.76

December 31 2009 1315 shares exercisable 2175 5.4 30.94 54.0

Granted 271 57.33

Exercised 845 21.35 37.3

Forfeited 16 51.93

December 31 2010 777 shares exercisable 1585 6.4 40.33 62.8

Granted 216 81.77

Exercised 375 30.10 19.7

Forfeited 21 46.16

December 31 2011670 shares exercisable and

1.76 charec exoected to vest 1405
--

6.4 49.34 11.6

The number of stock options
indicated in the above table as being exercisable as of December 31 2011 had an intrinsic value of $32.3 million

weighted-average remaining contractual term of 4.6 years and weighted-average exercise price of $37.83

Weighted-Average

Number ofAwards in Thousands
Number of awards Grant Date Fair Value

Nonvested at December 31 2008 429 40.40

Granted
90 44.52

Vested
131 30.65

Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31 2009
380 4470

Granted
208 1.57

Vested
131 40.02

Forfeited
S2.78

Nonvested at December 31 2010 456 53.71

Granted
91 81.S2

Vested
160 48.49

Forfeited
51.16

Nonvested at December 31 2011 379 62.66
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NOTE 15 Equity

The following is summary of our capital stock activity over the
past three years

Earnings per common share EPS is computed by dividing net

income by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding

during the period on basic and diluted basis

Our potentially dilutive securities include potential common shares

related to our stock options restricted stock and restricted stock units

Diluted earnings per
share Diluted EPS considers the impact of

potentially dilutive securities except in periods in which there is loss

because the inclusion of the potential common shares would have

an antidilutive effect Diluted EPS excludes the impact of potential

common shares related to our stock options in periods in which the

option exercise price is

greater
than the

average
market

price of our

common stock for the period For the
year ended December 31 2011

there were 215406 potential common shares excluded from Diluted

EPS For the year ended December 31 2010 there were no potential

common shares excluded from Diluted EPS however for the
year ended

December 31 2009 there were 278173 potential common shares

excluded from Diluted EPS

Our non-vested restricted stock awards contain rights to receive non-

forfeitable dividends and thus are participating securities requiring the

two-class method of computing EPS The two-class method determines

EPS by dividing the sum of distributed earnings to common stockholders

and undistributed earnings allocated to common stockholders by the

weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for

the period In calculating the two-class method undistributed earnings

are allocated to both common shares and participating securities based

on the
weighted average

shares outstanding during the
period

Common Stock Treasury Stock

December31 2008 92991896 20481937
Stock options and awards

733369

Repurchases of common stock net
724448

December31 2009 92991896 20473016
Stock options and awards 883856
Repurchases of common stock net

1.916892

December31 2010 92.991896 21.506052

Stock options and awards 459473

Repurchases of common stock net 2108159

December31 2011 92991896 23154738

Accumulated other comprehensive gain loss consisted of the following

December 31

in Millions 2011 2010

Deferred loss gain on derivative contracts 7.2 3.5
Pension and other

Postretirement liability adjustment 353.5 293.3

Foreign currency translation adjustments 29.3 14.9
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE GAIN LOSS 390.0 311.7

Dividends and Share Repurchases On February 18 2011 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase

of
up to $250 million of our common stock At December 31 2011

On January 19 2012 we paid dividends totaling $10.5 million to our
$139.8 million remained unused from the authorization On

shareholders of record as of December 30 201 This amount is included
February 17 2012 the Board authorized the repurchase of

up to an
in Accrued and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets as additional $250 million of our common stock The repurchase program
of December 31 2011 For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 does not include specific timetable or price targets and may be
and 2009 we paid $41.2 million $36.4 million and $36.3 million in

suspended or terminated at any time Shares may be purchased through
dividends respectively On February 17 2012 the Board authorized

open
market or privately negotiated transactions at the discretion of

an increase in the dividend from $0.15 to $0.18 per share
management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other

factors
During the year ended December 31 2011 2053478 shares

were repurchased under the publicly announced repurchase program
for $165.1 million

NOTE 16 Earnings Per Share
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Earnings applicable to common stock and common stock shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows

The estimated fair value of our financial instruments has been determined

using available market information and appropriate valuation methods

Accordingly
the estimates presented may not be indicative of the amounts

that we would realize in market exchange at settlement date and do not

represent potential gains or losses on these agreements
The estimated fair

values of foreign exchange
forward contracts and commodity forward and

option contracts are included in the tables within this Note The estimated

fair value of debt is $866.8 million and $648.8 million and the carrying

amount is $825.6 million and $637.9 million as of December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 respectively

Use of Derivative Financial Instruments

to Manage Risk

We mitigate certain financial exposures including currency risk interest

rate risk and commodity purchase exposures through program
of risk

management
that includes the use of derivative financial instruments We

enter into foreign exchange contracts including forward and purchased

option contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign currency

exchange rates

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments

and hedged items as well as the risk management objective and strategy

for undertaking various hedge transactions This process
includes relating

derivatives that are designated as fair value or cash flow hedges to specific

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific
firm commitments

or forecasted transactions We also formally assess at the inception of the

hedge and on an ongoing basis whether each derivative is highly effective

in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item If

we determine that derivative is not highly effective as hedge or if

derivative ceases to be highly effective hedge we discontinue hedge

accounting with respect to that derivative prospectively

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Management

We conduct business in many foreign countries exposing earnings cash

flows and our financial position to foreign currency
risks The majority

of

these risks arise as result of foreign currency transactions Our policy is

to minimize exposure
to adverse changes in currency exchange rates This

is accomplished through controlled program
of risk management that

includes the use of foreign currency debt and forward foreign exchange

contracts We also use forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge
firm

in Millions Except Share and Per Share Data
2011

Earnings loss attributable to FMC stockholders

Income from continuing operations attributable to FMC stockholders 397.7 206.1 246.7

Discontinued operations net of income taxes
31.8 33.6 18.2

Net income
365.9 172.5 228.5

Less Distnbuted and undistributed earnmgs allocable to restricted award holders

NET INCOME ALLOCABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS 364.2 171.5 227.4

Bask earnings loss per common share attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations
5.58 2.84 3.40

Discontinued operations
45 46 25

NET INCOME 5.13 2.38 3.15

Diluted earnings loss per common share attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations
5.54 2.82 3.37

Discontinued operations
0.44 0.46 0.25

NET INCOME 5.10 2.36 3.12

Shares in thousands

Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding Basic 71028 72210 72163

Weighted average additional shares assuming conversion of potential common shares 626 870 138

SHARES DILUTED BASIS 71654 73080 73301

NOTE 17 Financial Instruments Risk Management and Fair Value Measurements

Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents trade receivables other current assets accounts payable
and amounts included in

investments and accruals meeting the definition of financial instruments The carrying value of these financial instruments approximates
their

fair value Our other financial instruments include the following

Financial Instrument Valuation Method

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts Estimated amounts that would be received or paid to terminate the contracts at the reporting date based

on current market
prices

for applicable currencies

Commodity Forward and Option Contracts Estimated amounts that would be received or paid to terminate the contracts at the reporting date based

on quoted market prices
for applicable commodities

Debt Our estimates and information obtained from independent third
parties using market data such as bid/

ask spreads for the last business day of the reporting period
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and highly anticipated foreign currency cash flows with an objective of

balancing currency
risk to provide adequate protection from significant

fluctuations in the
currency markets

The primary currency movements for which we have
exchange-rate exposure

are the U.S dollar versus the euro the U.S dollar versus the Chinese
yuan

and the U.S dollar versus the Brazilian real

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to risks in
energy costs due to fluctuations in

energy prices

particularly natural
gas We attempt to mitigate our exposure to increasing

energy costs by hedging the cost of future deliveries of natural
gas

and

entering into fixed-price contracts for the purchase of coal and fuel oil

Our Agricultural Products
segment enters into contracts with certain

customers in Brazil whereby we exchange our products for physical delivery

of soybeans from the customer In order to mitigate the price risk associated

with these barter contracts we have entered into offsetting derivatives to

hedge our exposure

Interest Rate Risk

We use various
strategies to manage our interest rate exposure including

entering into interest rate swap agreements to achieve targeted mix of fixed

and variable-rate debt In the agreements we exchange at specified intervals

the difference between fixed and variable-interest amounts calculated on

an agreed-upon notional principal amount As of December31 2011 and

December 31 2010 we had no such
swap agreements

in place

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our counterparties to derivative contracts are primarily major financial

institutions We limit the dollar amount of contracts entered into with any

one financial institution and monitor counterparties credit ratings We
also enter into master netting agreements with each financial institution

where possible which helps mitigate the credit risk associated with our

financial instruments While we may be exposed to credit losses due to the

nonperformance of counterparties we consider this risk remote

Financial Guarantees and Letter-of-Credit

Commitments

We enter into various financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk as

part of the normal course of business These off-balance-sheet instruments

include financial guarantees and contractual commitments to extend

financial
guarantees under letters of credit and other assistance to customers

Notes and 18 Decisions to extend financial
guarantees to customers

and the amount of collateral required under these guarantees is based on

our evaluation of creditworthiness on case-by-case basis

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities

Cash Flow Hedges

We
recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value On the

date the derivative instrument is entered into we designate the derivative

as hedge of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related

to forecasted transaction cash flow hedge We record in accumulated

other comprehensive income or loss AOCI changes in the fair value

of derivatives that are designated as and meet all the required criteria

for cash flow hedge We then
reclassify these amounts into earnings as

the underlying hedged item affects earnings We record immediately in

earnings changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not designated

as cash flow hedges

As of December 31 2011 we had
open foreign currency forward contracts

inAOCI in net loss
position of$l.5 million before-tax $1.3 million

after-tax designated as cash flow hedges of
underlying forecasted sales

and purchases Current open contracts hedge forecasted transactions

until December31 2012 At December 31 2011 we had open forward

contracts with various expiration dates to buy sell or exchange foreign

currencies with U.S dollar equivalent of approximately $410 million

As of December31 2011 we had current open commodity contracts in

AOCI in net loss
position of $7.3 million before-tax $4.5 million after-

tax designated as cash flow hedges of underlying forecasted purchases

primarily natural
gas

Current
open commodity contracts hedge forecasted

transactions until December 31 2013 At December 31 2011 we had

8.2 million mmBTUs millions of British Ihermal Units in aggregate

notional volume of outstanding natural
gas commodity forward contracts

to hedge forecasted purchases

Of the $5.8 million of net losses after-tax representing both open foreign

currency exchange contracts and open commodity contracts approximately

$5.8 million of these losses would be realized in
earnings during the twelve

months ending December 31 2012 if
spot rates in the future are consistent

with forward rates as of December 31 2011 The actual effect on earnings

will be dependent on actual
spot rates when the forecasted transactions

occur We recognize derivative
gains and losses in the Costs of sales and

services line in the consolidated statements of income

Derivatives Not Designated As Hedging Instruments

We hold certain forward contracts that have not been
designated as cash

flow hedging instruments for
accounting purposes Contracts used to

hedge the exposure to foreign currency fluctuations associated with certain

monetary assets and liabilities are not designated as cash flow
hedging

instruments and changes in the fair value of these items are recorded in

earnings We hold call options that are effective as economic hedges of

portion of our natural
gas exposure and the change in fair value of this

instrument is also recorded in earnings We periodically hold soybean

barter contracts which qualify as derivatives and we have entered into

offsetting commodity contracts to hedge our exposure Both the change

in fair value of the soybean barter contracts and the offsetting commodity

contracts are recorded in earnings

We had
open

forward contracts not designated as cash flow hedging

instruments for
accounting purposes with various

expiration dates to

buy sell or exchange foreign currencies with U.S dollar equivalent of

approximately $392 million at December31 2011 We held an immaterial

amount of bushels in
aggregate notional volume of

outstanding soybean

contracts to hedge outstanding barter contracts at December 31 2011
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The following table provides the fair value and balance sheet presentation
of our derivative instruments as of December 31 2011 and 2010

December 312011 December 31 2010

in Millions
Balance Sheet Location Fair Value

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges

Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid and other current assets 8.4 0.7

Commodity contracts

Energy contracts Prepaid and other current assets 0.5

Total Derivative Assets
8.9 0.7

Foreign exchange contracts Accrued and other liabilities 10.3 0.5

Commodity contracts

Energy contracts
Accrued and other liabilities 8.0 6.0

Total Derivative Liabilities
18.3 6.5

NET DERWATIVE ASSETS/LIABILITIES
9.4 5.8

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid and other current assets 3.5 0.4

Commodity contracts

Energy contracts Prepaid and other current assets
0.2

Total Derivative Assets
3.5 0.6

Foreign exchange contracts Accrued and other liabilities 1.6

Total Derivative Liabilities
1.6

NET DERWATWE ASSETS/ LIABILITIES 3.5 1.0

The information included in the above chart is also presented in our fair value table included below

The following tables provide the impact
of derivative instruments and related hedged items on the consolidated statements of income for the

years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Amount of Pre-tax Gain or Loss

Amount of Gain or Loss Recognized Amount of Pre-tax Gain or Loss Recognized in Income on Derivative

in OCI on Derivatives net of tax Reclassified from AOCI into Income Ineffective Portion and Amount

Effective Portion Effective Portion Excluded from Effectiveness Testing

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2011 _____
2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

1.5 1.0 15.7 1.7 2.0 8.3 0.5 0.3 0.1

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

in Millions
2011

Foreign exchange contracts

Commodity contracts

Energy contracts 0.9 4.3 15.7 8.1 5.8 30.5 0.6

Other 1.3

TOTAL 3.7 3.3 31.4 9.8 3.8 38.8 0.5 0.3 0.7

Amounts are included in Cost of sales and services and Interest expense on the consolidated statements of income

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Amount of Pre-tax Gain or Loss Recognized

in Income on Derivatives

Location of Gain or Loss Recognized
Year Ended December 31

in Millions
in Income on Derivatives 2011 2010 2009

Foreign Exchange contracts Cost of Sales and Services 3.3 3.0 36.9

Commodity contracts

Energy contracts Cost of Sales and Services 0.2 0.8 0.2

TOTAL 3.1 3.8 37.1
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Fair-Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer
liability

in an orderly transaction between market
participants

at the measurement date Market participants are defined as buyers or

sellers in the
principle or most advantageous market for the asset or

liability that are independent of the reporting entity knowledgeable

and able and willing to transact for the asset or liability

Fair-Value Hierarchy

We have categorized our assets and liabilities that are recorded at fair

value based on the priority of the inputs to thc valuation technique into

three-level fair-value hierarchy The fair-value hierarchy gives
the highest

priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs Level If the

inputs used to measure the assets and liabilities fall within different levels

of the
hierarchy the categorization is based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair-value measurement of the instrument

in Millions December 31 2011

ASSETS

Available-for-sale securities

Common Stock 0.1 0.1

Derivatives Commodities

Energy contracts 0.5 0.5

Derivatives Foreign Exchange 11.9 1.9

Other 20.9 20.9

TOTALASSETS 33.4 21.0 12.4

LIABILITIES

Derivatives Commodities

Energy contracts 8.0 8.0

Derivatives Foreign Exchange 10.3 10.3

Acquisition 3.5 3.5

Other 31.8 31.8

TOTAL LIABILITIES 53.6 31.8 18.3 3.5

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant

Markets for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
in Millions December 31 2010 Level Level Level

ASSETS

Available-for-sale securities

Common Stock 0.1 0.1

Derivatives Commodities

Energy contracts 0.2 0.2

Derivatives Foreign Exchange 1.1

Other 22.1 22.1

TOTAL ASSETS 23.5 22.2 1.3

LIABILITIES

Derivatives Commodities

Energy contracts 6.0 6.0

Derivatives Foreign Exchange 2.1 .- 2.1

Other

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Amounts included in Investments in the consolidated balance sheets

Amounts included in Prepaid and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets

32.2 32.2

40.3 32.2 8.1

Consists of deferred compensation arrangement through whith we hold various investment securities recognized on our balance sheet Both the avsct and liability are recorded at fair
value Asset amounts included in Other assets in the consolidated balance sheets

Amounts included in Accrued and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets

Represents contingent
consideration associated with the

acquisitions during 2011 See Note 3for more information The changes in this level liability acre not inaterialJir the
period

presented

Consists ofa deferred compensation arrangement recognized on our balance sheet Both the asset and liability are recorded acfuir value liahility amounts mi luded in Other
long-term

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets

The following tables
present our fair-value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair-value on recurring basis in our consolidated

balance sheets as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

Quoted Prices in Active

Markets for Identical Assets

Level

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

Level

Significant

Unobservable Inputs

Level
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The following tables present our fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring basis in our consolidated

balance sheets during the year
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 See Note for the assets and liabilities measured on non-recurring basis

at fair value associated with our acquisitions

in Millions

ASSETS

Long-lived assets to be

abandoned 2.3
2.3 16.4

TOTAL ASSETS 2.3 2.3 16.4

LIABILITIES

Liabilities associated with

exit activities
12 5.5 5.5 5.5

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5.5 5.5 5.5

In connection with the Sodium Percarbonate phase-out
we recorded charges to write down the value of the related long-lived assets to be abandoned to their

salvage
value of

$0.7 million The
majority of the lo ng-li

ved assets have afair value ofzero as they have nofiirure use and are anticipated
to be demolished We also recognized $1.6 million charge to

write-down certain other assets to fair
value in our Industrial Chemicals segment during the

year
ended December31 2011 The loss noted in the above cable represents

the accelerated

depreciation
and write-down of these assets recorded during the period

This amount represents
severance liabilities associated with the Sodium Pertarbonate phase-out asfrrther

described in Note

Long-lived assets to be

abandoned 6.0
6.0 71.6

TOTAL ASSETS 6.0
6.0 71.6

LIABILITIES

Asset retirement

obligations
28.8

28.8

Liabilities associated with

exit activities
46.0 46.0 46.0

TOTAL LIABILITIES 74.8 46.0 28.8 46.0

recorded charges of $694 million related to Hue/ia
facility

shutdown and $2.2 snillion for the ante-off of certain other zssits in our industrial .hemzsal
segment during i/ic

year

ended December31 2010 We retorded charges to write down the value of these
long-lived

assets to their salvage
value of$6.0 million The

majority of the long-lived assets have

fair value ofzero as they
have nojiaure use and are anti cp ated to be demolished The loss noted in the above table

represents
the accelerated depreciation of these assets recorded

luring

the period See Note 7for additional details of the
charges

incurred related to the Hue/va facility shutdown

In connection with the Huelva facility shutdown during the twelve months ended December31 2010 we accelerated the estimated settle ment dote associated with the asset retirement

obligations at this
facility

and as result recorded an increase to the obligation
in the amount of $28.8 million We estimated the

fair
value of the asset retirement obligations

based

on engineering
estimates provided by experienced engineers

who have dealt with the retirement ofand disposal ofcontaminated equipment instruments and hazardous chemicals The

associated asset retirement obligations are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of related long-lived assets and this capitalized cost is depreciated
on an accelerated basis over the

remaining phase-out period of the expected facility operation

In connection with the Alginates restructuring
discussed in Note we recorded liabilities in the amount of $5.0 million during the

year
ended December 31 2010 related to the

accrual of costs associated with leased properties
which we have ceased using Also in connection with the Hue/va facility shutdown noted above we recorded liabilities in the amount

of $41.0 million mainly related to severance costs and contract termination fees

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant

Year Ended Markets for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

December 312011 Level Level Level

Total Gains Losses

Year Ended

December 31 2011

in Millions

ASSETS

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant

Year Ended Markets for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

December 31 2010 Level Level Level

Total Gains Losses

Year Ended

December 31 2010
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NOTE 18 Guarantees Commitments and Contingencies

We lease office space plants and facilities and various types of

manufacturing data
processing and transportation equipment Leases

of real estate generally provide for our payment of property taxes

insurance and repairs Capital leases are not significant Rent
expense

under
operating leases amounted to $19.5 million $18.8 million and

$18.9 million in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Rent
expense

is

net of credits received for the use of leased transportation assets of

$23.1 million $21.9 million and $19.8 million in 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

Minimum future rentals under noncancelable leases are estimated to

be
payable as follows $27.4 million in 2012 $28.6 million in 2013

$26.5 million in 2014 $28.8 million in 2015 $20.5 million in 2016

and $21.3 million thereafter Minimum future rentals for
transportation

assets included above aggregated approximately $97.6 million against

which we expect to continue to receive credits to substantially defray

our rental
expense

Our minimum commitments under our take-or-pay purchase obligations

associated with the sourcing of materials and
energy total approximately

$76.1 million Since the
majority

of our minimum obligations under

these contracts are over the life of the contract as opposed to year-

by-year basis we are unable to determine the periods in which these

obligations could be payable under these contracts However we intend

to fulfill the
obligations associated with these contracts through our

purchases associated with the normal course of business

The following table provides the estimated undiscounted amount of potential future payments for each major group of guarantees at December31 2011

in Millions

Guarantees

Guarantees of vendor
finaning 18.5

Foreign equity method investment debt guarantees 6.0

Other debt guarantees 8.0

TOTAL
32.5

Other Commitments

We provide guarantees to financial institutions on behalf of certain

Agricultural Products customers principally in Brazil for their

seasonal borrowing The total of these
guarantees was $18.5 million

and $24.1 million at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

respectively and are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets for

each date as Guarantees of vendor financing The change in the

guarantees is generally due to the seasonality of the Agricultural Products

business particularly in Brazil

In connection with our property and asset sales and divestitures we

have agreed to indemnifr the buyer for certain liabilities including

environmental contamination and taxes that occurred prior to the date

of sale Our indemnification obligations with respect to these liabilities

may be indefinite as to duration and may or may not be subject to

deductible minimum claim amount or cap As such it is not possible

for us to predict the likelihood that claim will be made or to make

reasonable estimate of the maximum potential loss or range of loss If

triggered we may be able to recover certain of the
indemnity payments

from third
parties We have not recorded

any specific liabilities for

these guarantees

Contingencies

Hydrogen Peroxide competition antitrust litigation We are subject to

actions brought by governmental and private plaintiffs relating to

alleged violations of European and U.S
competition and antitrust

laws as further described below

European Union fine In 2005 we and our wholly-owned Spanish

subsidiary Foret received Statement of Objections from the European

Commission concerning alleged violations of competition law in the

hydrogen peroxide business in Europe during the period 1994 to 2001

All of the significant European hydrogen peroxide producers received the

Statement of Objections Following hearing the European Commission

imposed fine on us and Foret in the
aggregate amount of 25.0 million

as result of alleged violations during the period 1997-1999 In

connection with this fine we recorded an expense of $30.0 million

reflecting then-prevailing exchange rates in our consolidated statements

of income for the
year ended December31 2006 as component of

Restructuring and other charges income We and Foret appealed
the decision of the European Commission and on June 16 2011
the General Court affirmed the

judgment of the Commission as to us

and Foret On August 11 2011 Foret paid the fine of 25.0 million

U.S $36.3 million and we paid 5.1 million U.S $7.5 million in

accrued interest The proceeding is now concluded

European competition action Based on the results of the EU investigation

into the hydrogen peroxide industry described above multiple European

purchasers of
hydrogen peroxide who claim to have been harmed as

result of the alleged violations of
European competition law by hydrogen

peroxide producers assigned their
legal

claims to single entity formed

by law firm which then filed law suit in Germany in March 2009

against European producers including Foret Initial defense briefs were

filed in April 2010 and an initial hearing was held during the first

quarter of 2011 at which time case management issues were discussed

At subsequent hearing in October 2011 the Court indicated that it

is considering seeking guidance from the European Court of Justice

ECJ as to whether the German courts have jurisdiction over these

claims The
judge asked the

parties to file written comments on this issue

by December 20 2011 and indicated that she will
report her decision

on whether to refer the case to the ECJ at the end of
February 2012

We filed comments supporting such reference If the case is referred

to the ECJ decision normally takes 12-18 months Since the case is

in the preliminary stages and is based on novel procedure namely
the

attempt to create cross-border class action which is not

recognized proceeding under EU or German law we are unable to

develop reasonable estimate of our potential exposure of loss at this

time We intend to vigorously defend this matter
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Canadian antitrust actions In 2005 after public disclosures of the U.S

federal grand jury investigation into the hydrogen peroxide industry

which resulted in no charges brought against us and the filing of

various class actions in U.S federal and state courts which have all

been settled putative
class actions against us and five other major

hydrogen peroxide producers were filed in provincial courts in Ontario

Quebec and British Columbia under the laws of Canada The other

five defendants have settled these claims for total of approximately

$20.6 million On September 28 2009 the Ontario Superior Court

of Justice certified class of direct and indirect purchasers of hydrogen

peroxide from 1994 to 2005 Our motion for leave to appeal the class

certification decision was denied in June 2010 Since then the case has

been largely dormant Neither side has produced documents although

the parties
have exchanged document requests as well as information

concerning
document retention and storage

Since the proceedings are

in the preliminary stages
with respect to the merits we are unable to

develop reasonable estimate of our potential exposure
of loss at this

time We intend to vigorously defend these matters

Asbestos claims Like hundreds of other industrial companies we have

been named as one of many defendants in asbestos-related personal injury

litigation Most of these cases allege personal injury or death resulting

from exposure to asbestos in premises
of FMC or to asbestos-containing

components
installed in machinery or equipment

manufactured or sold

by discontinued operations We intend to continue managing these

cases in accordance with our historical experience We have established

reserve for this
litigation

within our discontinued operations
and believe

that any exposure
of loss in excess of the established reserve cannot be

reasonably estimated Our experience has been that the overall trends

in terms of the rate of
filing

of asbestos-related claims with respect to

all potential defendants has changed over time and that
filing

rates as

to us in particular have varied significantly over the last several
years

We are peripheral defendant that is we have never manufactured

asbestos or asbestos-containing components As result claim filing

rates against us have yet to form predictable pattern and we are

unable to project reasonably accurate future filing rate and thus we

are presently unable to reasonably estimate our asbestos
liability

with

respect to claims that may be filed in the future

New York environmental claim In late June 2004 we were served in

lawsuit captioned Lewis et al FMC Corporation
which was filed in

United States District Court for the Western District of New York The

suit was brought by thirteen residents of Middleport New York who

alleged that we violated certain state and federal environmental laws and

sought injunctive
relief and monetary damages

for personal injuries
and

property damage in connection with such alleged violations motion

for summary judgment was decided in our favor on March 29 2111

On April 28 2011 the
plaintiffs

filed an appeal of that decision to the

U.S Court of Appeals
for the Second Circuit but failed to perfect the

appeal and the case was dismissed The
plaintiffs

filed new complaint

in New York state court in late September 2011 on the state law claims

on which the federal district judge did not rule in granting
the summary

judgment
motion in the original

lawsuit nuisance personal injury

and property damage In October 2011 we removed the new lawsuit

from the state court to federal court based on diversity of citizenship

and filed motion to dismiss the case on the basis of improper and

untimely service of process
which remains pending

Other contingent
liabilities In addition to the matters disclosed above

we have certain other contingent liabilities arising
from litigation

claims products we have sold guarantees
or warranties we have

made contracts we have entered into indemnities we have provided

and other commitments incident to the ordinary course of business

Some of these contingencies are known for example pending product

liability litigation or claims but are so preliminary
that the merits

cannot be determined or if more advanced are not deemed material

based on current knowledge and some are unknown for example

claims with respect to which we have no notice or claims which may

arise in the future resulting from products we have sold guarantees or

warranties we have made or indemnities we have provided Therefore

we are unable to develop reasonable estimate of our potential exposure

of loss for these contingencies
either individually or in the

aggregate

at this time Based on information currently available and established

reserves we have no reason to believe that the ultimate resolution of

our known contingencies including the matters described in this Note

will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position

liquidity or results of operations However there can be no assurance

that the outcome of these contingencies will be favorable and adverse

results in certain of these contingencies could have material adverse

effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations in

any one reporting period or liquidity
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NOTE 19 Segment Information

Business segment results below are presented net of noncontrolling interests reflecting only FMCs share of
earnings The corporate line primarily

includes staff
expenses while other income and

expense net consists of all other
corporate items including LIFO inventory adjustments

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2011 2010 2009

Revenue

Agricultural Products
1464.5 1241.8 1051.6

Specialty Chemicals
879.1 824.5 753.1

Industrial Chemicals
1038.5 05Th8 1026.7

Eliminations 4.2 4.8 5.2
TOTAL

3377.9 3116.3 2826.2

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Agricultural lroduts
348.3 309.5 289.0

Specialty Chemicals 199.8 185.0 159.6

Industrial Chemicals 54.5 122.9 89.7

Eliminations 0.1 0.2 0.1

Segment operating profit 702.5 617.6 538.2

Corporate expense 62.5 63.0 44.1
Other income expense net 18.7 5.4 0.5
Operating profit before the items listed below 621.3 549.2 463.6

Interest expense net 39.4 39.3 27.0

Restructuring and other income charges 32.4 151.9 132.8

Non-operating pension and postretirement charges income 14.5 19.9 3.0

Acquisition-related charges 0.8 7.1
Provision for income taxes 136.5 132.0 53.0
Discontinued operations net of income taxes 31.8 33.6 18.2
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC STOCKHOLDERS 365.9 172.5 228.5

Results
for

all
segments including corporate expense

and other income expense are net of noncontrolling interests in 2011 2010 and 2009 of $16.3 million $12.4 million and
$10.3 million respectively The

majority of the
noncontrolling interests pertain to our Industrial Chemicals segment

See Note 7for details of restructuring
and other charges income Amounts for the

years
ended 2011 2010 and 2009 re/ace to Agricultural Products of$1.2 million $7.3 million

and $61 million Specialty Chemicals of $2.2 million $67 million and $31.0 million Industrial Chemicals of $26 million $12416 million and $71.8 million and Corporate

of $2.9 million $13.3 million and $23.9 million respectively

Beginning in 2011 we rec/assifiedfor all
periods presented non-operating pension

and
postreti rement charges to its own line item within the above table Our

non-operating pension
and

poscrecirement costs are defined as chose costs related to interest expected return on p/an assets amortized actuarial gains and losses and the
impacts of any plan curtailments

or settlements These coscs were previously included within Other income expense net in the above table and are primarily related to changes in
pension p/an assets and liabilities

which are tied to financial market performance and we consider these costs to be outside our operational performance We exclude these
non-operating pension and poscretirement

costs as we believe that removing them
provides better understanding of the underlying profitability of our businesses provides increased

transparency
and

clarity in the perfo rmance

of our reti rement plans and enhances
period-over-period comparability We continue to include the service cost and amortization ofprior service cost in our operating segments

noted

above We believe these elements
reflect

the current
year operating

costs to our businesses
for

the employment benefits provided to active
employees

These charges were related to the
expensing of the

inventory fair value
step-up resultingfrom

the
application ofpurchase accounting

The
charges for year

ended December31 2011
relate to number of acquisitions completed in 2011 further described in Note The

charges for the year ended December31 2009 are associated with 2008 acquisition in our
Specialty Chemicals

segment
and 2009 acquisition in our Agricultural Products segment On the consolidated scatemencs of income the

charges for al/years presented are included

in Costs of sales and services No such
charges occurred for the

year
ended December31 2010

Net sales to external customers for each of our product line
groups

is presented below Our Agricultural Products
segment

has one product line

group and therefore net sales to external customers within the Agricultural Products segment is included in the table above

Year Ended December31

2010in Millions 2011 2009

Net Sales

BioPolymer 654.3 611.5 579.2

Lithium 224 213 173

TOTAL SPECIALTY CHEMICALS SEGMENT 879.1 824.5 753.1
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Year Ended December 31

2011
in Millions

2009

Net Sales

Alkali

696.4 624.5 576.5

Peroxygens

297.4 269.7 245.1

Zeolites and Silic.ites other
44.7 41.0 50.5

Phosphates and Sulfur Derivative
119.6 154.6

TOTAL INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS SEGMENT 1038.5 1054.8 1026.7

December 31

in Millions
2011 2010 2009

Operating capital employed

Agricultural Products
888.1 75i.3 72.7

Specialry Chemicals
906.1 806.2 821.5

Industrial Chemicals
594.1 488.8

Elimination
0.3 0.2

Iota1 operating capital employed
2388.0 2046.1 21 0.7

Segment liabilities included in total operating capital employed
824.9 717.9 587.9

orporate items
530.6 555.9 4r.6

TOTAL ASSETS
3743.5 3319.9 3136.2

Segment assets

Agricultural Products
1382.8 1090.9 56.2

Specialty Chemicals
1001 892.5 910.0

Industrial Chemicals
829.3 780.8 832.8

Elimination
0.3 0.2 OA

Total segment assets
3212.9 2764.0 2698.6

Corporate items
530.6 555.9 137.6

TOTAL ASSETS
3743.5 3319.9 3136.2

Wi vies
operating capiral employed w/icl consists of assets net of liahiliiies reported by our

operations
and exiluding corporate

items sue/i as cash
tquiiilenis

hr
pension

ha/sr 1iues

income taxes and LIFO reserves as our primary measure of segment capital

Segment assets are assets recorded and reporced by
the

segments
and are equal to segment operating capital employed plus segment

liabilities See Note

Year Ended December 31

Capital Expenditures Depreciation and Amortization Research and Development Expense

in Millions 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Agricultural Products 17.4 12.9 28.6 23.1 21.7 17.3 84.3 80.9 73.1

Specialty Chemicals 76.1 51.9 65.5 35.3 32.6 33.5 14.2 13.4 12.9

Industrial Chemicals 84.3 68.4 65.8 61.2 73.3 70.7 6.7 6.2 6.8

Corporate 11.7 9.1 1.3 7.0 6.0 5.7

TOTAL 189.5 142.3 1612 126.6 133.6 127.2 105.2 100.5 92.8

Geographic Segment Information

Year Ended December 31

in Millions

2011 2010 2009

Revenue by location of customert

NorthAmerica
1188.8 1125.4 1028.2

Europe/Middle East/Africa
634.9 677.6 716.4

Latin America
976.5 821.8 697.8

Asia Pacific
577 491 383

TOTAL 3377.9 3116.3 2826.2

In 2011 countries with sales in excess often percent ofconsolid.ated
revenue consisted of the US and Brazil Sales

for
the

years
ended December 2011 2010 and 2009 for

the U.S

totaled $1 109.6 million $1056 million and $967.6 million and
for

Brazil totaled $695.2 million $564.7 million and $470.8 million respectively
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December 31
in Millions

2011 2010

Long-lived assets

North America
860.9 768.7

Europe/Middle East/Africa
467.2 463.2

Latin America
106.5 49.5

Asia Pacific
192 776

TOTAL
1627.2 1359.0

Geographic segment long-lived assets exclude
long-term deferred income taxes on the consolidated balance sheets

The countries with
long-lived assets in excess of ten percent of consolidated long-lived assets at December 31 2011 and 2010 are the US and Norway Long lived assets at

December 31 2011 and 2010 for the US totaled $819.0 million and $735.7 million and
for Norway totaled $234.3 million and $223.3 million

respectively Norway assets

included
goodwill of $165.7 million and $161.2 million at December31 2011 and 2010 respectively

NOTE 20 Supplemental Information

The
following tables

presents
details of prepaid and other current assets other assets accrued and other liabilities and other long-term liabilities

as presented on the consolidated balance sheets

Prepaid and other current assets

in Millions

December 31

2011 2010

Prepaid insurance
7.6 8.5

Income and value added tax receivables
57.6 65.6

Environmental obligation recoveries Note 10 9.4 11.7

Other prepaid and current assets
98.8 89.5

TOTAL
173.4 1753

Other assets December 31
in Millions

2011 2010
Debt financing fees net

9.1 3.8

Contract manufacturers expenditures
38.7 28.3

Capitalized software net
21.8 8.5

Environmental obligation recoveries Note 10 48.9 40.0

Deferred compensation arrangements 20.9 22.1

Other long-term assets
59.5 57.0

TOTAL
198.9 169.7

Accrued and other liabilities December 31
in Millions

2011 2010
Asset retirement obligations current Note 9.8 17.0

Restructuring reserves Note
12.4 46.8

Dividend Payable Note 15 10.5 9.0

European Union Fine Note 18
39.8

Environmental reserves current net of recoveries Note 10 13.6 5.0

Other accrued and other liabilities
139.9 95.4

TOTAL
186.2 2230

Other long-term liabilities December 31
in Millions

2011 2010
Asset retirement obligations long-term Note 17.2 17.6

Contingencies related to uncertain tax positions Note
8.1 17.3

Deferred compensation arrangements 31.8 32.2

Self insurance reserves primarily workers compensation 19.7 19.6

Other long term liabilities
40 21

TOTAL
116.8 108.3
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NOTE 21 Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

in Millions Except Share and Per Share
2011 2010

Data 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q LQ 2Q 3Q 4Q

Revenue 795.0 812.2 862.1 908.6 756.5 776.8 772.5 810.5

Gross Profit 288.1 298.8 287.4 293.1 267.0 26t.6 251.7 264.4

Income loss from continuing

operations before equity in

earnings loss of affiliates net

interest income and expense
and

income taxes 155.0 155.6 135.6 141.1 135.9 131.4 127.1 7.3

Income loss from continuing

operations
105.4 121.1 97.2 90.3 86.1 88.2 86.2 42.0

Discontinued operations net of

income taxes
8.0 8.9 6.3 8.6 5.7 19.3 0.3 8.3

Net income loss 97.4 112.2 90.9 81.7 80.4 68.9 85.9 50.3

Less Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interests 3.4 5.0 4.1 3.8 3.0 3.2 3.0 3.2

NET INCOME LOSS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC
STOCKHOLDERS 94.0 107.2 86.8 77.9 77.4 65.7 82.9 53.5

Amounts attributable to FMC
stockholders

Continuing operations net of

income taxes
102.0 116.1 93.1 86.5 83.1 8S.0 83.2 45.2

Discontinued operations net of

income taxes 8.0 8.9 6.3 8.6 5.7 19.3 0.3 8.3

NET INCOME LOSS 94.0 107.2 86.8 77.9 77.4 65.7 82.9 53.5

Basic earnings loss per common

share attributable to FMC
stockholders

Continuingoperations
1.42 1.61 1.31 1.23 1.14 1.17 1.14 0.63

Discontinuedoperations 0.11 0.12 0.09 0.12 0.08 0.27 0.11

BASIC NET INCOME LOSS
PER COMMON SHARE 1.31 1.49 1.22 1.11 1.06 0.90 1.14 0.74

Diluted earnings loss per

common share attributable to

FMC stockholders

Continuingoperations
1.41 1.61 1.30 1.22 1.14 1.16 1.14 0.63

Discontinued operations 0.11 0.12 0.09 0.12 0.08 0.26 0.01 0.11

DILUTED NET INCOME

LOSS PER COMMON
SHARE 1.30 1.49 1.21 1.10 1.06 0.90 1.13 0.74

Weighted average
shares outstanding

Basic 71.5 71.6 71.0 70.2 72.3 72.5 72.3 71.8

Diluted 72 72 715 70 73 73 73 71

In the fourth quarter of 2010 our results were unfavorably impacted by $1162 million $80.7 million
after-tax of restructuring

and other charges income and $39.2 million

valuation allowance retarded
against deferred tax assets in Spain which aroseprincipallyfrom the Huelua shutdown

The sum of quarterly earnings per common share may differ from the fill-year amount
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

FMC Corporation

We have audited the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets of

FMC Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and

2010 and the related consolidated statements of income cash flows

changes in equity and comprehensive income for each of the years in

the three-year period ended December 31 2011 In connection with

our audits of the consolidated financial statements we have also audited

the related financial statement schedule These consolidated financial

statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the financial

statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes
examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

An audit also includes
assessing the

accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above

present fairly in all material
respects the financial

position of FMC
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and

the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years

in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 in
conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the

related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to

the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents

fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

FMC Corporations internal control over financial
reporting as of

December 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report

dated February 20 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

/s KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 20 2012
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Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting

Management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rule 13a-15f FMCs internal control over financial reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes
in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles
Internal control over financial reporting

includes those

written policies
and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and
fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the

assets of FMC

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary

to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles

provide
reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of FMC

are being made only in accordance with authorization of management

and directors of FMC and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection

of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of assets that could

have material effect on the consolidated financial statements

Internal control over financial reporting
includes the controls themselves

monitoring and internal auditing practices
and actions taken to correct

deficiencies as identified

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2011 We based this assessment on

criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting
described in

Internal ControlIntegrated
Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission Managements

assessment included an evaluation of the design of our internal control

over financial reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of

our internal control over financial reporting
We reviewed the results of

our assessment with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors

Based on this assessment we determined that as of December 31 2011

FMC has effective internal control over financial reporting

KPMG LLP our independent registered public accounting firm has

issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting as
of December 31 2011 which

appears on

the following page
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

FMC Corporation

We have audited FMC Corporations internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO FMC
Corporations management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in

the accompanying report titled Managements Annual
Report on

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material
respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial
reporting assessing

the risk that material weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk Our audit also included performing such other procedures

as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our

audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of

financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external
purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting

principles companys internal control over financial
reporting includes

those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and
fairly

reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the
companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes

in conditions or that the
degree of compliance with the

policies or

procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion FMC Corporation maintained in all material

respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the

consolidated balance sheets of FMC Corporation and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements

of income cash flows changes in equity and comprehensive income for

each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011

and our report dated February 20 2012 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those consolidated financial statements

/s KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 20 2012
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FMC Corporation

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

For Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

in Millions

Write-offs

December31 2011

Reserve for doubtful accounts
21.7 3.8 4.0 21.5

Deferred tax valuation allowance 76.3 16.3 92.6

December 31 2010

Reservefrdoubtfislaccounts
18.2 4.3 0.8 21.7

Deferred tax valuation allowance 37.1 39.2 76.3

December 31 2009

Reserve for doubtful accounts 16.3 5.8 .9 18.2

Deferred tax valuation allowance 55.3 18.2 37.1

tXrite_offi are net of recoveries

ITEM Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants

on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures Based on

managements
evaluation with the participation

of the Companys

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer the Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that

as of the end of the period covered by this report
the Companys

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e

and 5d- 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are

effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information required

to be disclosed by the Company in
reports

filed or submitted

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the

SECS rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated

to management including our principal executive officer and

principal financial officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure

ITEM 9B Other Information

None

Managements annual report on internal control over financial

reporting Refer to Managements Report on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting which is included in Item of Part II of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference

to this Item 9A

Audit
report

of the independent registered public accounting

firm Refer to Report of Independent RegisteredPublicAccounting

Firm which is included in Item of Part II of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference to this Item 9A

Change in Internal Controls There have been no changes in

internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during

the quarter
ended December 31 2011 that materially affected

or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control

over financial reporting

Balance

Beginning of Year

Provision

benefit

Balance

End of Year
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Information
concerning directors appearing

under the caption III

Board of Directors in our Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC in

connection with the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be

held on April 24 2012 the Proxy Statement information
concerning

executive officers appearing under the caption Item 4A Executive

Officers of the Registrant in Part of this Form 10-K information

concerning
the Audit Committee appearing under the

caption IV
Information About the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance-

Committees and Independence of Directors-Audit Committee in the

Proxy Statement information concerning the Code of Ethics appearing

under the caption IV Information About the Board of Directors and

Corporate GovernanceCorporate Governance-Code of Ethics and

Business Conduct
Policy in the Proxy Statement and information

about
compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 appearing under the
caption VII Other MattersSection 16a

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy Statement

is incorporated herein by reference in
response to this Item 10

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

The information contained in the Proxy Statement in the section titled VI Executive Compensation with
respect to executive compensation

in the section titled IV Information About the Board of Directors and Corporate GovernanceDirector Compensation and Corporate
GovernanceCompensation Committee Interlocks and Insider

Participation is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 11
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ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information contained in the section titled Security Ownership of FMC Corporation in the Proxy Statement with
respect to security

ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated herein by reference in
response to this Item 12

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The table below sets forth information with respect to compensation plans under which equity securities of FMC are authorized for issuance as

of December 31 2011 All of the equity compensation plans pursuant to which we are currently granting equity awards have been approved by

stockholders

Number of Securities

Number of Securities remaining available for

to be issued upon exercise Weighted- average exercise future issuance under equity

of outstanding options and price of outstanding options compensation plans excluding

restricted stock awards and restricted stock awards securities reflected in column

Plan Category

Eui Compensation Plans approved by stockholders 836 361 $37 76 250 986

Taking into account all outstanding stock options
included in this table the weighted-average exercise price ofsuch stock

options
is $37.76 and the

iveighted-average
term -to-expiration

is 79 years

Includes 1405312 stock
options

and 379200 restricted stock aaards granted to employees
and 51849 Restricted Stock Units RSUs he/il

by
directors

transactions policy appearing
under the caption IV Information

About the Board of Directors and Corporate GovernanceCorporate

GovernanceRelated Party Transactions Policy is incorporated herein

by reference in response to this Item 13

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information contained in the Proxy Statement in the section titled II The Proposals to be Voted OnRatification of Appointment
of

Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm is incorporated herein by reference in

response
to this Item 14

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

and Director Independence

The information contained in the Proxy Statement concerning our

independent directors under the caption IV Information About the

Board of Directors and Corporate Governance and the information

contained in the Proxy Statement concerning our related
party
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.i Documents filed with this Report

Consolidated financial statements of FMC Corporation and its subsidiaries are incorporated under Item of this Form 10-K

The following supplementary financial information is filed in this Form 10-K

Financial Statements Schedule II Valuation and qualifying accounts and reserves for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

The schedules not included herein are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is presented in the financial statements

or related notes

Exhibits See attached Index of Exhibits

Ii Exhibits

Exhibit No Exhibit Description

Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation as filed on June 23 1998 Exhibit to FMC Corporations Form S-3 filed on July 1998

3.2 Restated By-Laws of FMC Corporation as of February 20 2009 Exhibit 10.2 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on February 23 2009

Instruments defining the rights of security holders including indentures FMC Corporation undertakes to furnish to the SEC
upon

request copy of any instrument defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of FMC Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries

and for
any

of its unconsolidated subsidiaries for which financial statements are required to be filed

Indenture dated as of November 15 2009 by and between FMC Corporation and U.S Bank National Association as trustee

Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 30 2009

4.2 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 30 2009 by and between FMC Corporation and U.S Bank National Association

as trustee including the form of the Note Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 30 2009
43 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 17 2011 by and between the Company and U.S Bank National Association

as trustee including the form of the Note Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 17 2011

10 Material contracts

101 Credit Agreement dated as of August 2011 among FMC Corporation and certain Foreign Subsidiaries the Lenders and Issuing Banks

Parties Thereto Citibank N.A as Administrative Agent Citigroup Global Markets Inc and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith

Incorporated as Joint Lead Arrangers Bank of America N.A as Syndication Agent DNB NOR Bank ASA The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi

UFJ Ltd and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp as Co-Documentation Agents and DNB NOR Bank ASA The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi

UFJ Ltd Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp BNP Paribas HSBC Bank USA National Association and U.S Bank National Association

as Co-Senior Managing Agents Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on August 2008

10.2 Asset Purchase Agreement among FMC Corporation Solutia Inc Astaris Israel Chemicals Limited and ICI Perfirmance

Products Holding Inc dated as of September 12005 Exhibit 10 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed

on November 2005

tlo.3 FMC Corporation Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors As Amended and Restated Effective February 20 2009

Exhibit 10.4 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009

t10.3.a Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Exhibit 10.4.a to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on February 23 2009

tlo.3.b Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Exhibit 10.4.b to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K

filed on February 23 2009

t1o4 FMC Corporation Salaried Employees Equivalent Retirement Plan as amended and restated effective as ofJanuarv 2009

Exhibit 10.5 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009

ff10.5 FMC Corporation Salaried Employees Equivalent Retirement Plan Grantor Trust as amended and restated effective as July 31 2001

Exhibit 0.6.a to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2001

10.6 FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan as adopted by the Company on December 17 2008

Exhibit 10.7 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009
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Exhibit No Exhibit Description

t510.7 FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust as amended and restated effective as of September 28 2001
Exhibit 0.7.a to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2001

10.7.a First Amendment to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust between
Fidelity Management Trust Company

arid FMC Corporation effective as of October 2003 Exhibit 10.15a to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed

on March 11 2004

10.7.b Second Amendment to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust effective as of January 2004

Exhibit 10.1 2b to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 14 2005

t10.7.c Third Amendment to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust between
Fidelity Management Trust Company

and FMC Corporation effective as of February 14 2005 Exhibit 10.8.c to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed

on February 23 2009

t10.7.d Fourth Amendment to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust between
Fidelity Management Trust

Company and FMC Corporation effective as of July 2005 Exhibit 10.8.d to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed

on February 23 2009

t1O.7.e Fifth Amendment to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust between
Fidelity Management Trust Company

and FMC Corporation effective as of April 23 2008 Exhibit 10.8.e to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed

on February 23 2009

tI0.8 FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan as amended and restated through October 2011

Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2011

t10.8a Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed on May 22008

t10.8b Form of Long-term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan

Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2004

t10.8c Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to the FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan

Exhibit 10.2 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qfiled on March 31 2006

tl0.8d Form of Key Manager Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan

Exhibit 10.3 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2004

t1o.9 FMC Corporation Executive Severance Plan as amended and restated effective as ofJanuary 12009 Exhibit 10.10 to FMC Corporations

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009

10.10 FMC Corporation Executive Severance Grantor Trust Agreement dated July 31 2001 Exhibit 10.1 0.a to FMC Corporations Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2001

tlO.l Executive Severance Agreement entered into as of January 2010 by and between FMC Corporation and Pierre Brondeau Executive

Severance Agreement with Mark Douglas is consistent with Pierre Brondeaus agreement as filed

10.12 Executive Severance Agreement entered into as of December 31 2008 by and between FMC Corporation and Kim Foster

with attached schedule Exhibit 10.13 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009 Executive

Severance Agreements with Andrea Utecht Milton Steele and Michael Wilson are consistent with Kim Fosters agreement as filed

t1o.13 Executive Severance Agreement entered into as of December 31 2008 by and between FMC Corporation and Graham Wood with

attached schedule Exhibit 10.14 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009 Executive Severance

Agreement with Thomas Deas Jr is consistent with Graham Woods agreement as filed

10 14 Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc made as of April 29 1999 Exhibit 2.1 to Solutias Current Report

on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

10.14.a First Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc effective as of December 29 1999

Exhibit 2.11 to Solutias Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

10.14.b Second Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc effective as of February 2000

Exhibit 2.111 to Solutias Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

10.1 4.c Third Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Soluria Inc effective as of March 31 2000

Exhibit 2.IV to Solutias Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

10.14.d Fourth Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc dated November 2005

Exhibit 10 to FMC Corporations Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 2005

10.15 Separation and Distribution Agreement by and between FMC Corporation and FMC Technologies Inc dated as of May 31 2001

Exhibit 2.1 to Form S-i/A for FMC Technologies Inc Registration No 333-55920 filed on June 2001

10.16 Letter Agreement dated October 23 2009 between FMC Corporation and Pierre Brondeau Exhibit 10.18 to FMC Corporations Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed on February 22 2010

10.17 Transition Agreement between William Walter and FMC Corporation dated June 2010 Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 2010

10.18 Transition Agreement by and between Theodore Butz and FMC Corporation dated December 22 2010 Exhibit 10.1 to FMC
Corporations Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2010

12 Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 FMC Corporation List of
Significant

Subsidiaries Exhibit 21 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 22 2011

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification

31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification
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Exhibit No Exhibit Description

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification of Annual Report

32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification of Annual Report

95 Mine Safety Disclosures

101 Interactive Data File

incorporated by reference

Maflgmtit contract or cornperaatorw plan or arrangement
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

FMC Corporation

Registrant

By /S KIM FOSTER

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Date February 20 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of

the Registrant and in the
capacities

and on the date indicated

Signature

IS KIM FOSTER

Kim Foster

1Sf GRAHAM WOOD
Graham Wood

/5/ PIERRE BRONDEAU

Pierre Brondeau

/S PETER DALOIA

Peter DAloia

/5/ EDUARDO CORDEIRO

Eduardo Cordeiro

IS SCOTF GREER

Scott Greer

/5/ DIRK KEMPTHORNE

Dirk Kempthorne

1Sf EDWARD MOONEY
Edward Mooney

1Sf PAULJ NORRIS

Paul Norris

1Sf ROBERT PALLASH

Robert Pallash

1Sf ENRIQUE SOSA

Enrique Sosa

SI VINCENT VOLPE JR

Vincent Volpe Jr

fSf WILLIAM POWELL

William Powell _____________________________________________

Tide Date

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 20 2012

Vice President Controller PrincpalAccounting Officer February 20 2012

President Chief Executive
Officer

and Chairman of the Board February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012

Director February 20 2012
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Index of Exhibits Filed with the Form 10-K of FMC
Corporation for the Year Ended December 31 2011

Exhibit No Exhibit Description

10.11 Executive Severance Agreement entered into as of January 2010 by and between FMC Corporation and Pierre Brondeau

12 Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

23 Consent of KPMG LLP

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification

1.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification of Annual Report

32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification of Annual Report

95 Mine Safety Disclosures

101 Interactive Data File

EXHIBIT 12 Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Year ended December 31

in Millions Except Ratios 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Earnings

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 550.5 350.5 310.0 471.9 195.3

Equity in earnings loss of affiliates 2.6 2.7 2.3 3.1 2.5

Interest expense and amortization of debt discount fees and
expenses 39.5 39.5 27.2 32.9 37.5

Amortization of capitalized interest 3.9 3.9 3.7 4.1 3.9

Interest included in rental expense 6.5 6.3 6.3 5.3 5.0

TOTALE.ARNINGS 5978 3975 3449 511 2392

Fixed charges

Interest expense and amortization of debt discount fees and expenses 39.5 39.5 27.2 32.9 37.5

Interest
capitalized as part of fixed assets 6.9 7.5 3.8 5.7 4.2

Interest included in rental expense 6.5 6.3 6.3 5.3 5.0

TOTAL FIXED CHARGES 52.9 53.3 37.3 43.9 46.7

Ratioofearningstofixedcharges1 11.3 7.5 9.2 11.6 5.1

In
calculating

this ratio earnings
consist of income loss from continuing operations before income taxes plus interest

expense net amortization
expense

related to debt discounts fees

and
expenses amortization of capitalized interest interest included in rental

expenses assumed to be one-third of rent and Equay in earnings loss ofaffiliates Fixed
charges

consist

of interest expense amortization of debt discounts fits
and

expenses interest capitalized as part offixed assets and interest included in rental
expenses

EXHIBIT 23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors

FMC Corporation

We consent to the
incorporation by reference in the registration

statements on Form S-8 Nos 333-18383 333-69805 333-69714

333-111456 333-172387 and 333-172388 and the registration

statements on Form S-3 Nos 333-165066 and 333-59543 of FMC

Corporation of our reports dated February 20 2012 with respect to the

consolidated balance sheets of FMC Corporation and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements

of income cash flows changes in equity and comprehensive income for

each of the
years

in the three-year period ended December 31 2011

and the related financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011

which
reports appear

in the December 31 2011 annual
report on

Form 10-K of FMC Corporation

Is KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 20 2012
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EXHIBIT 31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification

Pierre Brondeau certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FMC

Corporation

Based on my knowledge this
report

does not contain any untrue

statement of material fact or omit to state material fact
necessary

to make the statements made in light
of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading
with

respect

to the period covered by this
report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other

financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material
respects

the financial condition results of operations and

cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented

in this
report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the
registrant

and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during
the period in which this

report
is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused

such internal control over financial reporting to be designed

under our supervision to provide
reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure

controls and procedures and presented in this
report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this

report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this
report any change in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal
quarter

that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based

on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent function

All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the

design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting

which are reasonable
likely

to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process
summarize and report financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves
management

or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial
reporting

EXHIBIT 31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification

Kim Foster certify that

IS PIERRE BRONDE.AU

Pierre Brondeau

President and Chief Executive Officr

Date February 20 2012

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FMC

Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue

statement of material fact or omit to state material fact
necessary

to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect

to the period covered by this
report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial

information included in this report fairly present in all material

respects
the financial condition results of operations and cash flows

of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-1 5f and Sd-i 5f for the
registrant

and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting

or caused such internal control over financial reporting to

be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purpcises

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls

and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such

evaluation and
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Disclosed in this
report any change in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial
reporting

and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based

on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent function

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the

design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonable
likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and
report

financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves
management

or other employees who have
significant

role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

IS KIM FOSTER

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date February 20 2012

EXHIBIT 32.1 CEO Certification of Annual Report

Pierre Brondeau President and Chief Executive Officer of FMC Corporation the Company certify pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 18 U.S.C Section 1350 based on my knowledge that

the Annual Report on Form 0-K of the Company for the year ended December 31 2011 the Report fully complies with the requirements

of Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents
in all material

respects
the financial condition and results of

operations
of the Company

IS PIERRE BRONDEAU

Pierre Brondeau

President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated February 20 2012

EXHIBIT 32.2 CFO Certification of Annual Report

Kim Foster Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of FMC Corporation the Company certify pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 18 U.S.C Section 1350 based on my knowledge
that

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31 2011 the Report fully complies with the requirements

of Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material
respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

/S KIM FOSTER

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Dated February 20 2012

EXHIBIT 95 Mine Safety Disclosures

Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Act contains new reporting requirements

regarding coal or other mine safety We operate mine in conjunction

with our Green River Wyoming facility
which is subject to regulation

by the Mine Safety and Health Administration MS HA under the

Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 the Mine Act and is

therefore subject to these reporting requirements Presented in the table

below is information regarding certain mining safety
and health citations

which MSHA has issued with
respect to our operation as required by

the Dodd-Frank Act In evaluating this information consideration

should be
given to the fact that citations and orders can be contested

and appealed and in that process may be reduced in severity penalty

amount or sometimes dismissed vacated altogether

The letters used as column headings in the table below correspond to

the explanations provided underneath the table as to the information

set forth in each column with respect to the numbers of violations

orders citations or dollar amounts as the case may be during the

calendar year 2011 unless otherwise indicated
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For each coal or other mine of which the issuer or subsidiary oft/se issuer is an operator

Pending

Leeal Action

Section 110b
Section 107aOperation Name Section 104 Section 104b Section 104d

Westvaco 21
Assessments are generally delayed up to 60 days after

the close
oft/se inspection

Five are final orders

The total number of violations of mandatory health or safety standards that could significantly
and substantially contribute to the cause and effect of coal or other sn/ne safety

and

health hazard under section 104 of the Mine Act
for

which the
operator

received citation from MSHA

The total number of ord.ers issued under section 104b of the Mine Act

The total number of citations and orders
for

unwarrantable
failure of the

operator
to comply with mandatory health or safety standards undcr section 104d of

the hitne Act

The total number offlagrant
violations under section 10b2 oft/se Mine Act

The total number of imminent danger orders issued under section 107a oft/se Mine Act

The total dollar value
ofproposed assessments from the MSHA under the Mine Act

The total number of mining re/a ted fatalities

Any pending legal action before the Federal Mine Safety
and Health Review Commission involving such coal or other mines

All cases included in the number listed were pending before
the

Office ofAdministrative
Law Judges of the Fede ral Mine Safety

and flea Ith Revieu Uomsnission on 1ecesiher3 2011

list of such coal or other mines of which the issuer or subsidiary of the issuer is an
operator

that received written notice from IVJSHA ofA pattern of violations of mandatory

health or safety
standards that are of such nature as could have significantly and substantially

contributed to the cause and ejfecc oji
oal or other mine health and safety

hazards under

section 104e oft/se Mine Act or the
potential

to have such
pattern

NONE

Any pending legal
action before the Federal Mine Safety and Health Review Commission involving such coal or other in/ne

SEE COLUMN OF SECTION ABOVE

Fatalities

Proposed

Assessments

27841
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS OFFICERS

Pierre Brondeau

President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

FMC Corporation

Eduardo Cordeiro

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Cabot Corporation

Peter DAloia
Former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Trane Inc

Scott Greer

Principal

Greer and Associates

Dirk Kern pthorne

President

The Kernpthorne Group

Edward Mooney
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Nalco Chemical Company

Paul Norris

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Grace Co

Robert Pallash

President Global Customer Group and Senior Vice President

Visteon Corporation

William Powell

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

National Starch and Chemical Company

Enrique Sosa

Former President

BP Amoco Chemicals

Vincent Volpe Jr

Chief Executive Officer and President

Dresser-Rand Group Inc

STOCKHOLDER DATA

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

FMC Corporations Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be

held on Tuesday April 24 2012 at 200 p.m ET at the Top

of the Tower 1717 Arch Street 50th Floor Philadelphia PA

19103 Notice of the meeting together with proxy materials

will be mailed approximately five weeks prior to the meeting
to stockholders of record as of Tuesday February 28 2012

Transfer Agent and Registrar of Stock

Wells Fargo Bank N.A
Shareowner Services

P.O Box 64854

St Paul MN 551 64-0854

or

161 Concord Exchange

South St Paul MN 55075-1139

Phone 1.800.468.9716

.651 .450.4064 local and outside the U.S

Pierre Brondeau

President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mark Douglas
President Industrial Chemicals Group

Milton Steele

President Agricultural Products Group

Michael Wilson

President Specialty Chemicals Group

Kenneth Garrett

Executive Vice President Human Resources

Andrea Utecht

Executive Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Barry Crawford

Vice President Operations

Thomas Deas Jr

Vice President and Treasurer

Kenneth Gedaka

Vice President Corporate Communications

David Kotch

Vice President Chief Information Officer

Gerald Prout

Vice President Government Affairs

Andrew Sandifer

Vice President Corporate Planning and Development

Karen Totland

Vice President Procurement

Victoria Walton
Vice President Tax

Graham Wood
Vice President and Controller

Stock Exchange Listing New York Stock Exchange

Chicago Stock Exchange

Stock Exchange Symbol FMC

FMC was incorporated in Delaware in 1928

FMC is an active participant in the American Chemistry

Council and is in conformance with the requirements of

its Responsible Care Program FMC is certified for the

Responsible Care Management System RCMS for our

headquarters offices All of our sites located in the United

States are also in conformance with the RCMS requirements

For additional information on our Responsible Care

Program please go to www.fmc.com

FMC Anthem Avicel BioColor BioNutrition Clube da

Fibra Lectro NovaMatix Rovral S-Carb SLMP Spectrum

Sportak and Verifi are trademarks of FMC Corporation or its

subsidiaries Natron and EnProve are trademarks of Natron

Technologies LLC Leaf is trademark of Nissan Jidosha

Kabushiki Kaisha Oba Nissan Motor Co LTD Chevrolet Volt

is trademark of General Motors LLCwww.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices
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